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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

End of audited information

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Th ese consolidated and separate fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the 
Financial Reporting Standards Council, the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa and the JSE Listings Requirements.

APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Th e Audited Consolidated and Separate Annual Financial Statements, set out on pages 130 to 231, were approved by the board of directors on 13 September 2021.
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CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

Declaration by the Company Secretary

We declare that, to the best of our knowledge, the Company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission, for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2021, all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of section 88 of the Companies Act 
of South Africa, as amended, and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Statucor Proprietary Limited
Company Secretary

Shantel Dartnall

S. Dartnall

Johannesburg, 13 September 2021
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CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021

Report of the Audit and Risk committee
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Statutory duties
The ARC is governed by a formal charter that codifies its role and responsibilities. The primary responsibilities of the ARC are to:

•  Oversee integrated reporting, including consideration of significant judgements and reporting decisions;

•  Ensure that a combined assurance model is applied to provide a coordinated approach to all assurance activities;

•  Review the expertise, resources and experience of the Company’s finance function, and satisfy itself as to the suitability of the 
expertise and experience of the chief financial officer;

•  Oversee internal audit, and in particular, the appointment and / or dismissal of the internal audit service provider;

•  Monitor compliance with the risk policy and procedures;

•  Recommend the appointment of the external auditor and oversee the external audit process; and

•  Make submissions to the board on any relevant matter concerning the Company’s accounting policies, financial controls, records, 
reporting and risk management.

Functions
In addition to the above, the ARC also covered matters relating to compliance and litigation, budgeting and forecasting, taxation and 
accounting policy choices, and supported the board in the following areas:

•  Advising on the accounting implications of major transactions;

•  Reviewing adherence to Hyprop’s systems of internal controls and, where necessary, monitoring improvements;

•  Monitoring established guidelines for the use of the external auditor for non-audit services, to maintain independence;

•  Monitoring the performance of the new internal auditor appointed in 2020, approving the annual internal audit plan and reviewing 
the scope, work and reports of the internal audit function; 

Introduction
The audit and risk committee (the ARC) is pleased to submit its report, as required by section 94(7)(f) of the Companies Act of South 
Africa, for the year ended 30 June 2021.

The ARC continued to monitor the risks arising from the COVID-19 pandemic in all jurisdictions where the Group operates. Having 
established the required principles and protocols to deal with the pandemic in the 2020 financial year, including policies covering rent 
relief granted to tenants, hygiene protocols and working arrangements with the group’s major lenders, management were able to 
adjust the COVID-19 procedures as lockdown conditions in different jurisdictions were relaxed and reimposed throughout the year.

In addition, the ARC focused on its traditional responsibilities, which include, monitoring and management of risk in the Group and 
monitoring the integrity of financial reporting systems, internal controls and financial disclosures.

Focus areas in 2021
Areas of special focus included:

•  COVID-19: Ongoing monitoring of the Group’s response and risk management strategies to address the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic as the need arose;

•  Borrowings and foreign currency exposure: Assessing and monitoring the group’s funding needs, including offshore borrowings 
associated with Hystead;

•  Information technology: Monitoring the information technology risks the group faces and overseeing ongoing improvements;

•  Internal financial controls: Monitoring the Group’s internal audit functions following the appointment of a new internal audit 
service provider in the 2020 financial year; and 

•  Going concern: Regular assessment of the going concern assumption, including financial liquidity risks given the quantum of Group 
borrowings maturing in the 2022 financial year. 
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2 Determining 
the recoverable 
amounts 
for the 
investments 
held in 
sub- Saharan 
Africa 
(excluding 
South Africa) 

Judgements and assumptions were 
applied by management in calculating 
the fair value of the investment in 
AttAfrica, particularly with respect to:

•  Determining the cash-generating 
unit (CGU) used for the purpose of 
impairment testing

•  Assumptions on future rentals, net 
cash inflows and discount rates

•  The value of underlying assets held 
by the CGU, and specifically, the 
investment properties 

•  Prospects for the investee companies 

In considering the fair value of the investment, 
the ARC considered the following:

•  The Group’s stated intention to exit 
the investments in sub-Saharan Africa 
(excluding South Africa)

•  The appropriateness of the CGU 

•  The nature of the underlying investments

•  Values of the underlying property assets and 
the net assets / liabilities of the underlying 
property companies

•  The net asset value of AttAfrica following its 
recapitalisation during the year

The ARC endorsed 
management’s final 
assessment of the fair 
value of the investment in 
AttAfrica.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
continued

•  Approving the appointment of an external service provider to provide internal audit services to the Group’s European portfolio;

•  Monitoring compliance with Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) requirements, in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements, 
and confirming that the risk management policy, which prohibits the Company from entering into derivative transactions not in the 
ordinary course of business, has been complied with in all material respects;

•  Monitoring the Group’s preparation for compliance with the Protection of Personal Information Act (POPI) which came into force on 
1 July 2021; and

•  Considering financial reporting in line with the results of the JSE proactive monitoring process and the Group’s own 
internal objectives.

Composition and meetings
All members of the ARC are independent non-executive directors, in compliance with the Companies Act of South Africa and as 
recommended by King IV. The external and internal auditors and executive management are invited to attend ARC meetings.

Details of the ARC members’ attendance at meetings during the year are set out in the Governance section of the integrated report.

Significant financial statement reporting issues
A significant part of the financial reporting process includes making estimates and exercising judgement. The ARC reviewed and 
evaluated the main judgements, estimates and assumptions made by management and the conclusions drawn from the available 
information and evidence.

The ARC also ensured that these matters were covered by the work of the external auditor.

The key issues involving estimates and judgements during the year are set out below:

JUDGEMENT IN 
FINANCIAL REPORTING

AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE REVIEW

1 Valuation of 
investment 
property

Investment property is the Group’s 
most significant asset and is measured 
at fair value, with changes in fair value 
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group uses independent valuers to 
value investment properties. 

The valuation involves making 
significant judgements, especially 
regarding the current market 
conditions, reversionary capitalisation 
rates and rental levels.

The ARC considered the independence and 
qualifications of the independent valuers 
appointed to carry out the investment 
property valuations, as well as the rotation of 
properties between the two appointed valuers.

The ARC reviewed the external valuations, 
including the discount rates and reversionary 
capitalisation rates applied by the 
independent valuers, and the manner in 
which the independent valuers took the 
prevailing COVID-19 circumstances into 
account in performing the valuations.

The ARC also reviewed the adequacy of the 
disclosures relating to investment properties 
included in the financial statements.

The ARC endorsed the 
independent valuations 
of the investment 
properties and the relevant 
disclosures in the financial 
statements.

KEY ISSUE CONCLUSION
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4 Allowances for 
expected credit 
losses: Trade 
receivables

Judgements were applied in 
determining the allowance for 
expected credit losses for trade and 
other receivables. 

Assessments were made on a 
tenant-by-tenant basis, considering 
the circumstances of each tenant, 
including factors such as defaults on 
payment terms, known insolvency, 
the legal status of the accounts, rental 
discounts granted to tenants and 
payments received after year end. 

The impact of COVID-19 on the 
economies in which the Group operates 
has had a negative effect on many of 
the Group’s tenants’ businesses and 
resulted in a significant increase in the 
expected credit losses. 

Security deposits held on behalf of 
tenants are not taken into account for 
purposes of calculating expected credit 
losses as these are retained to cover 
reinstatements and other obligations 
at the end of the lease.

The ARC reviewed the methodology applied 
by management to determine the allowance 
for expected credit losses, as well as the 
overall allowance for expected credit losses 
relative to trade receivables at 30 June 2021. 

Cognisance was also taken of the rental 
discounts granted to tenants during the 
COVID-19 lock down periods and the related 
concessions agreed with certain tenants who 
are struggling to re-establish their businesses.

The ARC also considered the increase in 
the number of business failures as a result 
of COVID-19 and the difficult economic 
environment, particularly in the South African 
portfolio.

The ARC endorsed 
management’s final 
allowance for expected 
credit losses.

5 Adoption of 
the going 
concern basis 
in preparing 
the financial 
statements

Judgement was applied by 
management in preparing the financial 
statements on the going concern basis.

See detailed comments in the report below. The ARC confirmed that 
it is appropriate to adopt 
the going concern basis in 
preparing the Company 
and Group financial 
statements.

JUDGEMENT IN 
FINANCIAL REPORTING

AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE REVIEW

3 Classification 
and valuation 
of investment 
in Hystead

Judgements were applied by 
management in interpreting the IFRS 
implications of the suite of agreements 
which govern the relationship between 
the shareholders of Hystead to 
determine the appropriateness of 
the classification of the investment in 
Hystead as a financial asset.

Estimations and judgements were 
also applied in determining the future 
cash flows, appropriate discount and 
exit cap rates and the application of 
annual and terminal growth rates 
when determining the valuation of the 
investment in Hystead.

Having determined the valuation of 
the Hystead financial asset, judgement 
was further applied to determine the 
portion of the valuation which should 
be deferred as a day-one gain.

The ARC reviewed the accounting treatment 
of Hystead and assessed the appropriateness 
of the accounting classification.

In doing so, the ARC considered the terms of 
the Hystead shareholders agreement which 
envisaged that a “liquidity event” would occur 
by 31 May 2021 (with a long- stop date of 31 
May 2022) 

The committee noted, notwithstanding that 
the envisaged liquidity event date of 31 May 
2021 has passed, the Hystead shareholders 
agreement remains in effect in its current 
form.

Having considered the 
terms of the Hystead 
shareholders’ agreement, 
and both management’s 
and the external auditor’s 
views on the classification 
and measurement of the 
investment in Hystead, 
the ARC concluded that 
the classification as a 
financial asset remained 
appropriate and the 
valuation was reasonable.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
continued

KEY ISSUE CONCLUSION
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
continued

The ARC also considered: 

•  the accounting treatment of the co-owned assets and joint operations (Canal Walk and The Glen); 

•  the classification of the investment in AttAfrica as a joint venture based on the provisions of the AttAfrica shareholders’ agreement; 

•  the classification of Gruppo and Atterbury Value Mart as assets held for sale; 

•  the valuation and accounting treatment of the financial guarantees provided by the Company for borrowings of other Group 
companies; and

•  the additional disclosure in the Risk management section of the annual financial statements relating to those guarantees. 

Where appropriate, the ARC sought input and views from the external auditor and other experts.

Internal financial controls
In terms of a new JSE Listings Requirement, the CEO and CFO are required to sign a responsibility statement confirming, inter alia, that 
the financial statements fairly present in all material respects the financial position and performance of the Group in terms of IFRS, no 
facts have been omitted or untrue statements made that would make the financial statements false or misleading, internal financial 
controls have been put in place to ensure that material information relating to the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries has been 
provided to effectively prepare the financial statements, and that the internal financial controls are adequate and effective and can be 
relied upon in compiling the annual financial statements.

The ARC reviewed the basis on which the CEO and CFO concluded that the above statement can be signed in respect of the 2021 annual 
financial statements.

The ARC is further satisfied that the Company has established appropriate financial reporting procedures and that these procedures are 
operating, as required by paragraph 3.84(g)(ii) of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Going concern, solvency and liquidity
The ARC confirmed that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue operating for the ensuing 12 months and 
that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Company and Group financial statements. 

In assessing whether it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group financial statements, the ARC reviewed 
the solvency and liquidity tests at the time of declaring the final distribution for the year ended 30 June 2021 and considered the 
manner in which the distribution is proposed to be settled. 

The solvency and liquidity tests include reviews of the Company’s budget and cashflow forecasts, available cash balances, the Group’s 
debt maturity profile, existing unutilised facilities, new bank facilities, and the manner in which the debt maturing in the ensuing 
12 months is proposed to be refinanced or settled.

The ARC has reported on going concern to the board.

External auditor
The ARC has considered a report from KPMG motivating its independence and is satisfied with the independence of the external auditor. 
The ARC is also satisfied with the terms, nature, scope and proposed fee of the external auditor for the year ended 30 June 2021.

The ARC has considered and is satisfied with the suitability of KPMG and the designated audit partner, Tracy Middlemiss, in accordance 
with paragraphs 3.84(g)(iii) and 22.15(h) of the JSE Listings Requirements.

The ARC monitors the Group’s policy on the provision of non-audit services by the Group’s auditors and has noted the policy decision 
taken by KPMG not to provide non-audit services to its audit clients, other than where these services relate to an attest or similar 
function. Having regard to this decision by KPMG, the ARC approved:

•  the appointment of KPMG Services Proprietary Limited to provide limited assurance reports for selected sustainability 
development indicators;
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
continued

•  the appointment of KPMG Nigeria to provide tax advisory services to Gruppo Investments Limited, a subsidiary of Hyprop, whose 
external auditor is Ernst & Young (Nigeria). Should Gruppo Investments remain part of the Group, KPMG’s role as tax adviser to 
Gruppo will be terminated by 30 June 2022;

•  the appointment of KPMG to provided limited assurance reports relating to mortgage bonds for bank facilities, and bonds issued in 
terms of the Company’s domestic medium term note program.

Risk management, combined assurance framework and internal controls
Th e ARC reviewed the Group’s policies on risk assessment and regularly monitors the combined assurance dashboard and risk matrix 
covering both operational and fi nancial reporting risks and matters. Feedback and recommendations on actions to mitigate the 
identifi ed risks are provided by the ARC.

Th e riots and looting which occurred in parts of South Africa in July 2021 resulted in the closure of Somerset Mall for a day as a 
precautionary measure, with no damage. Th e remaining South African malls were not directly aff ected by these events. Ikeja City Mall 
was aff ected by riots and looting in Nigeria in the fi rst half of the fi nancial year, although no direct damage was caused to the mall. 
Th ese events have compounded the ongoing macro-economic and political risks in South Africa and the rest of Africa, and are part of 
the increasing list of risks which the Group manages. Others include:

•  the liquidity constraints experienced in the Nigerian foreign exchange market since January 2020 and the eff ect this has had on 
Gruppo’s (the owner of Ikeja City Mall) ability to service shareholder and bank borrowings;

•  the increasing number of cybersecurity and ransomware attacks globally which necessitates ever increasing investment in IT 
security systems;

•  the failure by municipalities in South Africa to deliver basic services to property owners. 

Management’s responses to these risks were noted.

Th e ARC receives feedback from management, the external auditor, internal audit and the Group’s independent ethics reporting 
telephone line on any concerns, complaints or allegations relating to internal fi nancial controls, the content of the fi nancial statements, 
potential violations of the law or questionable business, accounting or auditing practices. 

Separate meetings are held with management, the external auditor and the internal auditor every quarter unless a greater frequency 
is requested.

Chief fi nancial offi  cer and fi nancial reporting
Th e consolidated and separate fi nancial statements have been audited in compliance with section 30 of the Companies Act of South 
Africa. Brett Till CA(SA), the chief fi nancial offi  cer, is responsible for this set of fi nancial statements and has supervised the preparation 
thereof. Th e ARC is satisfi ed that the CFO has the necessary expertise and experience to carry out his duties, as required by paragraph 
3.84(g)(i) of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Recommendation of fi nancial statements
Th e consolidated and separate fi nancial statements are prepared by management, reviewed by the ARC and the board, and are audited 
by the external auditor. Th e ARC has recommended the consolidated and separate fi nancial statements to the board for approval.

Th abo Mokgatlha
Audit committee chair

Stewart Shaw-Taylor
Risk committee chair

13 September 2021
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Directors’ report
for the year ended 30 June 2021

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report, which forms part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2021.

Responsibility statement 
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and Company financial statements of 
Hyprop, comprising the statements of financial position, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes 
in equity and cash flows, as well as the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory notes, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as 
issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, and financial pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, 
and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa. 

In addition, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the directors’ report.

The directors are also responsible for such internal controls as they determine necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate accounting 
records and an effective system of risk management.

Introduction and overview
Hyprop, is a specialist shopping centre Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT), with interests in a R43.3 billion portfolio of shopping centres 
in South Africa, Eastern Europe and sub-Saharan Africa (excluding South Africa).

The portfolio in South Africa includes super regional centre Canal Walk, large regional centres Clearwater, The Glen, Woodlands, 
CapeGate, Somerset and Rosebank malls, regional centre Hyde Park Corner and value centre Atterbury Value Mart (disposed on 
2 July 2021).

Hyprop’s investments in Eastern Europe, held via a 60% interest in UK-based Hystead Limited (Hystead), include interests in Delta City 
in Belgrade, Serbia; Delta City in Podgorica, Montenegro; Skopje City Mall in Skopje, Macedonia; The Mall in Sofia, Bulgaria; City Center 
One East and City Center One West, both in Zagreb, Croatia.

The sub-Saharan African (excluding SA) portfolio includes interests in Ikeja City Mall in Lagos, Nigeria, Accra Mall and West Hills Mall in 
Accra, Ghana, and Kumasi City Mall in Kumasi, Ghana.

Strategy
The Group’s mission is to create safe environments and opportunities for people to connect and have authentic and meaningful 
experiences. This is achieved by owning and managing tangible assets (dominant retail centres in mixed-use precincts in key economic 
nodes) and non-tangible assets.

The Group’s operations are focussed on three strategic areas - the South African property portfolio, the Eastern European property 
portfolio and relevant non-tangible assets (specifically technology based non-tangible assets for the retail and property sectors). 

Long-term strategies to create sustainable returns for shareholders include repositioning the South African portfolio, improving the 
dominance of the Eastern European portfolio and developing the non-tangible asset strategy from the current base.

The process to dispose of the sub-Saharan Africa investments is ongoing, however, the group will continue to actively manage these 
assets until the exit strategy is completed.
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Strengthening the Group’s balance sheet and reducing foreign currency denominated borrowings secured against Rand denominated 
assets are key financial priorities. This is being achieved by refinancing hard currency debt with Rand denominated debt, utilising the 
proceeds from disposals of non-core assets to reduce debt, and preserving cash . 

The group aims to generate a total return for shareholders through balanced growth in distributable income and net asset value, based 
on a conservative balance sheet.

COVID-19 
COVID-19 continued to impact the Group’s financial performance for the 2021 year, with several tenants requiring ongoing rent 
reductions as their businesses struggled to recover from the first wave of the pandemic in 2020. The recovery from the effects of 
COVID-19 is expected to be slow, particularly in South Africa, given the weak economic environment. 

Having established the required principles and protocols to deal with the pandemic in the 2020 financial year, including policies 
covering rent relief granted to tenants, hygiene protocols and working arrangements with the Group’s major lenders, management 
were able to adjust the required COVID-19 procedures as lockdown conditions in different jurisdictions were relaxed and reimposed 
throughout the year.

Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and joint ventures
Details of investments in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and joint ventures are included in note E4 – Investments in subsidiaries and 
E5 – Investments in joint arrangements, to the financial statements.

As part of the Company’s non-tangible asset strategy, the Company co-founded (as a 56% shareholder) SOKO, which owns the SOKO 
intellectual property, and established the first SOKO District at Rosebank Mall, during the year. 

Performance review
Details of the Group and Company’s financial performance for the year ended 30 June 2021 are set out in the attached financial 
statements.

The Group’s net loss for the year decreased from R3 523 million in 2020 to R837 million in 2021. Distributable income for the year 
decreased from R1 258 million in 2020 to R1 035 million in 2021, and the distributable income per share decreased by 32% from 
493.4 cents to 336.5 cents.

The main reasons for the decrease in distributable income per share are:

•  the impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s South African, sub-Saharan African and Eastern European operations, and in particular, a 
decrease in dividends from Hystead;

•  the impact of negative rent reversions in the South African portfolio; 

•  the higher interest costs due to converting Dollar denominated debt to Rand denominated debt; and

•  the effect of an additional 53 million shares (equivalent to 21% of the number of shares in issue) being issued between 
January 2021 and May 2021.

Dividends declared
On 21 December 2020 it was announced that the Board had declared a further distribution of 66.26291 cents per share for the 
year ended 30 June 2020. This distribution, together with the interim distribution of 308.73709 cents per share, resulted in a total 
distribution of 375.0 cents per share for the 2020 financial year (the 2020 dividend). Shareholders were given the option to reinvest the 
2020 dividend in return for Hyprop shares (the 2020 DRIP). 

Shareholders holding 210 065 970 Hyprop shares (equivalent to 82% of the total number of issued Hyprop shares prior to the 
share reinvestment alternative) elected the share reinvestment alternative, resulting in the issue of 40 380 816 new Hyprop shares, 
with R777 million of cash being retained by Hyprop as new equity. A total cash dividend of R172 million was paid in respect of 
45 828 546 shares.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
continued
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On 10 September 2021 the board of directors declared a dividend of 336.5 cents per share for the year ended 30 June 2021 (the 2021 
dividend). Shareholders have been given the option to reinvest the 2021 dividend in return for Hyprop shares. 

Directorate and directors’ interests
DIRECTORATE

Spiros Noussis joined the board as an Independent non-executive director with effect from 27 July 2020.

Louis Norval resigned as a director at the Annual General Meeting on 24 November 2020.

The directors who served during the 2021 financial year are:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
continued

INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GR Tipper (Chairman) KM Ellerine AW Nauta (CIO)

AA Dallamore L Norval  
(Resigned 24 November 2020)

BC Till (CFO)

Z Jasper MC Wilken (CEO)

N Mandindi

TV Mokgatlha

S Noussis (Appointed 27 July 2020)

S Shaw-Taylor

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The interests of directors in the shares of the Company at 30 June 2021 were:

June 2021 June 2020

Direct 
beneficial

Indirect
beneficial Total

Direct
beneficial

Indirect
beneficial Total

Independent non-executive directors

GR Tipper 13 500                -           13 500       13 500               - 13 500

S Shaw-Taylor 21 500                - 21 500       21 500               -        21 500

Non-executive directors

KM Ellerine 1 -   3 000 000 3 000 000               -  378 000 378 000

Executive directors                -

MC Wilken 2 211 903        43 500        255 403 91 233       44 170      135 403

BC Till 2 133 859          1 200 135 059 44 110 1 200 45 310

AW Nauta 2 125 007                - 125 007 45 222               - 45 222

Total     505 769   3 044 700 3 550 469     215 565 423 370      638 935
1 Exposure in terms of off-market derivative transactions (Long call 2 000 000 shares, short call 500 000 shares, Short put 1 500 000 shares) at varying strike prices.

2 Includes shares awarded under the Hyprop Employee share scheme.

There have been no changes to the above interests between 30 June 2021 and the date of this report. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
continued

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No material contracts in which directors had an interest were entered into during the year, other than the transactions detailed in note 
K1 – Related-party transactions and balances, to the financial statements.

Capital structure and borrowings
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s authorised and issued share capital are set out in note G1 – Share capital and treasury shares, of the 
financial statements.

Pursuant to the 2020 DRIP, 40 380 816 new Hyprop shares were issued on 27 January 2021 at R19.25 per share.

On 20 May 2021, 12 794 725 shares were issued at R28.00 per share pursuant to the general authority to issue shares for cash, raising 
R358 million. The proceeds were used to strengthen the Company’s balance sheet.

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital between the year end and the date of this report.

BORROWINGS

The Company’s borrowings are not limited by its Memorandum of Incorporation, however, in terms of the JSE listings requirements, 
a REIT’s total consolidated borrowings may not exceed 60% of its consolidated gross asset value, as reflected in its latest published 
financial statements or results. Should the 60% threshold be exceeded, the Company may lose its REIT status.

Lowering the Group’s LTV ratio is a key priority and R1 billion of debt was settled during the year, including all of the Group’s Dollar 
denominated equity debt. Further reductions in Rand and / or Euro denominated debt will be funded using cash received from the 
disposal of assets (Atterbury Value Mart) and / or retained from distributions. The disposal of Ikeja City Mall will reduce the Group’s LTV 
ratio further. 

Hyprop’s loan-to-value (LTV) and interest cover ratios are set out in note H4 – Covenants and capital management, to the financial 
statements. The Company complied with all of its borrowing covenants at 30 June 2021.

Most of the Group’s debt due for repayment in the next 12 months comprises €238 million of debt relating to Hystead Limited, which 
is due between October 2021 and March 2022, and R1 268 million of Rand denominated loans and bonds issued under the Company’s 
DCM program. These will be settled from operating cashflow, existing undrawn facilities, proceeds from the disposal of assets and new 
bank facilities. Subsequent to 30 June 2021, the Company accepted new borrowing facilities of R3.9 billion from its major lenders.

Tax status
Hyprop is a REIT (Real Estate Investment Trust) in accordance with the South African Income Tax Act (the ITA) and in terms of the JSE 
Listings Requirements.

In terms of section 25BB of the ITA, a dividend paid / payable to Hyprop shareholders is deductible against Hyprop’s taxable income. 
As a consequence of this, South African income taxation has historically been reduced to zero, and dividends received by South African 
shareholders are free of dividend withholding tax.
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Acquisitions and disposals
IKEJA CITY MALL

On 9 November 2020 Hyprop announced that Hyprop Mauritius (as one of the sellers) had concluded an agreement (the SPA) to 
dispose of its 75% interest in Ikeja City Mall to two new property funds managed by the Actis Group (the transaction). The transaction 
remains subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions precedent, including certain fundraising requirements. Given the current lack of 
US Dollar liquidity in Nigeria, fulfilling this condition is taking longer than anticipated, however, the parties remain committed to the 
transaction and are working to fulfil the conditions precedent and / or find alternative ways to implement the transaction. 

The long stop date for the transaction has been extended to 31 October 2021 (the long stop date) and may be extended further by 
written agreement between the parties if the US Dollar liquidity shortage has not markedly improved by such date. The parties have 
agreed that the sellers may engage other potential buyers for the property and, should the sellers wish to enter into an agreement with 
such buyers, they may terminate the SPA prior to the long stop date. 

It remains Hyprop’s intention to exit its sub-Saharan Africa (excluding South Africa) investments. 

ATTERBURY VALUE MART

On 8 February 2021 it was announced that Hyprop had signed agreements for the sale of Atterbury Value Mart for an aggregate 
purchase consideration of R1 124 million. The sale was implemented on 2 July 2021, with the proceeds being utilised to strengthen the 
balance sheet.

DELTA CITY BELGRADE

Hystead has accepted an offer to sell Delta City in Belgrade for €115 million. The buyers have completed their due diligence and all 
material commercial terms have been agreed. The transaction is subject to certain conditions precedent, including finalisation and 
signature of legal agreements. Proceeds from the disposal will be utilised to reduce Hystead’s Euro equity debt.

Special resolutions
The following special resolutions were passed at the Company’s annual general meeting on 24 November 2020: 

1.  The Company or any of its subsidiaries are authorised by way of a general authority to acquire ordinary shares issued 
by the Company, in terms of sections 46 and 48 of the Companies Act, and subject to the relevant provisions of the JSE 
Listings Requirements.

2.  The board of directors of the Company may, subject to compliance with the requirements of the Company’s Memorandum of 
Incorporation, the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements, authorise the Company to provide direct or indirect financial 
assistance, as contemplated in section 45 of the Companies Act, by way of loans, guarantees, the provision of security or otherwise, 
to any of its present or future subsidiaries and / or any other Company or corporation that is or becomes related or inter-related 
(as defined in the Companies Act) to the Company for any purpose or in connection with any matter, such authority to endure for a 
period of not more than two years.

3.  The fees payable by the Company to non-executive directors for their services as directors (in terms of section 66 of the Companies 
Act) were approved for a period of one year from the passing of the resolution, or until such fees are revised by a further 
resolution(s) of shareholders, whichever is the earliest.

4.  The memorandum of Incorporation of the Company was amended by the passing of 4 separate special resolutions as follows:

 a)  in the case of any corporate action (including any capitalisation issue, scrip dividend, dividend reinvestment plan, distribution 
in specie or any similar corporate action) undertaken by the Company in terms of which shareholders are afforded an election 
between more than one alternative (including but not limited to a cash alternative), the directors may determine that, in the 
absence of an election by a shareholder, a particular alternative (which does not have to be a cash alternative) will be applicable 
to such shareholder; 
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 b)  the directors may determine that the Company’s obligation to settle the interim distribution declared for the 2020 financial 
year may be discharged by acknowledging an indebtedness on the part of the Company to pay the amount concerned on or 
no later than a specified future date, provided that the rights in respect of such indebtedness are capable of being applied by 
shareholders to subscribe for shares in terms of a dividend reinvestment mechanism or the like, on such basis as the directors 
may determine;

 c)  the directors may exclude, qualify or limit the participation of any shareholders or category of shareholders in certain corporate 
actions, if and to the extent that they consider it necessary or expedient to do so, because of legal impediments or the need 
to comply with the laws or the requirements of any regulatory body of any foreign territory, that may be applicable to such 
corporate action; and

 d)  the directors may not issue unissued ordinary shares unless such ordinary shares have first been offered to existing ordinary 
shareholders in proportion to their shareholding of that class of shares (on such terms and in accordance with such procedures 
as the Board may determine), or as otherwise permitted in terms of the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements.

Administration and management
Property and asset management in Hyprop’s South African operations are internalised. No property or asset management fees were 
paid to third parties in South Africa during the year.

Audit and risk committee report
The report of the audit and risk committee is set out on pages 111 to 115 of the annual financial statements.

The committee has fulfilled its responsibilities during the year, including having satisfied itself as to the independence of the external 
auditor and their suitability for reappointment for the ensuing year.

Auditor
KPMG Inc. was reappointed as the auditor in accordance with part C of section 90 of the Companies Act of South Africa at the Annual 
General Meeting held on 24 November 2020. 

Going concern
The financial statements are prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis takes into account 
that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities will occur in the 
ordinary course of business.

In assessing the Company and Group’s abilities to continue as going concerns, the board and the audit and risk committee reviewed the 
Company and Group’s budget and cashflow forecasts, available cash balances, existing unutilised and available new borrowing facilities, 
and the Group’s debt maturity profile. Cognisance was also taken of the ongoing effect that COVID-19 is having on the economies in 
which the Group operates, and on the Group’s financial performance.

At 30 June 2021 the Group’s net asset value was R19.3 billion, the Group had cash balances of R941 million (including assets held for 
sale) and undrawn revolving credit facilities of R950 million, however, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets 
by R951 million and the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by R943 million (excluding assets held for sale), due to 
borrowings which mature in less than one year (see note H1.3).
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GR Tipper
Chairman
GR Tipper MC Wilken

Chief Executive Offi  cer
MC Wilken BC Till

Chief Financial Offi  cer
BC Till

Johannesburg, 13 September 2021

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
continued

Th e Company and Group propose to settle the short-term borrowings from existing cash balances, existing or new bank facilities and 
proceeds from the disposal of assets, as detailed below:

•  At 30 June 2021 Atterbury Value Mart was classifi ed as an asset held for sale. Th e sale was completed on 2 July 2021 and net cash 
proceeds of R1.1 billion received; and

•  Subsequent to 30 June 2021 the Company accepted R3.9 billion of new borrowing facilities from banks. Th ese facilities will be used 
to refi nance Group borrowings which mature in the ensuing 12 months.

Th e directors consider that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue operating for the ensuing 12 months and 
that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Company and Group fi nancial statements. 

Trading statements
Hyprop uses dividend per share as the relevant measure of its fi nancial results for trading statement purposes.

Approval of the consolidated fi nancial statements
Th e fi nancial statements of Hyprop Investments Limited, as identifi ed in the fi rst paragraph, were approved by the board of directors on 
13 September 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:
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Responsibility statement on 
internal fi nancial controls
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Th e directors, whose names are stated below, hereby confi rm that:

•  the Annual Financial Statements (AFS) set out on pages 130 to 231, fairly present in all material respects the fi nancial position, 
fi nancial performance and cash fl ows of Hyprop in terms of IFRS;

•  no facts have been omitted or untrue statements made that would make the AFS false or misleading;

•  internal fi nancial controls have been put in place to ensure that material information relating to Hyprop and its consolidated 
subsidiaries has been provided to eff ectively prepare the fi nancial statements of Hyprop; and

•  the internal fi nancial controls are adequate and eff ective and can be relied upon in compiling the AFS, having fulfi lled our role and 
function within the combined assurance model pursuant to principle 15 of the King Code. Where we are not satisfi ed, we have 
disclosed to the Audit Committee and the auditors the defi ciencies in design and operational eff ectiveness of the internal fi nancial 
controls and any fraud that involves directors, and have taken the necessary remedial action.

MC Wilken
Chief Executive Offi  cer
MC Wilken BC Till

Chief Financial Offi  cer
BC Till

Johannesburg, 13 September 2021



www.hyprop.co.za     |     172021 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Hyprop Investments Limited

Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Hyprop Investments Limited (the Group and Company) set out 
on pages 130 to 231, which comprise the statements of financial position at 30 June 2021, and the statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statements of changes in equity and the statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate 
financial position of Hyprop Investments Limited at 30 June 2021, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and 
consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Group and Company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code 
of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits 
of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in 
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the 
corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (including International Independence Standards). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated 
and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

The group’s and company’s most significant asset are its investment property portfolio. 
Investment property is subsequently measured at fair value, with changes in fair value 
recognised in profit or loss.

The group and company used external independent valuers to value the investment 
properties. The valuation process involves making significant assumptions and judgements. 
The key valuation assumptions are set out in note E1.7.3.

There is still some uncertainty over the local and global economy due to the continued 
impact of COVID-19. Even though the vaccine roll outs are improving in South Africa, 
it is difficult to predict how long it will take before the economy is stabilized and what 
the medium to longer term impact will be on projected future cash flows and rental 
growth rates.

Due to the magnitude of the investment property portfolio held and the significance of 
the judgements made in measuring the investment property at fair value, this matter 
was considered to be a key audit matter in our audit of the consolidated and separate 
financial statements.

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT

Our response to the key audit matter included performing the following audit procedures:

•  We evaluated the competence, and objectivity of the external valuers. This assessment 
included but was not limited to assessing their professional qualifications, experience 
and independence from the group and company.

•  Through discussions with the external valuers, we obtained an understanding of the 
valuation process adopted; the significant assumptions used, critical judgements applied 
in the valuation process, including contracted revenue, vacancy levels and the initial and 
reversionary capitalisation rates.

•  The audit team challenged the assumptions used by the external valuers and assessed 
information provided to the external valuers by management to value the properties. 
The procedures included:

 •  Assessing the reasonability of the forecasted cash flows by comparing the forecasted 
rental revenue, rental relief provided and property expense to the current year 
actuals and following up on any large differences.

 •  Assessing the external valuers year on year cash flow assumptions, rental growth 
rates, vacancy rates, capitalisation rates and discount rates against the current 
economic outlook and available market information.

 •  Selecting a sample of tenants per property and:
  -  ensuring a lease contract exists for the tenant; and
  -  ensuring the lease contract details are accurately recorded.

 •  Our corporate finance specialist evaluated the external valuations of a sample 
of investment properties and challenged the underlying valuation methodology 
and inputs, including any COVID-19 related assumptions and adjustments, to the 
valuations against industry benchmarks and available market information.

 •  We have also assessed the reasonability of managements COVID-19 assumptions 
and adjustments to the cash flow forecasts for reasonability based on the level of 
current rental remissions and rental reversions.

•  We considered the adequacy and completeness of the disclosures, in accordance with 
IAS 40, Investment property associated with investment property valuation.

Valuation of 
investment property - 
Group and Company
Refer to the accounting policies and 
key judgements and estimations 
in A2.1 and A2.2 and E1 for the 
investment property note  
to the consolidated and  
separate financial  
statements.
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Valuation of 
investment in Hystead 
Limited (Hystead) - 
Group and Company
Refer to the accounting policies  
and the key judgements and  
estimations in A2.2 and  
note E6 to the consolidated  
and separate financial  
statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

The Group and Company hold a portfolio of investment properties in South-Eastern Europe, 
through Hystead that are funded in Euro’s with credit enhancement provided mainly by 
Hyprop (referred to as the Hystead structure).

The Hystead structure and the rights and obligations in the contracts underlying that 
structure are complex.

The valuation of the right to receive dividends and deferral of that right relies on the 
selection of the appropriate valuation models and judgements made about the key 
unobservable inputs to those models as set out in note E6.7.

The impacts of COVID-19 also adds an additional layer of uncertainty in the underlying 
assumptions used. It is difficult to predict how quickly the market will recover or improve 
over the next few years. 

Due to the complexity of the Hystead structure and the significance of the judgements 
made in the related valuations, this matter was considered to be a key audit matter in our 
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements.

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT

Our response to the key audit matter included performing the following audit procedures:

•  We obtained an understanding from management on whether there had been any 
changes to the shareholders’ agreement, funding agreements and other terms and 
conditions used to confirm our understanding of the Hystead structure.

•  With the assistance of our corporate finance specialist, we evaluated management’s 
selection of the valuation model for the right to receive dividends, and the significant 
assumptions and judgements used in the valuation process. This included an assessment 
of the reasonability of the discount rates used. Our corporate finance specialists 
recalculated a range for the discount rates used considering the specific risk profile of 
the properties and regions in which they operate and compared this to management’s 
discount rates.

•  For a selection of key inputs to the valuation models, we compared the inputs used by 
management to available internal and external sources.

•  We evaluated the reasonableness of the dividend forecasts and growth rates applied 
in terms of the underlying performance of Hystead. This included assessing Hystead’s 
profit forecasts by challenging the assumptions, including any COVID-19 assumptions, 
used in the forecasts against lease escalation rates and industry growth rates. We also 
analysed the current operating income trajectory and average foot traffic levels at each 
of the underlying malls to support managements forecasts.

•  We evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures, in accordance with IFRS 9, Financial 
instruments (IFRS 9) in respect of the unobservable inputs made by management in 
relation to the valuation of the investment in Hystead.
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Recoverability  
of investment in  
joint venture:  
AttAfrica – Group
Refer to the accounting policies and 
the key judgements and  
estimations in A2.2 and  
note E5 to the consolidated  
financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Hyprop’s wholly owned subsidiary, Hyprop Mauritius Investments Limited (“Hyprop MU”), 
has an equity interest of 50% in AttAfrica Limited (“AttAfrica”) which is based in Mauritius. 
In the current period Hyprop MU has converted their shareholder loan in AttAfrica to equity. 
The interest in AttAfrica is equity accounted in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant judgements, and assumptions have been applied by management to:

•  Determine if the investment is impaired; and

•  Evaluate the recoverability of the underlying property assets held by AttAfrica and the 
costs likely to be incurred in order to realise these assets.

Due to the significant judgements applied in estimating the recoverability of this investment, 
this matter was considered to be a key audit matter in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements.

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR AUDIT

Our response to the key audit matter included the following audit procedures:

•  We reviewed the debt to equity conversion agreements to ensure that the amended 
terms and reserve matters still result in joint control for Hyprop MU in accordance with 
IFRS 11, Joint arrangements.

•  We assessed the agreements and resultant debt to equity conversion to ensure 
compliance with the requirements of IFRS 9 and IAS 28, Investments in associates and 
joint ventures.  

•  We evaluated management’s assessment of the recoverability of the underlying 
property assets with reference to current economic performance by independently 
assessing the reasonability of assumptions and judgements made by management. 
This included:

 •  Assessing the reasonableness of the fair values of each of the underlying property 
assets and liabilities in AttAfrica which can be recovered through the sale of shares 
of the investment holding company at the loan expiry date by incorporating forward 
looking information where possible. This included:

  -  Assessing the appropriateness of the fair values of investment properties held 
through assessment of the external valuations obtained. We considered the 
competence and objectivity of the external valuer, the appropriateness of the 
valuation methodology used to value the properties considering the manner in 
which the investment properties are expected to be recovered.

  -  Assessing the costs expected to be incurred in order to realise the assets through 
inspection and corroboration of existing agreements in place and management’s 
estimates of future costs.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
document titled "Hyprop Investments Limited and its subsidiaries Consolidate and Separate Financial Statements for the year 
ended 30 June 2021", which includes the Directors’ Report, the Report of the audit and risk committee’s and the Declaration by the 
company secretary as required by the Companies Act of South Africa and the Responsibility statement on internal financial controls 
which we obtained prior to the date of this report, the Integrated Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that 
date. The other information does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit 
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group and Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group and / or company or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and 
separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's and Company's internal control.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the directors.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group 
and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and / or Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
continued
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•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate fi nancial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate fi nancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

•   Obtain suffi  cient appropriate audit evidence regarding the fi nancial information of the entities or business activities within the group 
to express an opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signifi cant audit 
fi ndings, including any signifi cant defi ciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
communicate  with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most signifi cance in the audit of the 
consolidated and separate fi nancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefi ts of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that KPMG Inc. has been 
the auditor of Hyprop Investments Limited for six years.

KPMG Inc

Per TA Middlemiss 
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor
Director

14 September 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
continued
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Statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2021 GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

Note  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 
Revenue D1.1.2 2 781 339 3 102 342 2 559 028 2 890 220

Rental and other lease income1 2 112 847 2 184 811 1 928 082 2 003 636
Straight-line rental income accrual (114 705) 118 286 (114 218) 125 927
Non-lease income1 67 165 76 311 65 650 74 577
Recoveries 716 032 722 934 679 514 686 080

Changes in expected credit losses - trade receivables N5.2.3.1 (72 253) (77 682) (58 006) (35 786)
Property expenses D3.1 (1 178 249) (1 139 721) (1 101 683) (1 069 565)
Net property income 1 530 837 1 884 939 1 399 339 1 784 869
Other operating income2 D2 55 341 18 783 50 979 18 783
Other operating expenses D3.2 (122 718) (89 130) (107 668) (87 923)
Net foreign exchange (loss) / profit 2 D3.3 (51 778) 2 088 (12 807) 9 894 
Operating income 1 411 682 1 816 680 1 329 843 1 725 623 
Net interest D5.2 (521 971) (548 395) (404 520) (353 382)

Interest income 26 842 88 997 30 922 58 751 
Interest expense (548 813) (637 392) (435 442) (412 133)

Net operating income 889 711 1 268 285 925 323 1 372 241 
Guarantee fee income H3.3.2 3 635 22 111 3 635 22 111 
Dividends received D6.2 19 833 120 630 19 833 120 630 
Loss from equity accounted investments E5.5.3 (4 016) - -  -  
Net income before value adjustments 909 163 1 411 026 948 791 1 514 982 
Changes in fair value (1 661 020) (4 620 263) (1 664 711) (4 226 222)

Investment property E1.5 (1 587 323) (4 668 419) (1 587 224) (4 277 145)
Other investments -  (45 172) -  (45 172)
Financial asset - Hystead E6.4 (235 738) 314 528 (235 738) 314 528 
Derivative instruments H2 162 041 (221 200) 158 251 (218 433)

Changes in expected credit losses - loans receivable F1.6 -  (289 974) (69) (44 620)
Impairment of investment in subsidiary E4.4 -  -  (650 600) (398 020)
Changes in expected credit losses - financial guarantees H3.6 16 665 (16 665) 16 665 54 497 
Derecognition of financial guarantees H3.6 -  -  114 861 -  
Loss before taxation (735 192) (3 515 876) (1 235 063) (3 099 383)
Taxation D7.3 (101 500) (7 150) (92 178) (7 637)
Loss for the year (836 692) (3 523 026) (1 327 241) (3 107 020)

Loss for the year attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company (811 620) (3 401 849) (1 327 241) (3 107 020)
Non-controlling interests (25 072) (121 177) -  -  

Loss for the year (836 692) (3 523 026) (1 327 241) (3 107 020)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) / INCOME
Items that may be reclassified subsequently  
to profit or loss (net of taxation) (140 162) 22 718 -  -  

Exchange differences on  
translation of foreign operations (153 966) 16 217 -  -  
Exchange differences on translation  
of foreign operations: non-controlling interest E7.6 13 804 6 501 -  -  

Total comprehensive loss for the year (976 854) (3 500 308) (1 327 241) (3 107 020)

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company (965 586) (3 385 632) (1 327 241) (3 107 020)
Non-controlling interests (11 268) (114 676) -  -  

Total comprehensive loss for the year (976 854) (3 500 308) (1 327 241) (3 107 020)
Basic loss per share (cents) B2.3 (297,4) (1 332,4)
Diluted loss per share (cents) B2.3 (296,9) (1 331,5)
1 Reallocation of Non-lease income: Casual parking income has been reallocated from Lease income to Non-lease income. See note D1.1.2.
2  Reallocation of foreign exchange gains and losses: Foreign exchange gains and losses have been reallocated from Other operating income to a separate line item. 

Comparative amounts have been reallocated accordingly.
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Statements of financial position
at 30 June 2021

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

Note  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

ASSETS

Non-current assets  22 993 712  25 190 146  24 484 536  25 977 518 
Investment property E1.4  21 398 499  23 874 363  21 398 499  23 874 363 

Straight-line rental income accrual E1.9  432 830  574 845  432 830  574 845 

Property, plant and equipment E2.2  261 306  206 236  251 238  206 236 

Investments in subsidiaries E4.3  -    -    2 068 248  758 264 

Investments in joint ventures E5.5.1  579 510  1 730  -    1 730 

Financial asset - Hystead E6.4  297 234  532 972  297 234  532 972 

Intangible assets F5.3  20 133  -    -    -   

Loans receivable F1.3  4 200  -    36 487  29 108 

Current assets  908 208  1 670 640  882 710  903 137 
Loans receivable F1.3  19 911  681 215  30 051  22 759 

Trade and other receivables F2.3  106 282  154 548  100 912  154 016 

Derivatives H2.3  4 324  -    4 324  -   

Cash and cash equivalents F3.2  777 691  834 877  747 423  726 362 

Assets classified as held-for-sale E7.3  2 976 164  2 098 918  1 130 856  -   

Total assets  26 878 084  28 959 704  26 498 102  26 880 655

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity and reserves  19 291 340  19 271 458  19 376 804  19 732 018 
Equity and reserves attributable  
to shareholders of the Company  19 357 485  19 346 335  19 376 804  19 732 018 

Stated capital G1.2  9 521 178  8 387 031  9 595 629  8 462 327 

Non-distributable reserves G2.2  8 458 956  10 313 904  8 237 458  10 627 549 

Share-based payment reserve L2.4  32 058  25 605  32 058  25 605 

Retained income  1 516 877  637 413  1 511 659  616 537 

Currency translation reserve  (171 584)  (17 618)  -    -   

Non-controlling interests  (66 145)  (74 877)  -    -   

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities  4 498 965  4 530 116  5 260 252  5 291 240 
Borrowings H1.3  4 132 704  4 074 183  4 893 829  4 835 307 

Financial guarantees H3.5  65 837  127 066  65 837  127 066 

Derivatives H2.3  113 368  233 669  113 368  233 669 

Deferred taxation I1.3  187 056  95 198  187 218  95 198 

Current liabilities  1 851 666  3 798 914  1 833 394  1 857 397 
Borrowings H1.3  1 281 593  2 463 877  1 267 611  425 000 

Financial guarantees H3.5  44 564  -    44 564  114 861 

Trade and other payables I2.2  507 199  494 710  506 655  479 305 

Taxation I4.2  3 746  -    -    -   

Dividend payable I3.2  -    788 347  -    790 041 

Derivatives H2.3  14 564  51 980  14 564  48 190 

Liabilities associated with assets classified as held-for-sale E7.3  1 236 113  1 359 216  27 652  -   

Total liabilities  7 586 744  9 688 246  7 121 298  7 148 637 

Total equity and liabilities  26 878 084  28 959 704  26 498 102  26 880 655



www.hyprop.co.za     |     252021 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

Statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2021

GROUP   R’000
Stated  
capital

Non- 
distributable 

reserves

Share- 
based 

payment 
reserve

Retained 
income

Currency 
 translation 

 reserve

Equity and 
reserves 

attributable 
to 

shareholders 
of the 

Company

Non- 
controlling 

interests
Total  

equity

Balance at  
30 June 2019 8 407 395 15 018 383  20 286  1 039 777  (33 835)  24 452 006  39 799  24 491 805 

Total comprehensive 
(loss) / income  -    -    -    (3 401 849)  16 217  (3 385 632)  (114 676)  (3 500 308)

Loss for the year  -    -    -    (3 401 849)  -    (3 401 849)  (121 177)  (3 523 026)

Other 
comprehensive 
income for the year  -    -    -    -    16 217  16 217  6 501  22 718 

Transactions  
with shareholders  
of the Company (20 364) (4 704 479)  5 319  2 999 485  -    (1 720 039)  -    (1 720 039)

Vesting of shares 5 655  -    (6 476)  821  -    -    -    -   

Forfeit of shares  -    -    (2 208)  -    -    (2 208)  -    (2 208)

Treasury  
shares purchased (26 019)  -    -    -    -    (26 019)  -    (26 019)

Share-based 
payment expense  -    -    14 003  -    -    14 003  -    14 003 

Dividends declared  -    -    -    (1 705 815)  -    (1 705 815)  -    (1 705 815)

Net transfer to non-
distributable reserve  -    (4 704 479)  -    4 704 479  -    -    -    -   

Balance at  
30 June 2020  8 387 031  10 313 904  25 605  637 413  (17 618)  19 346 335  (74 877)  19 271 458 

Total comprehensive 
(loss) / income  -    -    -    (811 620)  (153 966)  (965 586)  (11 268)  (976 854)

Loss for the year  -    -    -    (811 620)  -    (811 620)  (25 072)  (836 692)

Other 
comprehensive 
(loss) / income  
for the year  -    -    -    -    (153 966)  (153 966)  13 804  (140 162)

Transactions  
with shareholders  
of the Company  1 134 147  (1 854 948)  6 453  1 691 084  -    976 736  20 000  996 736 

Vesting of shares  845  -    (2 121)  1 276  -    -    -    -   

Forfeit of shares  -    -    (8 036)  -    -    (8 036)  -    (8 036)

Shares issued  1 133 302  -    -    -    -    1 133 302  -    1 133 302 

Share-based 
payment expense  -    -    16 610  -    -    16 610  -    16 610 

Business 
combinations  -    -    -    -    -    -    20 000  20 000 

Dividends declared  -    -    -    (165 140)  -    (165 140)  -    (165 140)

Net transfer to non-
distributable reserve  -    (1 854 948)  -    1 854 948  -    -    -    -   

Balance at  
30 June 2021  9 521 178  8 458 956  32 058  1 516 877  (171 584)  19 357 485  (66 145)  19 291 340 

Note G1.2 G2.2 L2.4
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
continued

COMPANY   R’000
Stated  
capital

Non- 
distributable 

reserves

Share- 
based 

payment 
reserve

Retained 
income

Total  
equity

Balance at 30 June 2019  8 462 327  15 111 577  20 286  946 431  24 540 621 

Total comprehensive loss  -    -    -    (3 107 020)  (3 107 020)
Loss for the year  -    -    -    (3 107 020)  (3 107 020)

Transactions with shareholders of the Company  -    (4 484 028)  5 319  2 777 126  (1 701 583)
Vesting of shares  -    -    (6 476)  2 670  (3 806)

Forfeit of shares  -    -    (2 208)  -    (2 208)

Share-based payment expense  -    -    14 003  -    14 003 

Dividends declared  -    -    -    (1 709 572)  (1 709 572)

Net transfer to non-distributable reserve  -    (4 484 028)  -    4 484 028  -   

Balance at 30 June 2020  8 462 327  10 627 549  25 605  616 537  19 732 018 

Total comprehensive loss  -    -    -    (1 327 241)  (1 327 241)
Loss for the year  -    -    -    (1 327 241)  (1 327 241)

Transactions with shareholders of the Company  1 133 302  (2 390 091)  6 453  2 222 363  972 027 
Vesting of shares  -    -    (2 121)  1 834  (287)

Forfeit of shares  -    -    (8 036)  -    (8 036)

Shares issued  1 133 302  -    -    -    1 133 302 

Share-based payment expense  -    -    16 610  -    16 610 

Dividends declared  -    -    -    (169 562)  (169 562)

Net transfer to non-distributable reserve  -    (2 390 091)  -    2 390 091  -   

Balance at 30 June 2021  9 595 629  8 237 458  32 058  1 511 659  19 376 804 

Note G1.2 G2.2 L2.4
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Statements of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2021

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

Note  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Net cash flows from operating activities  304 372  316 711  251 922  315 388 
Cash generated from operations J1  1 728 717  1 733 439  1 616 439  1 612 127 

Interest received  27 037  84 961  25 174  57 128 

Interest paid  (497 736)  (587 807)  (429 929)  (434 336)

Taxation (paid) / refunded J2.1  (159)  3 586  (159)  -   

Cash flows from operating activities before dividends    1 257 859  1 234 179  1 211 525  1 234 919 
Dividends paid J2.3  (953 487)  (917 468)  (959 603)  (919 531)

Net cash flows from investing activities    (281 221)  509 127  (2 248 055) (491 400)
Acquisition of and additions to investment property E1.5  (180 502)  (140 896)  (180 395)  (140 629)

Additions to property, plant and equipment E2.3  (120 879)  (83 695)  (109 099)  (71 379)

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired    4 527  -    -    -   

Increase in investment in subsidiary E4.4  -    -    (1 960 584)  (398 020)

Increase in investment in joint venture E5.5.1  -    (1 730)  -    (1 730)

Loans receivable repaid F1.5  -    669 396  -    -   

Loans receivable advanced F1.5  (4 200)  (70 856)  (17 810)  (16 550)

Dividends received J2.2  19 833  136 908  19 833  136 908 

Net cash flows from financing activities    124 032  (1 248 006)  2 030 388  (160 038)
Loans repaid H1.4  (3 556 339)  (2 469 969)  (825 000)  (1 408 020)

Loans raised H1.4  2 547 069  1 247 982  1 722 086  1 247 982 

Shares issued G1.2  1 133 302  -    1 133 302  -   

Shares repurchased G1.2  -    (26 019)  -    -   

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    147 183  (422 168)  34 255  (336 050)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    834 877  1 285 337  726 362  1 062 412 

Effects of changes in exchange rates    (82 477)  (28 137)  -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents transferred to assets classified as 
held-for-sale    (121 892)  (155)  (13 194)  -   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year F3.2  777 691  834 877  747 423  726 362
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Notes to the consolidated and separate 
financial statements
A.  Accounting policies
A1   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A1.1 Statement of compliance

 Hyprop Investments Limited is incorporated in South Africa and is a listed REIT. The Company’s registered office is 2nd Floor 
Cradock Heights, 21 Cradock Avenue, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196. Hyprop owns and manages retail and office investment 
properties in South Africa, Eastern Europe and Sub-Saharan Africa.

These consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, the SAICA Financial Reporting 
Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting 
Standards Council, the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa and the JSE Listings Requirements.

A1.2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the measurement of 
investment properties, investment property classified as held-for-sale and certain financial instruments, which are recorded at fair value, 
and incorporate the significant accounting policies set out below and in the individual notes to the financial statements.

All accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate financial statements are consistent with those 
applied in the consolidated and separate financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020, save as disclosed in note A3 - Changes 
in accounting policies and disclosures.

The financial information presented in the consolidated and separate financial statements comprises that of the parent company, 
Hyprop Investments Limited (the Company), together with its subsidiaries, including consolidated joint operations and joint ventures, 
presented as a single entity (the Group).

All values are presented in South African Rand, the functional currency of Hyprop Investments Limited, and are rounded to the nearest 
thousand Rand, unless indicated otherwise. 

A1.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the 
Group. Control is achieved when the Group: 

 • Has power over the investee

 • Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

 • Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that one or more of the elements listed 
above have changed during the year. 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of the Group. The results of 
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition or 
up to the date of disposal, as applicable.

A change in the ownership interest in a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group 
loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest and other 
components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

All intergroup transactions, unrealised profits and balances between group entities are eliminated on consolidation.

A1.4 Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are measured at the proportionate share of the non-controlling shareholders’ interest in the identifiable net 
assets of the relevant entity at the acquisition date, and are adjusted in the same proportion for the profit or loss at each reporting date.
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A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
continued

A2   KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

A2.1 Policy choices

The following accounting policy elections have been made by the Group (excluding elections applied as transitional arrangements on 
adoption of new or amended reporting standards):

ITEM OPTION POLICY CHOICE AND IMPACT NOTE

Investment property IAS 40: Investment property allows a choice 
between the fair value model and the cost 
model in recording investment property. 
The choice is made at a portfolio level.

The Group continues to apply the fair value 
model for all investment properties.

E1

Financial instruments  
– equity investments

IFRS 9: Financial instruments requires 
all equity investments within its scope to 
be measured at FVTPL except where the 
entity has elected to present changes in fair 
value in OCI. There is no cost exception for 
unquoted equities.

The Group has elected to recognise fair 
value changes in equity investments 
through profit or loss.

M1

Investments in 
subsidiaries, joint 
operations and 
associates

In terms of IAS 27: Consolidated and 
separate financial statements, investments 
in subsidiaries, associates and joint 
arrangements can be accounted for in the 
separate financial statements either at: 
cost; or at fair value in accordance with IFRS 
9; or using the equity method as described 
in IAS 28: Investments in associates and 
joint ventures.

The Company has elected to recognise 
these investments at cost in the separate 
financial statements and the joint 
operations are accounted for based on the 
proportionate share method. In addition, 
joint ventures are accounted for on the 
equity accounting basis in the consolidated 
financial statements.

E4, E5

A2.2 Estimates assumptions and judgements

Accounting policies for specific items in the financial statements are included in the relevant note to the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimates are an integral part of financial reporting and as such have an impact on the amounts reported for the 
Group’s income, expenses, assets and liabilities. Judgement in these areas is based on historical experience and reasonable expectations 
relating to future events.

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are applied in the following areas:

ITEM NATURE OF JUDGEMENT OR ESTIMATION NOTE

Investment property 
valuations

The valuation of investment properties requires judgement in the determination of, inter 
alia, future cash flows, appropriate discount rates and capitalisation rates.

The outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19), declared by the World Health 
Organisation as a global pandemic, has impacted global financial markets. Market 
activity has been impacted in many sectors and therefore less weight has been attached 
to market evidence for comparative purposes to inform opinions of the values. Given 
the unknown future impact that COVID-19 might have on the real estate market, less 
certainty should be attached to the valuations. 

E1

Classification as an 
associate or Joint 
Venture: AttAfrica

Management has considered whether the investment in AttAfrica should be classified as 
a joint venture or an associate. Hyprop Mauritius holds 50 ‘A’ ordinary shares in AttAfrica 
which entitle Hyprop Mauritius to receive 73,09% (2020: 73.09%) of the dividends 
declared by AttAfrica and to exercise 50% (2020: 50%) of the total votes exercisable by 
the shareholders of AttAfrica. Based on the shareholders’ agreement (concluded during 
the 2021 financial year), decisions regarding relevant activities need to be agreed to 
by both shareholders. Accordingly, Hyprop concluded that Hyprop Mauritius has joint 
control of AttAfrica.

E5
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ITEM NATURE OF JUDGEMENT OR ESTIMATION NOTE

Interests in co- owned 
assets / joint 
operations: 

Canal Walk and  
The Glen

Judgement is required to identify the relevant activities of the co-owned assets. Interests 
in co-owned assets are categorised as interests in joint operations as there is shared 
control of the co-owned assets. 

In terms of the co-ownership agreements for Canal Walk and The Glen, material capital 
expenditure requires the mutual consent of the co-owners. In view of the significant 
increases in development costs, most capital expenditure that is undertaken is material, 
and accordingly, these centres are not considered to be solely controlled by Hyprop. 

The interests in these centres are treated as joint operations.

E5

Impairment / recovery 
of investment: 
AttAfrica

The loan receivable by Hyprop Mauritius from AttAfrica was settled during the year 
from the proceeds of a new share issue by AttAfrica in terms of which Hyprop Mauritius 
subscribed for 50 “A” ordinary shares in AttAfrica.

The underlying investment properties in the Group’s Sub-Saharan African portfolio have 
been negatively affected by economic conditions in recent years, including the impact 
of COVID-19, the devaluation of local currencies against the US Dollar and increases in 
vacancies in certain of the malls.

In addition, during the 2019 financial year the Group reviewed its strategy, resulting in a 
decision to exit the Group’s sub-Saharan African investments. 

The aforementioned factors have resulted in a decrease in the valuation of the underlying 
property assets and consequently AttAfrica’ s NAV. The decrease in the NAV of AttAfrica 
impacted the already credit impaired (stage 3) loan receivable at 30 June 2020, which was 
settled during the year. The Rand value of the ‘A’ ordinary shares in AttAfrica was further 
impacted by the strengthening of the Rand against the US Dollar since June 2020.

The ‘A’ ordinary shares in AttAfrica, which reflect Hyprop’s share of the value of the 
underlying property investments at Group level, have been assessed for impairment. 

Key estimates and judgements considered in the impairment assessment are as follows:

•  The NAV of AttAfrica at 30 June 2021

•  The decision to sell the underlying investments

•  The market values of the underlying companies / properties

•  The costs likely to be incurred in order to sell the companies / properties

•  The conversion of loans receivable and preference shares to ‘A’ ordinary shares during 
the year

•  The expected performance of the underlying investments and investment properties 
in AttAfrica.

In performing the impairment assessment, no probability-weighted outcomes are used as 
the directors assumed a 100% loss given default on the calculated shortfall.

F1, E5

Control over an 
investee: Hystead

Management assessed whether it has control over Hystead based on the suite of 
agreements which govern the relationship between the shareholders of Hystead.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Hystead shareholders’ agreement which 
contemplated a ‘liquidity event’ (as defined in the shareholders’ agreement) would occur by 
31 May 2021, with a long-stop date for implementation on 31 May 2022, the shareholders’ 
agreement and related agreements continue to be in effect in their current form.

Due to the strategic nature of the Reserved matters contained in the Hystead 
shareholders’ agreement, which require approval by shareholders holding shares 
representing at least 75% of the total issued share capital of Hystead, Hyprop concluded 
that the Company does not have control over Hystead.

E6

A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
continued

A2   KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS continued

A2.2 Estimates assumptions and judgements continued
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ITEM NATURE OF JUDGEMENT OR ESTIMATION NOTE

Classification as an 
equity-accounted 
investment or financial 
instrument: Hystead

Management has considered whether the investment in Hystead should be classified 
as a joint venture and be equity accounted, or based on the contractual right to receive 
dividends as a result of the provisions of the Hystead shareholders’ agreement, should be 
classified as a financial asset.

Based on the provisions of the suite of agreements which govern the relationship 
between the shareholders of Hystead, Hystead has a contractual obligation to pay all of 
its distributable income as a dividend to its shareholders each year. Accordingly, Hyprop 
accounts for the investment in Hystead as a financial asset.

Management reassessed the classification and accounting treatment of the investment in 
Hystead and concluded that the classification as a financial asset remains appropriate.

E6

Valuation of financial 
asset and deferral of 
day-one gain: Hystead

The fair value of the right to receive dividends from Hystead has been valued based on 
the present value of anticipated future cash flows (dividends).

The valuation method includes assumptions derived from unobservable inputs. 
Management has therefore determined that the day-one gain should be deferred. 
However, the fair value movement subsequent to that date is taken through profit or loss.

E6

Financial guarantee 
liabilities: Hystead

The financial guarantee liabilities are valued at the higher of the IFRS 9 expected credit 
loss (ECL) allowance or the initial fair value. 

The valuation of the financial guarantee liabilities includes assumptions on credit default 
rates, credit risks, credit ratings and expected credit losses. The ECL model includes 
estimates relating to the probability of a default by the borrower and the resultant loss to 
the guarantor for each underlying borrower.

All guaranteed loans are term loans with interest being serviced quarterly. The capital is 
repayable at the end of the loan term. 

H3

Allowances for 
expected credit losses: 
Trade receivables

Trade receivables have been assessed for impairment based on lifetime expected credit 
losses using the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9. An estimate is made of credit 
losses based on a review of outstanding amounts at year end.

The expected credit losses are based on the payment profiles of trade receivables over 
a 24 month period and take into account the known financial circumstances of each 
tenant. The expected losses are adjusted for macroeconomic conditions which may affect 
tenants’ ability to pay as well as tenant-specific factors including: 

•  historical defaults on payment terms,

•  known insolvency and

•  the legal status of the receivables.

COVID-19 continues to have a negative effect on many of the Group’s tenants’ businesses, 
resulting in an increase in expected credit losses. Forward-looking information on 
economic and industry factors such as industry outlook, employment, trading conditions, 
COVID-19 related restrictions and lockdowns, and GDP informs the probability of default 
going forward.

F2.2

A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
continued

A2   KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS continued

A2.2 Estimates assumptions and judgements continued
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ITEM NATURE OF JUDGEMENT OR ESTIMATION NOTE

Classification as an 
Asset held-for-sale: 
Gruppo

On 9 November 2020 Hyprop announced that Hyprop Mauritius (as one of the sellers) 
had concluded an agreement (the SPA) to dispose of its 75% interest in Ikeja City Mall to 
two new property funds managed by the Actis Group (the transaction). 

The transaction remains subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions precedent, 
including certain fundraising requirements. Given the current lack of US Dollar liquidity 
in Nigeria, fulfilling this condition is taking longer than anticipated, however, the parties 
remain committed to the transaction and are working to fulfil the conditions precedent 
and / or find alternative ways to implement the transaction.

The long stop date for the transaction was initially extended to 31 July 2021 and 
subsequently to 31 October 2021, and may be extended further by written agreement 
between the parties if the US Dollar liquidity shortage has not improved by such date. 

The parties have agreed that Hyprop may engage other potential buyers for the property 
and, should the sellers wish to enter into an agreement with such potential buyers, they 
may terminate the SPA prior to the long stop date.

It remains Hyprop’s intention to exit its Sub-Saharan African investments and the 
parties remain committed to the transaction. Accordingly, Ikeja City Mall continues to be 
designated as held-for-sale at 30 June 2021.

E7

Taxation The Group is subject to income tax in numerous jurisdictions. Judgement is required in 
determining the provision for tax as there are many transactions and calculations for 
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.

A deferred taxation asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred taxation assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 
taxation benefit will be realised.

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax obligations based on estimates of 
the taxes that are likely to become due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is 
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the 
income tax and deferred tax provisions.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 
the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For this purpose, the carrying amount of 
investment property measured at fair value is presumed to be recovered through sale, 
and the Group has not rebutted this presumption.

I1

A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
continued

A2   KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS continued

A2.2 Estimates assumptions and judgements continued

A3   CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

A3.1 New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

The Group has adopted the new / amended accounting standards below for the first time with effect from 1 July 2020. None of these 
standards had a material impact on the financial statements for the current year.

 •  Amendments to IFRS 3: Business Combinations - Definition of a Business

 •  Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material

 •  Amendments to References to the conceptual framework in IFRS standards

 •  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)

 •  COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16).
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A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
continued

A4   STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of approval of these consolidated and separate financial statements, certain new accounting standards, amendments and 
interpretations to existing standards have been published but are not yet effective. These have not been early adopted by the Group.

Management anticipates that all of the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policies for the first period beginning 
after the effective date of the pronouncements.

Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the consolidated and separate 
financial statements is provided below.

 (i)     Standards expected to have a material impact, which are not yet effective (Impact assessed) There are no standards in 
this category.

 (ii)    Standards expected to have a material impact, which are not yet effective (Impact not assessed) There are no standards in 
this category.

 (iii)  Standards expected to have an immaterial impact, which are not yet effective.

A4.1  COVID-19-Related Rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to IFRS 16)  
(effective 1 April 2021)

The 2020 amendments to IFRS 16 introduced an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions 
that are a direct consequence of COVID-19. Under that practical expedient, a lessee is not required to assess whether eligible rent 
concessions are lease modifications, instead accounting for them in accordance with other applicable guidance.

If the IASB had taken no further action, the practical expedient would expire in a few months. The IASB has therefore extended the 
practical expedient by 12 months – i.e. permitting lessees to apply it to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments 
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022.

As the practical expedient applies only to lessees, the Group is not affected by this amendment.

A4.2  Onerous Contracts – Cost of fulfilling a contract (Amendments to IAS 37)  
(effective for contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations on or after 1 January 2022)

IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets did not previously specify which costs to include in estimating the cost 
of fulfilling a contract for purposes of assessing whether that contract is onerous. The amendment clarifies that the cost of fulfilling the 
contract includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling 
the contract.

A4.3  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020  
(effective 1 January 2022)

The changes make minor amendments to IFRS 1: First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 9: 
Financial Instruments, IAS 41: Agriculture and the Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16: Leases. The IASB issued several 
small amendments to IFRS standards as part of this cycle of annual improvements. The changes clarify the wording or correct minor 
consequences, oversights or conflicts between requirements in the Standards.

A4.4  Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before intended use (Amendments to IAS 16)  
(effective on 1 January 2022)

The change prohibits a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items 
produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognise such sales proceeds and 
related costs in profit or loss.
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A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
continued

A4.5  Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)  
(effective 1 January 2022)

The change is an update to a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting and does not change the 
accounting requirements for business combinations.

A4.6  Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)  
(effective 1 January 2023)

The amendments only affect the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position — not the amount or timing of 
recognition of any asset, liability, income or expense, or the information that entities disclose about those items. The changes clarify:

 •  that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based on rights that are in existence at the end of the 
reporting period and align the wording in all affected paragraphs to refer to the “right” to defer settlement by at least twelve 
months and make explicit that only rights in place “at the end of the reporting period” should affect the classification of 
a liability;

 •   that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability; 

 •  that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services, thereby clarifying 
that – when classifying liabilities as current or non-current – a company can ignore only those conversion options that are 
recognised as equity.

Although the amendments are not effective until 2023, the Group will review its debt classification for the 2022 financial year.

A4.7  Disclosure of accounting policy (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS practice statement 2) 
(effective 1 January 2023)

The amendments provide more guidance to help companies decide what accounting policy information should be disclosed. The 
amendments to IAS 1 require companies to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their significant 
accounting policies. The amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to 
accounting policy disclosures.

A4.8   Definition of accounting estimate (Amendments to IAS 8)  
(effective 1 January 2023)

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. That 
distinction is important because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions and other future 
events only, but changes in accounting policies are generally also applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events.

A4.9  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)  
(effective 1 January 2021)

The Phase 2 amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting during the reform of an interest rate benchmark, 
including the effects of changes to contractual cash flows or hedging relationships arising from the replacement of an interest rate 
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate (replacement issues).

The IASB amended the requirements of IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 relating to: changes in the basis for determining 
contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities, hedge accounting; and disclosures. The Phase 2 
amendments apply only to changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to financial instruments and hedging relationships.

A4   STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE continued
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B.  Performance analyses
B1  DISTRIBUTABLE INCOME AND DIVIDEND PER SHARE

B1.1 Distributable income and dividend per share for the year (Non-IFRS information) 

GROUP and COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

B1.1.1 Distributable income per share for the year  Cents   Cents  

 336.5  493.4 
Six months ended 31 December  160.6  335.6 

Six months ended 30 June  175.9  157.8 

B1.1.2 Dividend per share for the year  Cents   Cents  

 336.5  375.0 
Six months ended 31 December  -    308.7 

Year1 / six months ended 30 June  336.5  66.3 
1 The 30 June distribution for 2021 represents a full year distribution

B1.2 Dividends declared / paid

B1.2.1 Dividend per share declared (cents)

 66.3  668.0 
Interim dividend declared (- /  February 2020)  -    308.7 

Final dividend declared (December 2020 / August 2019)  66.3  359.3 

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

B1.2.2 Total dividend declared  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Dividends declared / paid2  165 140  1 705 815  169 562  1 709 572 
Interim dividend in respect of the six months ended  
31 December 2020 (31 December 2019) 3  -    788 348  -    790 041 

Final dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2020  
(six months ended 30 June 2019)  165 140  917 467  169 562  919 531 
2 This amount is reflected in the statement of changes in equity

3  Refer to note I3 - Dividend payable.

On 21 December 2020 it was announced that the Board had declared a further distribution of 66.26291 cents per share for the year 
ended 30 June 2020. The further distribution, together with the interim distribution of 308.73709 cents per share, resulted in a total 
distribution of 375.0 cents per share for the 2020 financial year (the 2020 dividend). Shareholders were given the option to reinvest the 
2020 dividend in return for Hyprop shares.

Shareholders holding 210 065 970 Hyprop shares (equivalent to 82% of the total number of issued Hyprop shares prior to the share 
reinvestment alternative) elected the share reinvestment alternative, resulting in the issue of 40 380 816 new Hyprop shares, and 
R777 million of cash being retained by Hyprop as new equity. A total cash dividend of R172 million was paid in respect of  
45 828 546 shares.

B. PERFORMANCE ANALYSES
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B. PERFORMANCE ANALYSES
continued

B2  EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings

The calculation of basic and headline earnings per share is based on the total profit or loss attributable to shareholders of the Company, 
adjusted as shown in the reconciliation below.

Number of shares

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is based on the actual number of ordinary shares in issue adjusted for the 
treasury shares held by the Group, and has been used to calculate basic earnings per share and headline earnings per share. Where 
there are share movements during the year a time weighting factor is applied to those movements.

Diluted number of shares

The diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is calculated after taking into account the effect of all potentially 
dilutive shares which may be issued under the Hyprop Share Scheme.

GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

B2.1 Earnings reconciliation - basic to headline earnings Note  R’000  R’000 
Loss for the year attributable to shareholders of the company (basic earnings) (811 620)  (3 401 849)

Headline earnings adjustments 1 705 898  4 450 404 

Change in fair value of investment property E1.5 1 702 028  4 550 133 

Non-controlling interests share of change in fair value of investment property  (146)  (99 729)

Loss from equity accounted investments 4 016  -   

Headline earnings 894 278  1 048 555 

B2.2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares  Number of shares 
Shares in issue at the beginning of the year  255 894 516  255 894 516 

Effect of shares issued during the year 18 620 288  -   

Effect of treasury shares held (1 634 905)  (575 687)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 272 879 899 255 318 829 
Effect of dilutive shares 506 637 170 846 

Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 273 386 536 255 489 675 

B2.3 (Loss) / earnings per share (cents per share)  cents  cents 

Basic loss per share (EPS)  (297.4) (1 332.4)
Loss for the year attributable to shareholders of the company (basic earnings) 
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

Diluted loss per share (DEPS)  (296.9) (1 331.5)
Loss for the year attributable to shareholders of the company (basic earnings) 
divided by the diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

Headline earnings per share (HEPS) 327.7 410.7 

Headline earnings divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

Diluted headline earnings per share (DHEPS) 327.1  410.4 
Headline earnings divided by the diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.
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B. PERFORMANCE ANALYSES
continued

B3   NET ASSET VALUES

NAV

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share is calculated by dividing the equity and reserves attributable to Hyprop shareholders (as reflected on 
the statement of financial position) by the number of ordinary shares in issue at the end of the year less treasury shares.

TNAV (Non-IFRS information)

Tangible Net Asset Value (TNAV) per share is calculated by dividing tangible net asset value (as calculated below) by the number of 
ordinary shares in issue at the end of the year less treasury shares.

The effect of outstanding / unvested shares awarded to employees under the share scheme is not material.

B3.1 Calculation

The following table reflects the net asset and share data used in the NAV and TNAV per share calculations:

GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

Note  R’000  R’000 
Equity and reserves attributable to Hyprop shareholders  19 357 485  19 346 335 

Adjusted for:

Intangible assets F5.3  (20 133)  -   

Deferred taxation I1.3  187 056  95 198 

Tangible Net Asset Value  19 524 408  19 441 533 

 # of shares  # of shares 
Number of ordinary shares in issue G1.3 309 070 057 255 894 516 

Treasury shares G1.3 (1 630 766) (1 649 191)

Net number of ordinary shares in issue 307 439 291 254 245 325 

NAV per share (Rand)1  62.96  76.09 

TNAV per share (Rand)  63.51  76.47 
1  The prior year net asset value per share is calculated on the basis that the dividend payable for the six months ended  

31 December 2019 of R3.08 per share, is a liability.
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C.  Segmental analysis
C1  OVERVIEW AND DEFINITIONS

An operating segment is:

 •  a component of an entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue;

 •  the operating results of which are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated and to assess its performance; and

 •  for which financial information is available.

The Group’s identification of its segments and the measurement of segment results are based on the Group’s internal management 
reporting used for day-to-day decision-making and reviewed by the chief executive officer (who is the Group’s chief operating decision 
maker). The segments have been identified according to their location. The primary measures of segment performance are net 
operating income and distributable income.

Intersegment revenues and transfers are accounted for as if the transactions were concluded with third parties at arm’s length 
market prices.

The segments are supported by the Group head office, which provides support in the areas of finance, legal, human resources, 
governance and compliance, risk management and information technology. 

Properties (of any previous segment) that have been classified as held-for-sale according to IFRS 5: Non-current assets held-for-sale are 
reported under their geographic segments. There are two properties which are held-for-sale (2020: one).

The Group comprises the following business segments and sectors:

BUSINESS SEGMENT DESCRIPTION AND BASIS OF SEGMENTATION SECTOR

South Africa The SA portfolio comprises all South African shopping malls and offices irrespective of 
size. There are nine centres in this segment (2020: nine), one of which is held-for-sale in 
the current year. 

Included in this segment are the combined results of the various support services 
provided to the Group from South Africa including: Group finance, Group asset 
management and development, human resources, legal and compliance, information 
technology, investor relations, Group marketing and Group facilities management. 

SA

Eastern Europe The EE portfolio comprises interests in dominant shopping centres in the Balkan region of 
Eastern Europe held through the Group’s 60% interest in Hystead.

There are six properties in this segment (2020: six).

EE

Sub-Saharan Africa The SSA portfolio comprises interests in four shopping centres in western Africa, held 
through Hyprop Mauritius, a wholly owned subsidiary, and AttAfrica, a joint venture.

One of the properties in this segment is held-for-sale (2020: one)

SSA

C. SEGMENTAL ANALYSES



www.hyprop.co.za     |     392021 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

C. SEGMENTAL ANALYSES
continued

C2  SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS – PROFIT OR LOSS

June 2021  R’000
SOUTH  
AFRICA

EASTERN  
EUROPE

SUB-  
SAHARAN 

 AFRICA GROUP

Revenue  2 559 028  -    222 311  2 781 339 

Rental and other lease income  1 928 082  -   184 765 2 112 847 

Straight-line rental income accrual  (114 218)  -   (487) (114 705)

Non-lease income  65 650  -   1 515  67 165 

Recoveries  679 514  -   36 518  716 032 

Changes in expected credit losses - trade receivables  (58 006)  -   (14 247)  (72 253)

Property expenses  (1 101 683)  -   (76 566)  (1 178 249)

Net property income  1 399 339  -   131 498  1 530 837 

Other operating income  50 979  -   4 362  55 341 

Other operating expenses  (116 346)  -    (6 372)  (122 718)

Net foreign exchange loss  (2 878)  (4 242)  (44 658)  (51 778)

Operating income  1 331 094  (4 242)  84 830  1 411 682 

Net interest  (410 361)  -    (111 610)  (521 971)

Interest income  25 080  -    1 762  26 842 

Interest expense  (435 441)  -    (113 372)  (548 813)

Net operating income / (loss)  920 733  (4 242)  (26 780)  889 711 

Guarantee fee income  -    3 635  -    3 635 

Dividends received  -    19 833  -    19 833 

Loss from equity accounted investments  -    -    (4 016)  (4 016)

Net income / (loss) before value adjustments  920 733  19 226  (30 796)  909 163 

Changes in fair value  (1 428 973)  (235 738)  3 691  (1 661 020)

Changes in expected credit losses - financial guarantees  -    16 665  -    16 665 

Loss before taxation  (508 240)  (199 847)  (27 105)  (735 192)

Taxation  (92 178)  -    (9 322)  (101 500)

Loss for the year  (600 418)  (199 847)  (36 427)  (836 692)

Calculation of distributable income (Non-IFRS information)

Net income / (loss) before value adjustments  920 733  19 226  (30 796)  909 163 

Adjusted for:  120 942  -    4 584  125 526 

Straight-line rental income accrual  114 218  -    487  114 705 

Non-controlling interests  3 875  -    20 703  24 578 

Net interest adjustments  -    -    (1 741)  (1 741)

Tax adjustments  (159)  -    (8 109)  (8 268)

Loss from equity accounted investments  -    -    4 016  4 016 

Gruppo non-remittable income  -    -    (55 400)  (55 400)

Capital items for distribution purposes  3 008  -    44 628  47 636 

Distributable income  1 041 675  19 226  (26 212)  1 034 689
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C. SEGMENTAL ANALYSES
continued

C2  SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS – PROFIT OR LOSS continued

June 2020  R’000
SOUTH  
AFRICA

EASTERN  
EUROPE

SUB-  
SAHARAN 

 AFRICA GROUP

Revenue  2 890 220  -    212 122  3 102 342 

Rental and other lease income  2 003 636  -    181 175  2 184 811 

Straight-line rental income accrual  125 927  -    (7 641)  118 286 

Non-lease income  74 577  -    1 734  76 311 

Recoveries  686 080  -    36 854  722 934 

Changes in expected credit losses - trade receivables  (35 786)  -    (41 896)  (77 682)

Property expenses  (1 069 565)  -    (70 156)  (1 139 721)

Net property income  1 784 869  -    100 070  1 884 939 

Other operating income  18 783  -    -    18 783 

Other operating expenses  (87 933)  -    (1 197)  (89 130)

Net foreign exchange profit / (loss)  3 922  215  (2 049)  2 088 

Operating income  1 719 641  215  96 824  1 816 680 

Net interest  (357 028)  -    (191 367)  (548 395)

Interest income  55 105  -    33 892  88 997 

Interest expense  (412 133)  -    (225 259)  (637 392)

Net operating income / (loss)  1 362 613  215  (94 543)  1 268 285 

Guarantee fee income  -    22 111  -    22 111 

Dividends received  -    120 630  -    120 630 

Net income / (loss) before value adjustments  1 362 613  142 956  (94 543)  1 411 026 

Changes in fair value  (4 540 750)  314 528  (394 041)  (4 620 263)

Changes in expected credit losses - financial guarantees  -    (16 665)  -    (16 665)

Changes in expected credit losses - loans receivable  -    -    (289 974)  (289 974)

(Loss) / profit before taxation  (3 178 137)  440 819  (778 558)  (3 515 876)

Taxation  (7 637)  -    487  (7 150)

(Loss) / profit for the year  (3 185 774)  440 819  (778 071)  (3 523 026)

Calculation of distributable income (Non-IFRS information)

Net income / (loss) before value adjustments  1 362 613  142 956  (94 543)  1 411 026 

Adjusted for:  (175 049)  -    22 064  (152 985)

Straight-line rental income accrual  (125 927)  -    7 641  (118 286)

Non-controlling interests  -    -    21 449  21 449 

Net interest adjustments  -    -    (4 036)  (4 036)

Other fair value adjustments – Edcon  (45 172)  -    -    (45 172)

Gruppo non-remittable income  -    -    (5 039)  (5 039)

Capital items for distribution purposes  (3 950)  -    2 049  (1 901)

Distributable income  1 187 564  142 956  (72 479)  1 258 041 
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C3  SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS – FINANCIAL POSITION

June 2021  R’000
SOUTH  
AFRICA

EASTERN  
EUROPE

SUB-  
SAHARAN 

 AFRICA GROUP

ASSETS

Non-current assets 22 116 940  297 234  579 538  22 993 712 

Current assets  857 535  19 911  30 762  908 208 

Assets classified as held-for-sale  1 130 856  -    1 845 308  2 976 164 

Total assets  24 105 331  317 145  2 455 608  26 878 084 

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities  4 433 128  65 837  -    4 498 965 

Current liabilities  1 788 413  44 564  18 689  1 851 666 

Liabilities associated with assets classified as held-for-sale  27 652  -    1 208 461  1 236 113 

Total liabilities  6 249 193  110 401  1 227 150  7 586 744 

June 2020  R’000

ASSETS

Non-current assets  24 657 174  532 972  -    25 190 146 

Current assets  881 147  22 759  766 734  1 670 640 

Assets classified as held-for-sale  -    -    2 098 918  2 098 918 

Total assets  25 538 321  555 731  2 865 652  28 959 704 

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities  4 403 050  127 066  -    4 530 116 

Current liabilities  1 749 285  -    2 049 629  3 798 914 

Liabilities associated with assets classified as held-for-sale  -    -    1 359 216  1 359 216 

Total liabilities  6 152 335  127 066  3 408 845  9 688 246 

C. SEGMENTAL ANALYSES
continued
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D.  Profit or loss
D1  REVENUE AND MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

D1.1 Revenue

D1.1.1 Accounting policy

Revenue consists of:

a. Rental and other lease income – governed by IFRS 16: Lease

b. Non-lease income - (recorded in accordance with IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers)

c. Recoveries – governed by IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers.

Rental and other lease income - (recorded in accordance with IFRS 16: Leases)

Rental and other lease income comprises contractual rental income, operating cost recoveries and income from marketing and 
promotions. Contractual rental income (including tenant parking income and contractual fixed operating cost recoveries) is recognised 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Contingent rentals / turnover rentals (variable rentals based on the turnover achieved by a tenant) are included in revenue when the 
amounts can be reliably measured.

Non-lease income - (recorded in accordance with IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers)

Non-lease revenue comprises income from marketing, promotions and casual parking income which is recognised when the service is 
rendered. Non-lease revenue represents the transaction price (i.e., the amount of the consideration which the entity expects to receive) 
for services provided, net of value added tax.

Non-lease revenue is recognised on an accrual basis in line with the service being provided.

Performance obligations related to non-lease revenue

a) When the entity typically satisfies its 
performance obligations

Services are rendered continuously in a given month. Revenue is 
recognised (for expediency) at the end of the month in which the 
service is rendered.

b) The significant payment terms Payment from customers is due immediately after parking usage

c) Variability of the consideration payable Parking income is charged at a flat rate per space based on the 
duration of usage.

d) The nature of the goods or services that the entity 
has undertaken / agreed to transfer

Services rendered include the provision of covered and open 
parking bays.

Recoveries - (recorded in accordance with IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers)

Recoveries represent the transaction price (i.e. the amount of the consideration which the entity expects to receive) for services 
provided, net of value added tax. The Group retains primary responsibility for the provision of the services, and considers itself the 
principal supplier of such services in this respect.

Recoveries are recognised on an accruals basis in line with the service being provided. Accordingly, the Group maintains its recording of 
service charge income on a gross basis.

Performance obligations related to recovery income

a) When the entity typically satisfies its 
performance obligations

Services are rendered during the month. Revenue is recognised 
over a period of time (the month in which the service is rendered).

b) The significant payment terms Payment from tenants is due on the 1st of each month.

c) Variability of the consideration payable Utility recoveries are charged either at a flat rate per unit or at a 
variable rate per unit depending on time of use.

d) The nature of the goods or services that the entity 
has undertaken / agreed to transfer

Services rendered include the provision of utilities, cleaning, 
security and marketing services for a calendar month.

D. PROFIT OR LOSS
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D. PROFIT OR LOSS
continued

D1.1 Revenue continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

D1.1.2 Profile  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Contractual rental income  1 837 285  1 882 960  1 681 671  1 732 434 

Gross contractual rental income  1 996 491  2 148 074  1 830 538  1 974 859 

COVID-19 rent relief 1  (159 206)  (265 114)  (148 867)  (242 425)

Turnover rent  13 494  14 102  13 494  14 102 

Operating cost recoveries 2  203 445  225 318  178 105  199 788 

Marketing and promotions income - tenants  58 623  62 431  54 812  57 312 

Rental and other lease income  2 112 847  2 184 811  1 928 082  2 003 636 

Straight-line rental income accrual  (114 705)  118 286  (114 218)  125 927 

Lease income 3  1 998 142  2 303 097  1 813 864  2 129 563 

Non-lease income 3  67 165  76 311  65 650  74 577 

Casual parking income  67 165  76 311  65 650  74 577 

Recoveries  716 032  722 934  679 514  686 080 

Municipal recoveries  685 497  686 585  655 081  661 595 

Other recoveries  30 535  36 349  24 433  24 485 

Revenue  2 781 339  3 102 342  2 559 028  2 890 220 
1  Rental discounts and deferrals granted to tenants due to COVID-19 lockdowns /  restrictions.
2  Operating cost recoveries comprise mainly fixed contractual amounts recovered from tenants in terms of the lease agreements. These are categorised as “lease 

income” in terms of IFRS 16: Leases.
3  Reallocation of Non-lease income: Casual parking income has been reallocated from lease income to non-lease income given the nature of this item which is 

recognised when the service is rendered. Comparative amounts have been restated accordingly with no change in the amount of casual parking income or total 
revenue reported for the 2020 financial year. This enhances the disclosure provided.

D1.2  Minimum lease payments receivable

Minimum lease payments comprise contractual rental income and operating costs recoverable from tenants in terms of existing 
lease agreements.

The minimum lease payments receivable from tenants have been classified into the following time periods:

GROUP and COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

 R’000  R’000 
Shor term (up to one year) 1 804 891  1 990 697 

Medium term (greater than one year and up to five years)  3 333 064  4 014 611 

Long term (greater than five years)  784 571  1 416 007 

Total minimum lease payments receivable  5 922 526  7 421 315 

Minimum lease payment disclosures exclude held-for-sale properties.
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D. PROFIT OR LOSS
continued

D2  OTHER OPERATING INCOME 

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

Note  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Asset management fees  55 341  18 783  50 979  18 783 

Other operating income  55 341  18 783  50 979  18 783 

D3 EXPENSES

D3.1 Property expenses
Municipal expenses  725 594  708 454  705 713  694 457 

Other utilities  43 421  45 067  26 795  26 535 

Security  58 385  58 575  56 289  56 371 

Cleaning  47 485  46 962  45 836  45 402 

Marketing  40 065  41 866  38 970  40 320 

Maintenance  34 806  36 428  30 314  29 756 

Air-conditioning  18 385  18 010  16 542  16 058 

Depreciation  49 350  44 441  46 825  43 043 

Legal fees  1 808  1 601  1 603  1 332 

Salaries and staff-related expenses  79 716  70 229  74 797  64 290 

Audit fees – external D3.4  2 111  2 220  1 756  1 664 

Audit fees – internal  753  350  753  350 

Insurance  9 520  7 646  7 807  6 044 

Professional fees  8 477  4 546  3 897  4 077 

Computer expenses and licences  5 302  3 695  5 283  3 689 

Net foreign exchange losses - Gruppo  13 766  7 316  -    -   

Other property costs  39 305  42 315  38 503  36 177 

Property expenses  1 178 249  1 139 721  1 101 683  1 069 565 

D3.2 Other operating expenses 
Salaries and staff-related expenses  73 148  48 728  70 253  48 728 

Share-based payment expense  8 574  11 795  8 574  11 795 

Non-executive directors’ remuneration  4 909  4 747  4 909  4 747 

Audit fees – external D3.4  2 096  2 326  2 081  2 020 

Audit fees – internal  365  511  365  511 

Insurance  345  388  316  388 

Professional fees  9 072  3 864  5 361  3 755 

Software development costs  4 956  -    -    -   

Computer expenses and licences  1 753  1 482  1 551  1 482 

Legal fees  3 076  3 571  1 997  3 571 

Corporate social investment  2 071  768  2 124  883 

Depreciation  1 467  1 419  1 461  1 419 

Investor relations and related costs  2 069  2 647  2 069  2 647 

Ratings and regulatory fees  2 396  2 427  2 396  2 426 

Other  6 421  4 457  4 211  3 551 

Other operating expenses  122 718  89 130  107 668  87 923 
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D. PROFIT OR LOSS
continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

D3.3 Net foreign exchange (loss) / profit  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Foreign exchange gains  -    2 088  -    9 894 

Foreign exchange losses (51 778)  -   (12 807)  -   

Net foreign exchange (loss) / profit (51 778)  2 088 (12 807)  9 894 

D3.4 Audit fees
Included in expenses in D3.1 and D3.2 are  
the following amounts:

Paid to the external auditors for the attest function  4 207  4 546 3 837  3 684 
(KPMG and Ernst & Young, Nigeria)

Paid to the external auditors for other approved services  -    242  -    242 
(KPMG Services)

Paid to KPMG Nigeria for other approved services  323  469  -    -   

Total  4 530  5 257  3 837  3 926

D3. EXPENSES continued

D4  OPERATING EXPENSE COMMITMENTS

Hyprop has entered into various service contracts for the cleaning, upkeep and general maintenance of its investment property 
portfolio. Operating expense commitments payable under existing service contracts to service providers in future years have been 
classified as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Short term (up to one year)  12 027  10 286  12 027  10 286 

Property expenses  12 027  10 286  12 027  10 286

Amounts exclude held-for-sale properties.

Contracts which can be terminated on one month’s notice have been included for one month only.

D5  INTEREST

D5.1 Accounting policy

Interest income 

Interest earned on cash invested at financial institutions is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method. 
Interest earned on loans receivable is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method, other than loans which are 
credit impaired (stage 3 loans) where interest is only accrued on the net balance (i.e. the outstanding balance less credit impairments).

Interest expense 

Interest expense is calculated on the effective interest rate method. Borrowing costs, except those capitalised to a qualifying asset, are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Capitalised interest expense 

Interest costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of 
that asset until such time as the asset is substantially ready for its intended use. Qualifying assets are those that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use.

The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is the actual borrowing costs incurred on funds borrowed in respect of the 
qualifying asset. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of borrowed funds pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare 
the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete.

D. PROFIT OR LOSS
continuedD5  INTEREST continued

D5.1 Accounting policy  continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

D5.2 Profile Note  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Interest income  26 842  88 997  30 922  58 751 
Bank balances  24 417  54 805  24 295  54 419 

Loans receivable  2 425  34 192  6 627  4 332 

Interest expense  (548 813)  (637 392)  (435 442)  (412 133)
Borrowings  (510 437)  (607 063)  (436 256)  (412 722)

Capitalised E1.5  814  589  814  589 

Non-controlling shareholder loan  (39 190)  (30 918)  -    -   

Net interest  (521 971)  (548 395)  (404 520)  (353 382)

D6 DIVIDENDS RECEIVED

D6.1 Accounting policy
Dividend income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the dividend has 
been declared.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

D6.2 Profile  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Dividends received from Hystead  19 833  120 630  19 833  120 630 

Total  19 833  120 630  19 833  120 630
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D. PROFIT OR LOSS
continued

D7  TAXATION

D7.1 Accounting policy

Normal and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the year.

The charge for normal taxation includes expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any 
adjustment for taxation payable or receivable in respect of prior years.

Normal taxation liabilities / (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to / (recovered 
from) the taxation authorities, using the taxation rates and taxation laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date.

D7.2 Profile

Hyprop is a REIT in terms of the South African Income Tax Act (the Act) and in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements. In terms of 
section 25BB of the Act, a qualifying distribution declared to Hyprop shareholders is deductible against Hyprop’s taxable income. As a 
consequence of this deduction, which has historically (with the exception of the 30 June 2020 year) exceeded the company’s taxable 
income, South African taxable income and income taxation is usually reduced to zero.

For the year ended 30 June 2020 the company’s qualifying distribution equated to 76% of the distributable income for the year. The 
undistributed income was set off against the assessed loss brought forward from prior years, resulting in no normal taxation being 
payable by the Company for the year ended 30 June 2020. The deferred tax amount reflected on the statement of financial position has 
been adjusted in line with the utilisation of the assessed loss.

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

D7.3 Taxation expense  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Major components of the taxation expense

Normal taxation  5 057  (487)  -    -   
Current year  1 547  (487)  -    -   

Prior year  3 510  -    -    -   

Withholding taxation  4 426  -    -    -   

Carbon taxation  159  -    159  -   

Deferred taxation  91 858  7 637  92 019  7 637 
Current year  20 613  7 637  20 774  7 637 

Assessed loss utilised  71 245  -    71 245  -   

Total taxation expense  101 500  7 150  92 178  7 637 

D7.4 Reconciliation of taxation expense
Loss before tax (735 192)  (3 515 876) (1 235 063)  (3 099 383)

Notional taxation at 28% (205 854)  (984 446) (345 818)  (867 827)

Adjusted for:  307 354  991 596  437 996  875 464 

REIT qualifying distribution (281 153)  (339 768) (281 153)  (339 768)

Exempt income and non deductible expenses D7.5  498 217  1 296 109  647 337  1 215 232 

Normal taxation- prior year  3 510  -    -    -   

Deferred taxation- Assessed loss utilised  71 245  -    71 245  -   

Deferred tax asset not recognised  38 267  24 023  -    -   

Carbon tax  159  -    159  -   

Taxation relating to CFC income  408  -    408  -   

Withholding taxation  4 426  -    -    -   

Adjustment in respect of foreign tax rates (27 725)  11 232  -    -   

Total taxation expense  101 500  7 150  92 178  7 637 
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D. PROFIT OR LOSS
continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

D7.5 Exempt income and non deductible expenses  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Changes in fair value:

Investment property  444 450  1 307 157  444 423  1 197 600 

Derivative instruments  (45 371)  61 936  (44 310)  61 161 

Financial asset  66 007  (88 068)  66 007  (88 068)

Changes in expected credit losses 
- financial guarantees  (4 666)  4 666  (4 666)  (15 259)

Derecognition of financial guarantees  -    -    (32 161)  -   

Straight-line rental income accrual  32 117  (33 120)  31 981  (35 260)

Non-taxable dividend received  (5 553)  (33 776)  (5 553)  (33 776)

Impairment of loan to joint venture / 
intercompany loan  1 239  81 193  19  12 493 

Impairment of investment in subsidiary  -    -    182 168  111 446 

Other  9 994  (3 879)  9 429  4 895 

Total income exempt from tax and  
non-tax deductible expenses  498 217  1 296 109  647 337  1 215 232

D7  TAXATION continued
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SOUTH AFRICAN  
PROPERTIES

SUB-SAHARAN 
AFRICAN PROPERTY

Co-owned
Canal Walk

80%

The Glen

75,16%

Ikeja City Mall*

75%

100% owned

CapeGate Rosebank Mall 17 Baker Street  
(offices)

Cradock Heights 
 (offices)

Somerset Mall Woodlands Clearwater  
Mall

Hyde Park  
Corner

Atterbury Value 
Mart*

Western cape Gauteng Lagos, Nigeria

E.  Property investments and related items
E1  INVESTMENT PROPERTY

E1.1 Accounting policy

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental income and / or for capital appreciation.

Rental income from investment property is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Cost includes initial transaction costs, costs incurred subsequently to extend or 
refurbish investment property and the cost of any development rights.

Investment property is subsequently measured at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value, after deducting the straight-line rental income accrual, are included in net profit or 
loss (in the line Changes in fair value - investment property) for the period in which they arise. These gains or losses are transferred to 
non-distributable reserves in the statement of changes in equity.

In instances when investment property has been sold, but not yet transferred to the purchaser at year-end, the fair value is determined 
as the sale price.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no 
future economic benefits are expected from the property.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the investment property is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property 
is derecognised. The gain or loss is calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
investment property.

Realised gains or losses arising on the disposal of investment properties are recognised in profit or loss for the year and transferred to / 
from non-distributable reserves in the statement of changes in equity.

E1.2 Key judgements and estimations

The valuation of investment properties requires judgement in the determination of, inter alia, future cash flows, appropriate discount 
rates and capitalisation rates used to calculate the fair value of the investment property. Refer: E1.7.3 - Valuation assumptions and A2.2.

E1.3 Profile

80%
Co-owned

75.16%

* Classified as held-for-sale as at 30 June 2021

E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

E1.4 Net carrying value  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Historical cost  15 228 307  15 516 373  13 007 533  12 826 351 

Accumulated fair value movements  8 885 354  10 341 537  9 460 789  11 048 012 

Assets classified as held-for-sale  (2 715 162)  (1 983 547)  (1 069 823)  -   

Total investment property  21 398 499  23 874 363  21 398 499  23 874 363 

E1.5 Movement reconciliation
Investment property at the beginning of the year  23 874 363  28 027 321  23 874 363  28 027 321 

Capital expenditure  180 502  140 896  180 395  140 629 

Currency translation difference  -    436 060  -    -   

Net change in fair value 1  (1 587 323)  (4 668 419)  (1 587 224)  (4 277 145)

Change in fair value  (1 702 028)  (4 550 133)  (1 701 442)  (4 151 218)

Straight-line rental income accrual  114 705  (118 286)  114 218  (125 927)

Interest capitalised  814  589  814  589 

Reclassification to Property, plant and equipment  (26)  (17 031)  (26)  (17 031)

Transfer to non-current assets held-for-sale  (1 069 831)  (45 053)  (1 069 823)  -   

Total investment property  21 398 499  23 874 363  21 398 499  23 874 363 
1  The net change in fair value in the current and prior years is unrealised and is recorded in the statement of profit or loss on the line “Changes in fair value: 

Investment property”.

E1.6 Reconciliation to independent valuation
Net carrying value of investment property 2  21 398 499  23 874 363  21 398 499  23 874 363 

Straight-line rental income accrual  432 830  574 845  432 830  574 845 

Property, plant and equipment  251 238  206 236  251 238  206 236 

Fair value relating to owner occupied building  13 222  12 897  13 222  12 897 

Centre management assets  (4 689)  (2 377)  (4 689)  (2 377)

Independent valuation 2  22 091 100  24 665 964  22 091 100  24 665 964 
2 Excludes property held-for-sale, refer to note E7.

Refer to section C – Segmental analysis, for a breakdown of investment property, contractual rental income and property 
expenses by segment.

Interest rate used to calculate interest capitalised (%)  7.4  7.4  7.4  7.4

E1.7 Valuation methodology

The Group’s policy is to obtain independent valuations of the investment properties and report investment properties at the lower of 
that value, or a directors’ valuation based on arms-length bona fide commercial offers for specific properties. 

The investment properties are independently valued every six months with full valuations being prepared at the financial year end 
of the relevant owner entity and directors valuations supported by independent desktop valuations being prepared at the half-year 
reporting date.

Investment property fair value measurements are categorised as level 3 (refer to note M1.1 for the definition of level 3).

The valuation methods applied by the independent valuers are the same as those applied in the prior year.

E1  INVESTMENT PROPERTY continued
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continuedE1  INVESTMENT PROPERTY continued

E1.7 Valuation methodology continued

E1.7.1 Who

Valuations of the South African investment properties were performed by valuers registered in terms of section 19 of the Property 
Valuers Professional Act 47 of 2000. Valuations of the non-South African properties were performed by valuers who are members of the 
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), as detailed below:

COMPANY AND LEAD VALUER QUALIFICATION PROPERTIES VALUED

Viking Valuation

Trevor King
Managing director

BSc Hons (Building Science, UCT), Dip 
Surveying (UK, Reading University), 
Professional Registered Valuer and member of 
SA Council for the Property Valuers Profession, 
Chartered Valuation Surveyor and Associate 
Member of the Royal Institute of Chartered 
Surveyors (MRICS).

Canal Walk, Somerset Mall, CapeGate, 
Rosebank Mall, Cradock Heights and  
17 Baker Street  (Retail and office)

Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL)

Joshua Askew
Head of valuation: Sub-Saharan
Africa, National director

BA (Hons) English and philosophy, MA Property 
Valuations and Property Law, Fellow of and 
Registered Valuer of the Royal institute of 
Chartered Surveyors (FRICS and RICS), Licensed 
Pfandbrief MLV Valuer, Recognised  
European Valuer.

The Glen, Clearwater Mall, Hyde Park 
Corner , Woodlands (Retail and offices)

Mills Fitchet

Thomas Bate
Partner / member

BSc (Urban Land Economics) University of 
Westminster London, MSc (Reading University 
UK), Chartered Valuation Surveyor (RICS).

Ikeja City Mall (Lagos, Nigeria) (Retail)

TYPE VALUATION METHODOLOGY UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS

INTER-RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN 
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS AND FAIR 
VALUE MEASUREMENT  

Investment 
properties 
– continuing 
operations

Discounted cash flow: The valuation 
models calculate the present value 
of the future net cash flows expected 
to be generated by each investment 
property. The cash flow projections 
include specific estimates for five 
years. The expected net cash flows 
are discounted using a risk adjusted 
discount rate as well as a risk 
adjusted capitalisation rate.

•  Estimated rentals at the 
end of the current lease

•  Vacancy levels

•  Discount rate, and

•  Reversionary  
capitalisation rate 

•  Average market rental 
growth rate

The estimated fair value increases if:

•  The estimated rentals increase

•  Vacancy levels decline

•  Discount rates (market yields) 
decline or

•  Reversionary capitalisation rates 
decline (and vice versa).

Investment 
properties  
– held-for-sale

Fair value: Investment property 
held-for-sale is measured at fair 
value which, in instances where 
the property is already sold or the 
subject of a binding sale agreement, 
but not yet transferred, is based on 
the anticipated sale price.

•  Anticipated sale price

E1.7.2 How

Details of the valuation methodologies used to value investment property, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used, are set 
out in the table below:

Atterbury Value Mart and Ikeja City Mall are classified as held-for-sale and are carried at the anticipated sales proceeds (net of costs to 
sell). See note E7.
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continuedE1  INVESTMENT PROPERTY continued

E1.7 Valuation methodology continued

E1.7.3 Valuation assumptions

Th e key assumptions used by the valuers in determining the fair values of the investment properties are in the following ranges:

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

 %  %  %  % 

Reversionary capitalisation rates  6.8 to 9.3  6.8 to 9.0  6.8 to 9.3  6.8 to 9.0 

Weighted average reversionary capitalisation rates  7.5  7.5  7.4  7.4 

Discount rates  10.5 to 13.8  10.5 to 14.5  11.0 to 13.8  11.3 to 14.5 

Weighted average discount rate  11.8  12.4  11.9  12.5 

Retail vacancy levels  0.0 to 1.0  0.0 to 1  0.0 to 1.0  0.0 to 1 

Office vacancy levels  0.0 to 1.0  0.0 to 0.5  0.0 to 1.0  0.0 to 0.5 

Average market rental growth rate  5.0  4.2  5.0  4.3

Th e discount and capitalisation rates used in the property valuations are dependent on a number of factors such as location, the 
condition of the improvements, current market conditions, the lease covenants and the risk inherent in the property. Th ese rates are 
assessed for each individual property based on its specifi c circumstances.

Th e weighted average discount rate for the SA portfolio, and all individual properties, reduced from 2020 to 2021 by 0.6% due to 
a reduction in the overall risk environment compared to June 2020 at the height of the COVID-19 fi rst wave, lower expectations by 
investors of returns and an increase in the sustainability of projected incomes as the gap between actual rental rates and market rental 
rates narrows.

Following the signifi cant adjustments to reversionary capitalisation rates in 2020 due to the heightened market risk at the time, 
reversionary capitalisation rates for most of the properties were unchanged given the more stable economic conditions at June 2020. 
Th e reversionary capitalisation rate for one property was reduced and another increased by 25 basis points, without aff ecting the 
overall average reversionary capitalisation rate for the portfolio.

Th e anticipated short-term impact of rental discounts granted to tenants as a result of COVID-19 was taken into account as a once 
off  adjustment.

Viking valuations have noted in their valuation reports that, as a result of COVID-19, their valuations are reported on the basis of 
“material valuation uncertainty” as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book Global (Th e Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors 
global valuation standards guideline).

Th ey note that, at the valuation date:

•  the current response to COVID-19 means that they are faced with an unprecedented set of circumstances on which to base a 
judgement; 

•  they consider that they can attach less weight to previous market evidence for comparison purposes, to inform opinions of value.

Consequently, they note that, less certainty and a higher degree of caution should be attached to the valuations than would normally 
be the case. 

Given the unknown future impact that COVID-19 might have on the real estate market, they recommend that the valuations be kept 
under frequent review.

It is Hyprop’s policy to have its consolidated investment properties independently valued every six months.
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continuedE1  INVESTMENT PROPERTY continued

E1.7 Valuation methodology continued

E1.7.4 Valuation sensitivity

Th e valuations of the investment properties are sensitive to changes in the unobservable inputs used in such valuations. Changes to one 
of the unobservable inputs, while holding the other inputs constant, would have the following eff ects on the fair value of investment 
property (excluding investment properties held-for-sale) in the statement of profi t or loss.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

% change % change  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Increase in reversionary 
capitalisation rates 0.25 0.25  (508 919)  (630 311)  (508 919)  (630 311)

Decrease in reversionary 
capitalisation rates 0.25 0.25  545 105  675 237  545 105  675 237 

Increase in discount rates 0.25 0.25  (206 280)  (251 395)  (206 280)  (251 395)

Decrease in discount rates 0.25 0.25  208 920  254 619  208 920  254 619 

Increase in average market 
rental growth rates 0.25 0.25  180 612  199 400  180 612  199 400 

Decrease in average market 
rental growth rates 0.25 0.25  (178 744)  (215 700)  (178 744)  (215 700)

E1.8 Mortgaged properties

First mortgage bonds have been registered over South African and Nigerian investment property as security for secured interest-
bearing borrowings and for guarantees provided by Hyprop for interest bearing borrowings of the Hystead Group.

In the case of Standard Bank, Rand Merchant Bank, and Nedbank, South African properties are mortgaged to secure a pool of both 
consolidated and non-consolidated borrowings. For further disclosure on the Group’s borrowing covenants see note H4.1.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

Note  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Fair value of investment 
property mortgaged as security  20 781 405  19 980 352  19 136 066  17 987 264 

Comprising: Canal Walk (80%), The Glen (75.16%), 
Somerset Mall (50%, 2020:30%), CapeGate, Hyde Park, 
Woodlands, Clearwater, Atterbury Value Mart
(held-for-sale) and Ikeja City Mall (held-for-sale).

Secured borrowings (consolidated) H1.2  (2 784 037)  (3 697 101)  (2 784 037)  (1 658 225)

Secured borrowings held-for-sale (consolidated) H1.5  (821 375)  (955 663)  -    -   

Secured revolving credit facilities not drawn down H1.5  (950 000)  (500 000)  (950 000)  (500 000)

Secured borrowings (non-consolidated) 2 K1.2  (6 227 795)  (7 030 929)  (6 227 795)  (7 030 929)

Total secured borrowings  (10 783 207)  (12 183 693)  (9 961 832)  (9 189 154)
2  Non-consolidated borrowings comprise loans advanced to Hystead Limited and its subsidiaries which have been guaranteed by Hyprop Investments Limited. 

Hyprop’s obligations under these guarantees are secured by mortgage bonds over certain of Hyprop’s properties as described above.
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

E1  INVESTMENT PROPERTY continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

E1.9 Straight-line rental income accrual  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Balance at the beginning of the year  574 845  448 917  574 845  448 917 

Currency translation difference  1 665  3 157  -    -   

Recognition / (reversal) of straight-line asset during the year  (114 705)  118 286  (114 218)  125 928 

Reallocated from / (to) assets held-for-sale  (28 975)  4 485  (27 797)  -   

Balance at the end of the year  432 830  574 845  432 830  574 845

E2  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

E2.1 Accounting policy

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.  Depreciation 
is provided on all property, plant and equipment to write down the cost to the estimated residual value, in equal monthly instalments 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, at the following rates in the current and prior years:

  Building appurtenances: 3 to 15 years

  Tenant installations:  period of the lease 

  Owner occupied building: 20 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if necessary. There were no 
adjustments to the above rates in the current and prior years.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost thereof can 
be reliably measured. All other expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss and are calculated as the difference 
between the proceeds and the carrying value of the item sold.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

E2.2 Net carrying value  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Cost
Building appurtenances  398 780  318 937  388 691  318 937 

Tenant installations  100 231  85 938  100 231  85 938 

Owner occupied building  17 056  17 031  17 056  17 031 

Total cost  516 067  421 906  505 978  421 906 

Accumulated depreciation
Building appurtenances  (184 133)  (156 169)  (184 112)  (156 169)

Tenant installations  (68 925)  (58 649)  (68 925)  (58 649)

Owner occupied building  (1 703)  (852)  (1 703)  (852)

Total accumulated depreciation  (254 761)  (215 670)  (254 740)  (215 670)

Net carrying value
Building appurtenances  214 647  162 768  204 579  162 768 

Tenant installations  31 306  27 289  31 306  27 289 

Owner occupied building  15 353  16 179  15 353  16 179 

Total net carrying value  261 306  206 236  251 238  206 236
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

E2  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

E2.3 Movement reconciliation - net carrying value

Building 
appurtenances

Tenant 
installations

Owner 
occupied 
building

Total  
PPE

GROUP  R’000
Balance at 30 June 2019  133 207  29 081  -    162 288 

Capital expenditure  75 095  8 600  -    83 695 

Currency translation difference  1 941  -    -    1 941 

Reclassified from investment properties  -    -    17 031  17 031 

Classified as held-for-sale  (12 859)  -    -    (12 859)

Depreciation  (34 616)  (10 392)  (852)  (45 860)

Balance at 30 June 2020  162 768  27 289  16 179  206 236 
Capital expenditure  104 771  16 108  -    120 879 

Currency translation difference  (2 736)  -    -    (2 736)

Assets written off  (15)  -    -    (15)

Reclassified from investment properties  -    -    26  26 

Classified as held-for-sale  (12 073)  (194)  -    (12 267)

Depreciation  (38 068)  (11 897)  (852)  (50 817)

Balance at 30 June 2021  214 647  31 306  15 353  261 306 

COMPANY  R’000
Balance at 30 June 2019  133 207  29 081  -    162 288 

Capital expenditure  62 779  8 600  -    71 379 

Reclassified from investment properties  -    -    17 031  17 031 

Depreciation  (33 218)  (10 392)  (852)  (44 462)

Balance at 30 June 2020  162 768  27 289  16 179  206 236 
Capital expenditure  92 991  16 108  -    109 099 

Assets written off  (15)  -    -    (15)

Reclassified from investment properties  -    -    26  26 

Classified as held-for-sale  (15 643)  (194)  -    (15 837)

Depreciation  (35 522)  (11 897)  (852)  (48 271)

Balance at 30 June 2021  204 579  31 306  15 353  251 238 

E3 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Details of approved capital expenditure for the year ended 30 June 2022 (30 June 2021) are set out below.

GROUP and COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

 R’000  R’000 
Approved and committed  93 844  173 346 

Approved but not yet committed  255 297  339 315 

Total capital commitments 1  349 141  512 661 
1 These balances do not include the co-owners’ portions of capital expenditure for Canal Walk and The Glen.

Capital commitments exclude held-for-sale properties.

The capital expenditure will be financed from available cash resources, cash generated by operations, banking facilities and 
debt capital market funding.
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E4  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

E4.1 Accounting policy election

For accounting policy elections applied to investments in subsidiaries refer to note A2.1.

E4.2 Profi le

Hyprop Investments 
Employee 

Incentive Scheme 
(Pty) Limited

African 
Land Investments 

Limited

Hyprop Investments
(Mauritius) 

Limited

Hyprop 
Foundation 

NPC

West Africa Asset 
Management
(Pty) Limited

Hyprop 
Ikeja Mall 

Limited

Natalmahogany 
(Pty) Ltd **

Gruppo Investments 
Nigeria 

Limited*

All holdings shown in the figure above are at 100% unless otherwise indicated
* Classified as held-for-sale
**Formed / Established 5 August 2020

73.12%

56% 75%

E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued
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COMPANY

NAME AND COUNTRY OF June 2021 June 2020

INCORPORATION /  OPERATION STATUS NATURE OF ACTIVITIES % held 1 % held 1

Incorporated in South Africa

Hyprop Investments  
Employee Incentive Scheme (Pty) Ltd Active

Hedging the obligations arising  
from share allocations made 
to employees

100 100

Hyprop Foundation NPC Active Coordination of Hyprop’s corporate  
social investment initiatives 100 100

African Land Investments Limited Dormant Dormant 100 100

West Africa Asset Management (Pty) Ltd Active Asset management function for  
properties in Sub-Saharan Africa. 73.12 73.12

Natalmahogany (Pty) Ltd Active Developer and owner of  
SOKO District 56  -   

Incorporated  in Mauritius

Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited Active
Indirect investment in and 
development of income-producing 
properties in Sub-Saharan Africa.

100 100

Hyprop Ikeja Mall Limited Active Holding company for Gruppo. 100 100

Incorporated in Nigeria

Gruppo Investments Nigeria Limited Held-for-sale Owner of Ikeja City Mall. 75 75

1 Proportion of ownership interest and voting power held by the Group.

The Group’s direct and indirect holdings in subsidiaries are summarised below:

E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continuedE4  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES continued

E4.2 Profile continued

COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

E4.3 Carrying value  R’000  R’000 

Shares at cost
African Land  758 264  758 264 

Hyprop Share Scheme  *  * 

Hyprop Foundation  *  * 

Hyprop Mauritius  2 342 182  398 020 

West Africa Asset Management  *  * 

Natalmahogany  16 422  -   

Less accumulated impairments  (1 048 620)  (398 020)

Total carrying value  2 068 248  758 264 
* Amounts less than R1 000.
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continuedE4  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES continued

E4.3 Carrying value continued

The carrying value of the shares in African Land has been assessed for impairment taking into account the loan payable by Hyprop to 
African Land of R761m (see note H1.5). This results in a net liability of R 2.86m.

The carrying value of the shares in Hyprop Mauritius has been assessed for impairment taking into account the following factors:

•  the expected performance of the underlying investments

•  the anticipated market values at which the companies / properties may be sold

•  the net asset value of Hyprop Mauritius which, at 30 June 2021, is negative

•  the recapitalisation of Hyprop Mauritius in the 2021 financial year and settlement of all Hyprop Mauritius’ bank debt.

The carrying value of the shares in Natalmahogany has been assessed for impairment taking into account the following factors:

• the net asset value of Natalmahogany, which at 30 June 2021 was negative

•  the early life-cycle stage of the company, which opened its first SOKO district in July 2021.

In calculating the recoverable amount of the shares, no probability-weighted outcomes are used as the directors have assumed a 100% 
loss given default on the calculated shortfall.

The investment (shares) in Hyprop Mauritius has been impaired to a carrying value of R 1.3 billion and the loan receivable from Hyprop 
Mauritius (see note F1.4) has been impaired to nil. 

COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

E4.4 Movement reconciliation  R’000  R’000 
Net carrying value at the beginning of the year  758 264  758 264 

Shares subscribed for in Hyprop Mauritius  1 944 162  398 020 

Shares subscribed for in Natalmahogany  16 422  -   

Less impairments 1  (650 600)  (398 020)

Total carrying value  2 068 248  758 264 
1All impairments relate to Hyprop Mauritius.
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

E5  INVESTMENTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

E5.1 Accounting policy

Joint arrangements are those entities, assets or properties over which the Group has joint control, established by contractual 
agreements regarding decisions about relevant activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangements. Joint arrangements 
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the contractual rights and obligations of the investor, and are 
accounted for as follows:

Joint operation

When the Group has rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to a joint arrangement, it accounts for its 
proportionate share of the assets, liabilities and transactions, including its share of those held or incurred jointly, in relation to the joint 
operation, in accordance with the applicable IFRS.

Joint venture

When the Group has rights only to the net assets of the arrangement, it accounts for its interest using the equity method.

The above treatment will apply in all cases, except:

Held-for-sale

When the investment is classified as held-for-sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5: Non-current assets held-for-sale.

Financial asset

When the investment is classified as a financial asset, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 9: Financial instruments.

E5.2 Key judgements and estimations

For key judgements and estimations applied to investments in joint arrangements refer to note A2.2

E5.3 Profile

All holdings shown in the figure above are at 100% unless otherwise indicated

Canal Walk

The Glen

Hyprop Investments
(Mauritius) 

Limited

AttAfrica SA
(Pty) Ltd

AttAfrica 
 Ltd

40.6% 50%

80%

75.16%
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GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

NAME
PRINCIPAL PLACE 
OF BUSINESS

PARTNER /  
CO-INVESTOR STATUS % held % held

Joint operations

Canal Walk Shopping Centre Cape Town,  
South Africa Ellerine Brothers Active 80 80

The Glen Shopping Centre Johannesburg,  
South Africa Ellerine Brothers Active 75.16 75.16

Joint venture

AttAfrica SA (Pty) Ltd  South Africa Attacq Ltd Active 40.6 40.6

Joint venture  
– held through Hyprop Mauritius

AttAfrica Ltd Mauritius AIH International Ltd Active 50 50

The Group’s direct and indirect holdings in joint arrangements (and the resultant effective economic interests) are summarised below:

E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continuedE5  INVESTMENTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS continued

E5.3 Profile continued

E5.4 Joint operations

Financial results for the joint operations, Canal Walk and The Glen, are proportionately consolidated in the Company and Group’s 
financial statements.

E5.4.1 Summary of audited financial information

A summary of the Group’s proportionate share extracted from the audited financial information for the joint operations Canal Walk and 
The Glen is set out below.

CANAL WALK THE GLEN

% interest held by Hyprop 80% 80% 75.16% 75.16%

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Revenue  631 552  682 352  228 933  234 728 

Expenses  (239 212)  (235 495)  (104 616)  (102 159)

Depreciation  (286)  (8 508)  (61)  (4 626)

Other property expenses  (238 926)  (226 987)  (104 555)  (97 533)

Net property income  392 340  446 857  124 317  132 569
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

E5  INVESTMENTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS continued

E5.5 Joint ventures

On 14 May 2021 the Group’s ordinary shares, preference shares and loans receivable from AttAfrica were exchanged for 50 new ‘A’ 
ordinary shares in AttAfrica.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

E5.5.1 Carrying value  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

AttAfrica Ltd - ordinary shares at cost  -    *  *  * 

AttAfrica Ltd- preference shares  -    -    -    -   

Cost  -    1 768 661  -    -   

Accumulated impairments1  -    (1 768 661)  -    -   

AttAfrica Ltd - ‘A’ ordinary shares  579 510  -    -    -   

Cost  583 526  -    -    -   

Accumulated equity accounted losses  (4 016)  -    -    -   

AttAfrica SA - ordinary shares at cost  -    1 730  -    1 730 

Total carrying value  579 510  1 730  -    1 730 
* Amounts less than R1 000.
1  The impairment is a result of the net asset value of AttAfrica (calculated based on the estimated fair value less costs to dispose of the underlying AttAfrica 

investments) being negative.

E5.5.2 Summary of audited financial information

Set out below is a summary of the audited financial information for AttAfrica Ltd.
ATTAFRICA LTD

100% 100%

June 2021 June 2020

E5.5.2.1 Summarised consolidated statement of financial position  R’000  R’000 

Non-current assets  1 944 171  2 467 696 

Current assets  154 996  112 337 
Cash and cash equivalents  53 571  27 046 

Other current assets  101 425  85 291 

Total assets  2 099 167  2 580 033 

Non-current liabilities  (785 503)  (2 289 891)
Non-current financial liabilities  (643 309)  (2 020 815)

Bank borrowings  (643 309)  (335 241)

Shareholder loans  -    (1 685 574)

Other non-current liabilities  (142 194)  (269 076)

Current liabilities  (107 642)  (684 779)
Current financial liabilities  (101 771)  (677 608)

Other current liabilities  (5 871)  (7 171)

Total liabilities  (893 145)  (2 974 670)

Converted to Rand at year-end spot rate (Rands / US Dollar)  14.31  17.33 
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continuedE5  INVESTMENTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS continued

E5.5 Joint ventures continued

ATTAFRICA LTD

100% 100%

June 2021 June 2020

E5.5.2.2 Summarised consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income  R’000  R’000 

Revenue  134 182  175 000 

Expenses  (67 091)  (69 198)
Depreciation  (6 382)  (6 267)

Property expenses  (60 709)  (62 931)

Net property income  67 091  105 802 
Other income  834  5 830 

Other expenses  (64 847)  (69 171)

Operating income  3 078  42 461 

Net interest  (49 977)  (3 003)
Interest income  -    -   

Waiver of interest expense  -    388 956 

Interest expense  (49 977)  (391 959)

Net operating (loss) / income  (46 899)  39 458 
Change in fair value of investment property  (9 338)  (185 176)

Profit / (loss) from equity accounted investments  13 593  (62 205)

Loss before taxation  (42 644)  (207 923)
Taxation  (2 633)  (4 475)

Net loss  (45 277)  (212 398)
Other comprehensive income (currency translation reserve)  (2)  (498 064)

Total comprehensive loss  (45 279)  (710 462)

Comprehensive (loss) / income attributable to:  (45 279)  (710 462)
Shareholders of AttAfrica Ltd  (33 103)  (598 519)

Non-controlling interest  (12 176)  (111 943)

Converted to Rand at the 12 month average rate (Rands /  US Dollar)  15.43  15.58 

GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

E5.5.3 Loss from equity accounted investments  R’000  R’000 

Hyprop’s share of losses  (4 016)  -   
Share of loss from joint venture  (24 195)  (299 259)

Limitation of loss from joint venture 1  20 179  299 259 
1 Prior to the subscription for “A” ordinary shares on 14 May 2021, losses were limited to the nominal amount of the investment.

Set out below is a summary of the audited financial information of AttAfrica.
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

E6  FINANCIAL ASSET - HYSTEAD

E6.1 Accounting policy

Where the Group has a contractual right to receive its share of the net distributable income of an asset, the contractual right is 
recognised as a fi nancial asset and is designated at fair value through profi t or loss (FVTPL) and initially measured at fair value. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the fi nancial asset is measured at fair value and changes in the fair value are recognised in the 
consolidated statement of profi t or loss and other comprehensive income on the line “Changes in fair value: Financial asset - Hystead”.

For the fair value hierarchy refer to note M1.2

Any gain or loss on initial recognition (i.e. the diff erence between the fair value and the amount paid) is deferred where the valuation 
method used to determine the fair value includes assumptions which are derived from unobservable inputs. Th e deferred profi t or loss is 
subsequently recognised in profi t or loss only to the extent of a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take 
into account when pricing the asset.

E6.2 Key judgements and estimations

For key judgements and estimations applied to the Financial asset - Hystead refer to note A2.2.

E6.3 Profi le

Delta City
Belgrade,

Serbia

Delta City
Podgorica,

Montenegro

Skopje City Mall
North

Macedonia

Th e Mall
Sofi a,

Bulgaria

City Center One
East Zagreb,

Croatia

City Center One
West Zagreb,

Croatia

Hystead
Limited

60%

GROUP and COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

E6.4 Carrying value and net movement for the year  R’000  R’000 
Balance at the beginning of the year  532 972  218 444 

Net change in fair value of future cash flows 1  (235 738)  314 528 

Balance at the end of the year  297 234  532 972 
1  The fair value movement for the current and prior years is unrealised and is recorded in the statement of profit or loss on the line “Changes in fair value: Financial 
asset - Hystead”.

All holdings shown in the figure above are at 100% unless otherwise indicated.
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

E6  FINANCIAL ASSET - HYSTEAD continued

GROUP and COMPANY

E6.5 Gross movement for the year June 2021 June 2020

E6.5.1 Gross asset (A)  R’000  R’000 
Balance at the beginning of the year  5 627 970  4 504 991 

Unrealised foreign exchange movement  (703 059)  933 815 

Fair value adjustment through profit or loss 2  (1 100 735)  189 164 

Balance at the end of the year  3 824 176  5 627 970 

E6.5.2 Deferred gains (B)
Balance at the beginning of the year  (5 094 998)  (4 286 547)

Unrealised foreign exchange movement  636 479  (888 535)

Fair value adjustment through profit or loss 2  931 577  80 084 

Balance at the end of the year  (3 526 942)  (5 094 998)

E6.5.3 Fair value of financial asset (A-B)  297 234  532 972 

Balance at the end of the year  297 234  532 972 

E6.6 Movements through profit or loss
Movement on financial asset  (1 803 794)  1 122 979 

Movement on deferred gains on financial asset  1 568 056  (808 451)

Total fair value adjustment to financial asset 2  (235 738)  314 528 
2  At 30 June 2021, Hystead had accepted an offer to sell Delta City Belgrade. As a result, the anticipated future dividend stream from Delta City Belgrade has been 

included in the valuation of the financial asset for 6 months (being the anticipated time after 30 June 2021 by which the sale may be implemented). The result 
is a reduction in the gross value of the financial asset attributable to Delta City Belgrade from €47 million in June 2020 to €900k in June 2021, a reduction of 
R783 million. An equivalent portion of the deferred gains relating to Delta City Belgrade have also been reversed.

E6.7 Valuation methodology

The Group performs an internal valuation of the financial asset based on the anticipated cash flows of the underlying investment 
property companies. The European investment properties are independently valued every 6 months.

All cashflow projections of Hystead and the underlying property companies are performed in Euros to give a valuation of the financial 
asset in Euros. The final Euro value is converted to Rands at the year end exchange rate.

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring the financial asset, as well as the significant unobservable 
inputs used:

VALUATION TECHNIQUE
UNOBSERVABLE 
INPUTS

MOVEMENT  
IN INPUT

EFFECT ON ESTIMATED 
FAIR VALUE

Discounted cash flow: The valuation is calculated 
as the present value of the anticipated future 
net cash flows expected to be generated by the 
underlying shopping centres after deducting 
the head office costs within the Hystead group 
(in Euros).

Annual growth rate Increase Increase

Terminal growth rate Decrease Decrease

The cash flow projections include specific 
estimates for 10 years (2020: 10 years), other 
than for Delta City Belgrade  which is included for 
6 months as it is held-for-sale. The expected net 
cash flows are discounted using a risk adjusted 
discount rate as well as a risk adjusted cap rate.

Exit cap rate Increase Decrease

Discount rate Discount rate Increase
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

E6  FINANCIAL ASSET - HYSTEAD continued

E6.8 Valuation assumptions

The key assumptions used in determining the fair value of the investment in Hystead are in the following ranges:

GROUP and COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

Unobservable inputs  %  % 
Annual growth rates  (0.02) to 634.5  1.3 to 18.1 

Weighted average annual growth rate  67.1  6.5 

Discount rates  6.3 to 8.3  6.0 to 8.0 

Weighted average discount rate  7.1  6.9 

Exit capitalisation rates  5.3 to 7.5  5.0 to 7.3 

Weighted average exit capitalisation rate  5.9  5.8 

Due to COVID-19 the financial performance of the Hystead Group was negatively impacted in both 2021 and 2020.  However, at the 
valuation date, relevant property markets are mostly functioning again, with transaction volumes and other relevant evidence at levels 
where enough market evidence exists upon which to base opinions of value. This is reflected in the annual growth rates and weighted 
average annual growth rates above.

The annual growth rates and weighted average annual growth rate above were affected by a significant initial “cash sweep” in the first 
year of the forecast period by local lender banks in Delta City Podgorica and Skopje City Mall, which reduces their available cashflow 
and distorts the average annual growth rates. Excluding the effect of the cash sweep the annual growth rates are in a range of (0.02) to 
11.6 % and the weighted average annual growth rate is 3.9 %.

The discount and capitalisation rates used in the valuation of the financial asset were increased by 0.25% from 2020, in line with the 
increase in the discount and capitalisation rates used by Hystead’s  independent property valuers, and the heightened economic risks as 
a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

E6.9 Valuation sensitivity

The valuation of the Financial asset - Hystead is sensitive to changes to the unobservable inputs. Changes to one of the unobservable 
inputs, while holding the other inputs constant, would have the following effects on the fair value of the Financial asset - Hystead in the 
statement of profit or loss.

GROUP and COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

Unobservable inputs % change 1 % change 1  R’000  R’000 
Annual growth rate  0.5  0.5  72 496  96 653 

 (0.5)  (0.5)  (72 496)  (96 653)

Terminal growth rate  0.5  0.5  7 250  6 904 

 (0.5)  (0.5)  (7 250)  (6 904)

Discount rate  0.5  0.5  (72 496)  (124 268)

 (0.5)  (0.5)  72 496  124 268 

Exit capitalisation rate  0.5  0.5  (94 245)  (85 607)

 (0.5)  (0.5)  94 245  85 607 
1 The percentage change applied in each year is the possible change applicable to each input.

The carrying value of the investment in Hystead is sensitive to changes in the Rand / Euro exchange rate used to convert the Euro 
denominated value of the Financial asset - Hystead to Rands.  The Rand / Euro exchange rate improved from R 19.45 / Euro at 
30 June 2020 to R 17.02 / Euro at 30 June 2021, resulting in a decrease in the fair value of the Financial asset - Hystead of R 66.6 million 
over the year.

Other effects of changes to the Rand / Euro exchange rate are addressed in note N4.3 - Sensitivity.
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

E7  ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD-FOR-SALE

E7.1 Accounting policy

Non-current assets, or disposal Groups comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather 
than through continuing use, are classifi ed as held-for-sale. Th is condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and 
the non-current asset or disposal Group is available for sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary 
for sales of such assets. For the sale to be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to sell the 
asset or disposal Group.

Investment property classifi ed as held-for-sale is measured in accordance with IAS 40: Investment property at fair value with gains 
or losses on subsequent disposal being recognised in profi t or loss in the line profi t / (loss) on disposal – investment property. 
Disposal Groups and non-current assets held-for-sale are presented separately from other assets and liabilities in the statement of 
fi nancial position.

E7.2 Summary of disposal Group

E7.2.1 Gruppo

On 9 November 2020 Hyprop announced that Hyprop Mauritius (as one of the sellers) had concluded an agreement (the SPA) to 
dispose of its 75% interest in Gruppo to two new property funds managed by the Actis Group (the transaction). Th e transaction remains 
subject to the fulfi lment of certain conditions precedent, including certain fundraising requirements. 

Given the current lack of liquidity in Nigeria, fulfi lling this condition is taking longer than anticipated, however, the parties remain 
committed to the transaction and are working to fulfi l the conditions precedent and / or to fi nd alternative ways to implement 
the transaction. 

Th e long stop date for the transaction was initially extended to 31 July 2021 and subsequently to 31 October 2021 and may be 
extended further by written agreement between the parties if the US Dollar liquidity shortage in Nigeria has not improved by such date.

Th e parties have agreed that the sellers may engage other potential buyers for the property and, should the sellers wish to enter into an 
agreement with such potential buyers, they may terminate the SPA prior to the long stop date. 

It remains Hyprop’s intention to exit its Sub-Saharan African investments and the parties remain committed to the transaction. 
Accordingly, Gruppo continues to be designated as held-for-sale as at 30 June 2021.

Gruppo is reported under the Sub-Saharan Africa segment.

Th e carrying values of the assets and liabilities of Gruppo have been adjusted in line with the anticipated sale proceeds.

Th e Group’s other Sub-Saharan African interests are held via the Group’s interest in AttAfrica. It is anticipated that these interests will be 
realised by AttAfrica and the net proceeds distributed by AttAfrica to its shareholders.

Th e investment in AttAfrica does not meet the defi nition of an asset held-for-sale and the shares in AttAfrica are classifi ed as an 
Investment in a joint venture. 

E7.2.2 Atterbury Value Mart

Hyprop announced on 8 February 2021 that it had signed agreements for the disposal of Atterbury Value Mart for an aggregate 
purchase consideration of R1.12 billion. 

Th e sale was implemented on 2 July 2021 and, accordingly, Atterbury Value Mart was designated as held-for-sale at as 30 June 2021. 
Atterbury Value Mart is reported under the SA operating segment. Th e carrying value of Atterbury Value Mart has been adjusted in line 
with the anticipated net sale proceeds.
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E. PROPERTY INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

E7  ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD-FOR-SALE continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

E7.3 Maturity profile  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Non-current assets  2 771 254  2 009 115  1 113 456  -   
Investment property  2 707 773  1 983 547  1 069 823  -   

Straight-line rental income accrual  35 187  9 541  27 797  -   

Other non-current assets  28 294  16 027  15 836  -   

Current assets  204 910  89 803  17 400  -   

Cash and cash equivalents  163 559  41 667  13 194  -   
Other current assets  41 351  48 136  4 206  -   

Total assets classified as held-for-sale  2 976 164  2 098 918  1 130 856  -   

Non-current liabilities  (1 153 572)  (1 312 286)  -    -   
Non-current financial liabilities  (1 153 572)  (1 312 286)  -    -   

Current liabilities  (82 541)  (46 930)  (27 652)  -   
Other current financial liabilities  (49 788)  -    (8 595)  -   

Other current liabilities  (32 753)  (46 930)  (19 057)  -   

Total liabilities associated with assets held-for-sale  (1 236 113)  (1 359 216)  (27 652)  -   

Net assets classified as held-for-sale  1 740 051  739 702  1 103 204  -   

E7.4 Movement for the year – assets
Balance at the beginning of the year  2 098 918  2 047 847  -    -   

Additions  1 243 459  (409 556)  1 130 856  -   

Currency translation difference  (366 213)  460 627  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  2 976 164  2 098 918  1 130 856  -   

E7.5 Movement for the year – liabilities
Balance at the beginning of the year  (1 359 216)  (1 098 300)  -    -   

Additions  (114 049)  (13 873)  (27 652)  -   

Currency translation difference  237 152  (247 043)  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  (1 236 113)  (1 359 216)  (27 652)  -   

Net assets classified as held-for-sale  1 740 051  739 702  1 103 204  -   

E7.6 Non-controlling interests - Gruppo
Balance at the beginning of the year  (74 877)  39 799  -    -   

Loss for the year  (21 198)  (121 177)  -    -   

Other comprehensive income for the year  13 804  6 501  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  (82 271)  (74 877)  -    -   
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F.  Other assets
F1  LOANS RECEIVABLE

F1.1 Accounting policy

Loans receivable are carried at amortised cost using the eff ective interest method, less any accumulated expected credit losses. Interest 
earned on loans receivable is recognised on an accrual basis using the eff ective interest rate method, other than loans which are credit 
impaired (stage 3 loans) where interest is only accrued on the net balance (i.e. the outstanding balance less credit impairments). 

A loan receivable is considered to be in default when the borrower is in breach of the terms of the loan agreement.  A loan receivable 
is written off  when there is no prospect of recovery of the amount and / or an agreement to this eff ect has been reached between 
the parties.

Th e expected credit losses associated with loans receivable carried at amortised cost are assessed on a forward-looking basis using the 
general model in terms of IFRS 9. Th e following  3 parameters are used to measure expected credit losses on loans receivable carried at 
amortised cost:

 •  the probability of default (PD),

 •  loss given default (LGD), and 

 • exposure at default (EAD).

F1.2 Key judgements and estimations

Key judgements and estimations applied to assess the recoverability of the Group’s loan receivable from AttAfrica in the prior year are 
similar to those applied to assess the investment in AttAfrica for impairment in the current year. See Note A2.2.

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

F1.3 Net carrying value R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Non-current  4 200  -    36 487  29 108 
ZAR loans receivable  4 200  4 200 

ZAR loans receivable from subsidiaries  -    -    32 287  29 108 

Current  19 911  681 215  30 051  22 759 
EUR loans receivable  19 911  22 759  19 911  22 759 

ZAR loans receivable from subsidiaries  -    -    10 140  -   

USD loans receivable from AttAfrica  -    658 456  -    -   

Total loans receivable  24 111  681 215  66 538  51 867 

Loan balances receivable F1.5  24 111  1 052 171  1 596 616  1 606 928 

Cumulative expected credit losses (ECL's) F1.6  -    (370 956)  (1 530 078)  (1 555 061)

Net loans receivable  24 111  681 215  66 538  51 867 

F. OTHER ASSETS
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F1  LOANS RECEIVABLE continued

F. OTHER ASSETS
continued

GROUP COMPANY

F1.4 Loan details 1 June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

Counterparty Security
Maturity 

date
Base 

currency

Nominal 
interest 

(%) R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

NON-CURRENT

Hyprop Mauritius

Unsecured
12 months 

notice ZAR / USD 4.5  -    -    -    -   
Loan balance  -    -    26 455  25 052 

Cumulative ECL's  -    -    (26 455)  (25 052)

The loan was converted to a ZAR denominated loan on 
30 June 2021.

Hyprop Mauritius

Unsecured
no fixed 

term ZAR variable  -    -    -    -   
Loan balance  -    -    1 460 335  1 491 146 

Cumulative ECL's  -    -    (1 460 335)  (1 491 146)

The loan bears interest at rates agreed from time to time. 
Due to the financial difficulties faced by Hyprop Mauritius, 
including a decrease in the income received from its 
investment in AttAfrica, interest on the loans was suspended 
with effect from 16 October 2019. The loan has been 
subordinated in favour of the other creditors of Hyprop 
Mauritius.

Hyprop Share Scheme

Unsecured
no fixed 

term ZAR variable  -    -    32 287  29 108 
Loan balance  -    -    75 575  67 971 

Cumulative ECL's  -    -    (43 288)  (38 863)

The loan bears interest at variable rates agreed from time to 
time and has no fixed repayment terms. The loan is repaid at 
each vesting date primarily through the transfer of Hyprop 
shares held by Hyprop Share Scheme to Hyprop for delivery 
to employees under the conditional unit plan (CUP). Hyprop 
has subordinated a portion of the loan in favour of the other 
creditors of Hyprop Share Scheme and has agreed not to call 
for the repayment of the loan for at least 12 months.

Entrepreneurship To The Point

Unsecured
October 

2024 ZAR none  4 200  -    4 200  -   

The loan was advanced as part  of the Group’s corporate social 
responsibility and BBBEE enterprise development initiatives. 
Entrepreneurship To The Point helps SMME entrepreneurs 
to build businesses through entrepreneurship, business 
networking and by providing access to information and 
business resources.

Total non-current loans receivable  4 200  -    36 487  29 108 
1 The loan terms detailed above apply to the 2021 and 2020 financial years.
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F1  LOANS RECEIVABLE continued

F1.4 Loan details continued

F. OTHER ASSETS
continued

GROUP COMPANY

Counterparty Security
Maturity 

date
Base 

currency

Nominal 
interest 

(%)
June 2021

R’000
June 2020 

R’000 
June 2021

R’000
June 2020 

R’000 

CURRENT

AttAfrica

Unsecured June 2025 ZAR 6.75  -    658 456  -    -   
Loan balance  -    1 029 412  -    -   

Cumulative ECL's  -    (370 956)  -    -   

The loan was settled through a subscription for ‘A’ ordinary 
shares in AttAfrica on 14 May 2021. The loan bore interest at a 
rate of 6.75% at 30 June 2020.

West Africa Asset Management

Unsecured
On 

demand ZAR none  -    -    4 240  -   

Natalmahogany (SOKO)

Unsecured
December 

2021 ZAR
Prime 
+5%  -    -    5 900  -   

Vondelvlag Holding

Unsecured
November 

2021 EUR 3.15  17 358  19 841  17 358  19 841 

Vondelvlag Stichting

Unsecured
November 

2021 EUR 3.15  2 553  2 918  2 553  2 918 

Total current loans receivable  19 911  681 215  30 051  22 759 

Total loans receivable  24 111  681 215  66 538  51 867 

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

F1.5 Movement for the year - Total loans receivable R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Balance at the beginning of the year  1 052 171  3 007 898  1 606 928  1 582 891 

Settled through subscription for 'A' ordinary shares/ 
preference shares in AttAfrica  (954 482)  (1 768 661)  -    -   

Advances during the year  4 200  70 856  17 810  16 550 

Interest written off  -    -    (25 052)  -   

Repayments during the year  -    (669 396)  -    -   

Net interest accrued / (received)  -    29 744  5 748  1 623 

Non cash realisations  -    -    (287)  (3 805)

Currency translation difference  (77 778)  524 242  (8 531)  9 669 

Loan realised through disposal  -    (142 512)  -    -   

Net loans receivable at the end of the year  24 111  1 052 171  1 596 616  1 606 928 



www.hyprop.co.za     |     712021 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

F1  LOANS RECEIVABLE continued

F. OTHER ASSETS
continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

F1.6 Movement for the year - Expected credit losses R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Balance at the beginning of the year  (370 956)  (1 513 433)  (1 555 061)  (1 510 441)

Expected credit losses raised during the year  -    (289 974)  (69)  (44 620)

Interest written off  -    -    25 052  -   

Currency translation difference  -    (336 210)  -    -   

Reversal on subscription for 'A' ordinary shares/ 
preference shares in AttAfrica  370 956  1 768 661  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  -    (370 956)  (1 530 078)  (1 555 061)

F1.7 Movement for the year - cumulative fair value adjustments
Balance at the beginning of the year  -    (142 512)  -    -   

Fair value realised through disposal  -    142 512  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  -    -    -    -   
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F. OTHER ASSETS
continued

F2  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

F2.1 Accounting policy

Trade and other receivables are carried at amortised cost less any accumulated expected credit losses. Short-term receivables are 
measured at original invoice amount when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation 
of recovery include, among others, insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the tenant, default on payment terms and vacation 
or abandonment of the leased premises. Impaired trade and other receivables are derecognised when all reasonable efforts to collect 
the amounts outstanding have failed and they are assessed as uncollectible.

Trade receivables are considered to be in default when the debtor is in breach of the terms of their lease. 

F2.2 Key judgements and estimations

For key judgements and estimations applied to trade and other receivables refer to note A2.2.

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

F2.3 Net carrying value R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Rent and deposits receivable  122 555  155 186  116 490  155 186 

Provision for expected credit losses  (78 966)  (57 226)  (78 255)  (57 226)

Municipal recoveries  54 408  48 704  54 408  48 704 

Prepayments  1 430  2 337  1 430  2 337 

Municipal deposits  989  1 459  989  1 459 

Receivables relating to related parties  517  1 981  517  1 981 

Other receivables  5 349  2 107  5 333  1 575 

Total  106 282  154 548  100 912  154 016 

Gross trade and other receivables  185 248  211 774  179 167  211 242 

Cumulative expected credit losses N5.2.3.1  (78 966)  (57 226)  (78 255)  (57 226)

Total  106 282  154 548  100 912  154 016 

F3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

F3.1 Accounting policy

Cash and cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost. Interest earned on cash 
invested at financial institutions is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

F3.2 Net carrying value R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Cash held in call accounts 1  14 872  14 394  14 872  14 394 

Bank balances and cash  762 819  820 483  732 551  711 968 

Total  777 691  834 877  747 423  726 362 
1 Cash held in call accounts as security for bank guarantees in favour of municipalities.
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F. OTHER ASSETS
continued

F4  OTHER INVESTMENTS

F4.1 Profile

As part of Edcon’s restructuring in March 2019, Edcon approached its top 31 landlords and offered the landlords an opportunity to 
subscribe for an equity interest (comprising A Class ordinary shares in Edcon and Tranche C mandatory convertible instruments) (Edcon 
Equity) in Edcon or, as an alternative, requested a 40.9% reduction in rentals for a 24-month period commencing on 1 April 2019 (the 
Edcon rent reduction).

Hyprop agreed to assist Edcon by subscribing for equity in Edcon on a monthly basis for an amount equivalent to the monthly Edcon 
rent reduction, a total of R58 million to 30 June 2020 (the Edcon subscription).

In April 2020 Edcon filed for business rescue citing the loss of revenue due to COVID-19 as the main reason, at which time the Edcon 
rent reduction and Edcon subscription arrangements ended. The business rescue practitioners’ plan was approved by the creditors of 
Edcon on 22 June 2020 and resulted in the sale of the Edgars, Jet and CNA brands, following which Edcon ceased trading.

The directors consider it prudent to adjust the fair value of the investment in the Edcon Equity to zero until the Company receives any 
liquidation distribution or other recovery of this investment. Accordingly, the investment in Edcon was fully impaired at 30 June 2021 
and 30 June 2020.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

F4.2 Carrying value R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Cost of Edcon Equity  57 877  57 877  57 877  57 877 

Accumulated fair value adjustments  (57 877)  (57 877)  (57 877)  (57 877)

Total  -    -    -    -   
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F. OTHER ASSETS
continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

F5.3 Net carrying value R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Computer software at cost  20 133  -    -    -   

Total net carrying value  20 133  -    -    -   

F5.4 Movement reconciliation
Computer 

software Total 

GROUP   R’000

Balance at 30 June 2020 -  -   
Acquisitions  20 133  20 133 

Balance at 30 June 2021  20 133  20 133 

F5  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

F5.1 Accounting policy

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Th e cost of the intangible 
assets is amortised, in equal monthly instalments over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

  Computer software  3 to 5 years

Th e amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values of intangible assets are reviewed annually and adjusted if necessary. Th e 
amortisation charge is included in the “other operating expenses” line item on the statement of profi t or loss and other comprehensive 
income. Intangible assets not yet in use are not amortised and are tested for impairment at least annually.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefi ts will be generated, the cost thereof can be 
reliably measured, technical feasibility can be demonstrated and the Group has the intention and fi nancial resources to complete 
development. All other expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses on the disposal of intangible assets are recognised in profi t or loss and are calculated as the diff erence between the 
proceeds and the carrying value of the item sold.

F5.2 Profi le

Th e Group’s intangible assets comprise the computer software (including source code application and related intellectual property) 
developed by EmpiriQ for the SOKO District.

Natalmahogany, in which the Group holds a 56% interest, acquired the intangible asset from EmpiriQ in exchange for their 44% 
shareholding in Natalmahogany.

Th e intangible asset was not amortised during the 2021 fi nancial year as the software was only available for use at the end of July 2021.
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G.  Equity and reserves
G1  SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES

G1.1 Accounting policy

Stated capital

Ordinary shares are classifi ed as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction 
from equity.

Treasury shares

Company shares held by the Company or a subsidiary are classifi ed as treasury shares on consolidation. Th ese shares are carried at cost 
and deducted from equity.

Any subsequent gain or loss on the sale or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised directly in equity.

Distributions and unrealised losses on own shares are eliminated from group profi t or loss for the year.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

G1.2 Carrying value R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Stated capital

Ordinary shares  9 595 629  8 462 327  9 595 629  8 462 327 
Balance at the beginning of the year  8 462 327  8 462 327  8 462 327  8 462 327 

Issued during the year  1 133 302  -    1 133 302  -   

Treasury shares  (74 451)  (75 296)  -    -   
Balance at the beginning of the year  (75 296)  (54 932)  -    -   

Purchased during the year 1  -    (26 019)  -    -   

Sold / Vested during the year  845  5 655  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  9 521 178  8 387 031  9 595 629  8 462 327 

G1.3 Number of shares  # of shares  # of shares  # of shares  # of shares 

Stated capital

Authorised
500 000 000 no par value ordinary shares (2020: 500 000 000)

Issued and fully paid up shares

Ordinary shares 309 070 057  255 894 516  309 070 057  255 894 516 
Balance at the beginning of the year 255 894 516  255 894 516  255 894 516  255 894 516 

Issued during the year 53 175 541  -    53 175 541  -   

Treasury shares  (1 630 766)  (1 649 191)  -    -   

Balance at the beginning of the year  (1 649 191)  (611 519)  -    -   

Purchased during the year 1  -    (1 100 400)  -    -   

Sold / Vested during the year 18 425  62 728  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  307 439 291  254 245 325  309 070 057  255 894 516 
1  The shares purchased in the prior year were purchased at an average price of R23,58 per share by Hyprop Share Scheme and held as treasury shares to hedge 

Hyprop’s obligation to deliver Hyprop shares to employees under the CUP. No shares were purchased during the current financial year.

G. EQUITY AND RESERVES
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G. EQUITY AND RESERVES
continued

G2  RESERVES

G2.1 Accounting policy

Non-distributable reserves

Th e Non-distributable reserves comprise items that are not distributable to shareholders, such as fair value adjustments on the 
revaluation of investment property, derivatives and fi nancial assets, any impairment adjustments or accumulated expected credit 
losses, share-based payment transactions, profi ts or losses on sale of assets, the straight-line lease income adjustment, deferred 
taxation and reserves attributable to non-controlling shareholders. 

Currency translation reserve

Th e assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to the 
Group’s presentation currency (Rand) at the exchange rates at the reporting date. Th e income and expenses of foreign operations are 
translated to Rand at the dates of the transactions (an average rate for the year is used).

Foreign currency translation diff erences are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) and accumulated in the currency 
translation reserve, except to the extent that the translation diff erence is allocated to non-controlling interest (NCI).

G2.2 Carrying value

Th e following table refl ects the composition of non-distributable reserves:

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Revaluation reserves  10 057 504  11 908 436  10 129 917  11 984 199 

Investment property  9 812 024  11 605 924  9 706 012  11 499 472 

Listed property securities  616 759  616 759  616 759  616 759 

Financial asset  (82 531)  153 207  (82 531)  153 207 

Other investment  (57 877)  (57 877)  (57 877)  (57 877)

Loans receivable  (105 809)  (105 809)  -    -   

Financial guarantees  -    (16 665)  71 162  54 497 

Derivative instruments  (125 062)  (287 103)  (123 608)  (281 859)

Derecognition of financial guarantees 1  197 670  197 670  607 760  492 899 

Realised gains / (losses) on disposals  331 551  331 551  469 239  469 239 

Non-distributable reserves of associate  121 328  125 344  121 374  121 374 

Impairment of goodwill  (577 847)  (577 847)  25 400  25 400 

Gain on bargain purchase (African Land)  191 235  191 235  -    -   

Impairment of loans receivable  (1 832 521)  (1 832 521)  (1 556 794)  (1 556 724)

Impairment of other assets  (29 964)  (29 964)  (1 559 438)  (908 838)

Total non-distributable reserves  8 458 956  10 313 904  8 237 458  10 627 549 
1  The derecognition of financial guarantees is accounted for through profit and loss. Subsequently the amounts in retained earnings are transferred to a 

non-distributable reserve. 
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H. Funding and related items
H1  BORROWINGS

H1.1 Accounting policy

Interest-bearing borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method (see note D5.1 for the accounting policy for borrowings costs). 

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

H1.2 Carrying value R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Bank loans  3 305 603  4 153 233  2 484 228  1 158 693 
Secured  3 105 679  4 153 233  2 284 304  1 158 693 

Unsecured  199 924  -    199 924  -   

Debt capital market (DCM) funding  2 916 087  3 340 490  2 916 087  3 340 490 
Secured  499 733  499 533  499 733  499 533 

Unsecured  2 416 354  2 840 957  2 416 354  2 840 957 

Non-controlling shareholder / group company loans  346 179  356 623  761 125  761 124 

Total borrowings  6 567 869  7 850 346  6 161 440  5 260 307 

H1.3 Maturity profile

Non-current  4 132 704  4 074 183  4 893 829  4 835 307 
Bank loans  1 883 579  1 158 693  1 883 579  1 158 693 

DCM funding  2 249 125  2 915 490  2 249 125  2 915 490 

Non-controlling shareholder / group company loans  -    -    761 125  761 124 

Current  1 281 593  2 463 877  1 267 611  425 000 
Bank loans  600 649  2 038 877  600 649  -   

DCM funding  666 962  425 000  666 962  425 000 

Non-controlling shareholder / group company loans  13 982  -    -    -   

Liabilities associated with non-current assets held-for-sale  1 153 572  1 312 286  -    -   
Bank loans  821 375  955 663  -    -   

Non-controlling shareholder / group company loans  332 197  356 623  -    -   

Total borrowings  6 567 869  7 850 346  6 161 440  5 260 307 

H1.4 Movement reconciliation
Balance at the beginning of the year  7 850 346  8 385 363  5 260 307  5 418 909 

Currency translation difference  (329 145)  608 406  -    -   

New borrowings raised during the year  2 547 067  1 247 982  1 722 086  1 247 982 

Raising fees – amortised  4 047  1 435  4 047  1 436 

Repayments during the year  (3 556 339)  (2 469 969)  (825 000)  (1 408 020)

Net interest accrued  51 893  78 416  -    -   

Fair value adjustment  -    (1 287)  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  6 567 869  7 850 346  6 161 440  5 260 307 

H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS CONTINUED
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H1  BORROWINGS continued

H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

H1.5 Individual facilities INTEREST RATE GROUP COMPANY

Facility
Maturity 

date
Initial 

term Security
Base 

currency Nominal interest June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

Bank loans % % % R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
The Standard Bank of South Africa Ltd R959m Jun-23 4 years Secured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.65  5.34  5.56  959 387  958 885  959 387  958 885 

Nedbank Limited R200m3 Mar-22 2 years Unsecured 4 ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.6  5.29  5.41  199 924  199 808  199 924  199 808 

The Standard Bank of South Africa Ltd R925m Jan-24 3.5 years Secured ZAR 3M Jibar + 2.1%  5.79  -    924 192  -    924 192  -   

The Standard Bank of South Africa Ltd R800m Feb-22 1.5 years Secured ZAR 3M Jibar + 1.95%  5.64  -    400 725  -    400 725  -   

RMB International (Mauritius) Ltd 1 USD56.5m Feb-23 2 years Secured ZAR 3m Libor + 6.13%  6.28  -    821 375  -    -    -   

Rand Merchant Bank USD23m May-21 3 years Secured USD LIBOR + 2.3  -    3.39  -    316 318  -    -   

The Standard Bank of South Africa Ltd USD111m Aug-20 5 years Secured USD LIBOR+2.47 (fixed)  -    4.02  -    821 337  -    -   

Standard Finance (Isle of Man) Ltd USD60m Oct-20 3 years Secured USD LIBOR+2.24  -    3.64  -    901 222  -    -   

Stanbic IBTC Bank PLC 1 USD31.6m Jan-21 3 years Secured USD Note 2  -   
7.01  

and 6.01  -    546 418  -    -   

Ninety One (Pty) Ltd 1 USD23.7m Jan-21 3 years Secured USD Note 2  -   
7.01  

and 6.01  -    409 245  -    -   

Total bank loans  3 305 603  4 153 233  2 484 228  1 158 693 
1 Loans disclosed under liabilities associated with assets held-for-sale.
2 Facility A: 3-month LIBOR+6.25% ; facility B: 3-month LIBOR+5.25%.
3 Revolving credit facility.
4 2020: Secured

DCM funding
HILB06 R425m Jul-20 4 years Unsecured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.79  -    5.70  -    425 000  -    425 000 

HILB07 R317m Jul-21 5 years Unsecured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.90  5.59  5.81  317 000  316 970  317 000  316 970 

HILB08 R452m Mar-23 5 years Unsecured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.60  5.29  5.51  451 921  451 876  451 921  451 876 

HILB09 R348m Mar-25 7 years Unsecured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.90  5.59  5.61  347 907  347 882  347 907  347 882 

HILB10 R250m Mar-22 3.5 years Unsecured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.44  5.13  5.35  249 976  249 940  249 976  249 940 

HILB11 R150m Mar-24 5 years Unsecured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.75  5.44  5.66  149 959  149 944  149 959  149 944 

HILB12 R350m Mar-24 5 years Unsecured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.70  5.39  5.61  349 905  349 870  349 905  349 870 

HILB13 R100m Dec-21 1.5 years Unsecured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+2.05  5.74  5.96  99 986  100 000  99 986  100 000 

HIL03U (Unlisted) R500m Nov-22 3 years Secured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.5  5.19  5.41  499 733  499 533  499 733  499 533 

HIL02U (Unlisted) R450m Oct-22 3 years Unsecured ZAR 3-month JIBAR+1.5  5.50  5.41  449 700  449 475  449 700  449 475 

Total DCM funding 2 916 087 3 340 490 2 916 087 3 340 490 
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H1  BORROWINGS continued

H1.5 Individual facilities continued

H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS
continued

INTEREST RATE GROUP COMPANY

Maturity  
date Security

Base 
currency Nominal interest June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

Non-controlling shareholder / group company loans % % % R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
African Land Ltd Note 4 Unsecured ZAR none  -    -    -    -    761 125  761 124 

AttAfrica Limited on-demand Unsecured USD none  -    -    12 711  -    -    -   

Attacq Limited on-demand Unsecured ZAR none  -    -    1 271  -    -    -   

AIH International Limited 1 Mar-23 Unsecured USD 8.08 fixed rate  8.08  10.08  332 197  356 623  -    -   

Total non-controlling shareholder / group company loans  346 179  356 623  761 125  761 124 

Total borrowings  6 567 869  7 850 346  6 161 440  5 260 307 
1 Loans disclosed under liabilities associated with assets held-for-sale

4 The African Land loan is repayable on a minimum of 12 months’ written notice.

 Undrawn facilities 
Total group / company undrawn facilities at year end amount to:  950 000  500 000  950 000  500 000 

The Secured loans above are secured against investment property as set out in note E1.8 – Mortgaged properties. Interest on all loans is paid monthly or quarterly as applicable. Capital is repayable on the 
loan maturity date.
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H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS CONTINUED
continued

H2  DERIVATIVES

H2.1 Accounting policy

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Any directly attributable transaction costs 
are recognised in profi t or loss as incurred.

Derivative instruments comprise interest rate swaps, exchange rate zero cost collars (put and call options), participation forwards (put 
and call options) and forward exchange contracts. 

Th e interest rate swaps are used to hedge interest rate exposure on long-term debt facilities and corporate bonds. Zero cost collars are 
used to hedge the exchange rate in anticipation of receipt of dividends from foreign investments and subsidiaries. Forward exchange 
contracts are used to hedge amounts committed to recapitalise foreign subsidiaries and investments and to hedge the exchange rate in 
anticipation of receipts of dividends from investments and subsidiaries. 

All the hedges the Group enters into are economic hedges as the Group does not apply hedge accounting (as defi ned by IFRS 9).

Further disclosure on the designation of the interest rate swaps and their risk mitigation role is provided in note N3 – Interest rate risk 
and sensitivity.

For the fair value hierarchy refer to note M1.2.

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

H2.2 Net carrying value R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Currency collars and forward exchange contracts H2.4  4 324  (32 019)  4 324  (32 019)

Interest rate swaps H2.5  (127 932)  (253 630)  (127 932)  (249 840)

Total derivatives  (123 608)  (285 649)  (123 608)  (281 859)

H2.3 Maturity profi le
Current assets  4 324  -    4 324  -   

Non-current liabilities  (113 368)  (233 669)  (113 368)  (233 669)

Current liabilities  (14 564)  (51 980)  (14 564)  (48 190)

Total derivatives  (123 608)  (285 649)  (123 608)  (281 859)

H2.4 Currency collars and forward exchange contracts

H2.4.1 Maturity profi le - Currency collars and forward exchange contracts
Current assets  4 324  -    4 324  -   

Non-current liabilities  -    (3 693)  -    (3 693)

Current liabilities  -    (28 326)  -    (28 326)

Total derivatives  4 324  (32 019)  4 324  (32 019)

H2.4.2 Movement reconciliation
Balance at the beginning of the year  (32 019)  3 310  (32 019)  3 310 

New contracts entered into  1 108  (30 622)  1 108  (30 622)

Contracts utilised  28 327  (2 691)  28 327  (2 691)

Fair value adjustment 1  6 908  (2 016)  6 908  (2 016)

Balance at the end of the year  4 324  (32 019)  4 324  (32 019)
1Further disclosure on the gains and losses recorded in profit or loss is provided in note N3.2.1.
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H2  DERIVATIVES continued

H2.4 Currency collars and forward exchange contracts continued

H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS CONTINUED
continued

H2.4.3 Individual instruments GROUP COMPANY

Counter-
party  
bank

Type of  
instrument

Expiry 
date Currency

Nominal 
value 

‘000

June 2021

R’000

June 2020

 R’000 

June 2021

R’000

June 2020

 R’000 

RMB Currency collar Jul-20 EUR  2 000  -    (1 397)  -    (1 397)

RMB Currency collar Jul-20 EUR  2 000  -    (4 082)  -    (4 082)

ABSA Participation  
forward (net) Jul-20 USD  25 000  -    (4 765)  -    (4 765)

ABSA Forward  
exchange contract Aug-20 USD  45 000  -    (2 925)  -    (2 925)

RMB Currency collar Sep-20 EUR  3 350  -    (7 334)  -    (7 334)

ABSA Forward  
exchange contract Feb-21 EUR  2 100  -    (3 972)  -    (3 972)

ABSA Currency collar Apr-21 EUR  2 100  -    (3 851)  -    (3 851)

ABSA Currency collar Jul-21 EUR  2 100  3 215  (3 693)  3 215  (3 693)

RMB Currency collar Oct-21 EUR  1 105  694  -    694  -   

RMB Currency collar Jan-22 EUR  2 000  415  -    415  -   

Total currency collars and forward exchange contracts  4 324  (32 019)  4 324  (32 019)

H2.5 Interest rate swaps

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

H2.5.1 Maturity profile - Interest rate swaps R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Non-current liabilities  (113 368)  (229 976)  (113 368)  (229 976)

Current liabilities  (14 564)  (23 654)  (14 564)  (19 864)

Total derivatives  (127 932)  (253 630)  (127 932)  (249 840)

H2.5.2 Movement reconciliation
Balance at the beginning of the year  (253 630)  (67 563)  (249 840)  (66 734)

Currency translation difference  662  (196)  -    -   

New contracts entered into  (9 405)  -    (9 405)  -   

Contracts utilised  22 993  7 326  19 865  7 326 

Fair value adjustment  111 448  (193 197)  111 448  (190 432)

Balance at the end of the year  (127 932)  (253 630)  (127 932)  (249 840)
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H2  DERIVATIVES continued

H2.5 Interest rate swaps continued

H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS CONTINUED
continued

H2.5.3 Individual instruments GROUP COMPANY

Counter-party  
bank

Nominal  
amount

Expiry 
date

Fixed rate 
payable 

(%)

Variable 
rate 

receivable 
(%)

June 2021

R’000

June 2020

 R’000 

June 2021

R’000

June 2020

 R’000 

Standard Bank R450m Oct-20  7.85 
 3-month 

JIBAR  -    (8 171)  -    (8 171)

Standard Bank R958m Jun-23  7.04 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (42 402)  (79 402)  (42 402)  (79 402)

Standard Bank R300m Oct-23  7.82 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (21 605)  (34 550)  (21 605)  (34 550)

Standard Bank R100m May-24  7.85 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (7 762)  (12 129)  (7 762)  (12 129)

Standard Bank R350m Mar-24  7.52 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (22 536)  (37 084)  (22 536)  (37 084)

Standard Bank R150m Mar-24  7.52 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (9 658)  (15 893)  (9 658)  (15 893)

Nedbank R500m Jan-21  7.43 
 3-month 

JIBAR  -    (11 694)  -    (11 694)

Nedbank R500m Sep-21  7.61 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (4 916)  (24 404)  (4 916)  (24 404)

Nedbank R500m Oct-21  7.55 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (9 648)  (26 513)  (9 648)  (26 513)

Nedbank 2 R500m Sep-24  5.61 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (3 588)  -    (3 588)  -   

Nedbank 2 R500m Oct-24  5.71 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (3 708)  -    (3 708)  -   

RMB R500m Mar-24  5.15 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (1 115)  -    (1 115)  -   

RMB R250m Mar-24  5.14 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (493)  -    (493)  -   

ABSA R500m Mar-24  5.12 
 3-month 

JIBAR  (501)  -    (501)  -   

Standard Bank USD27.1m Oct-20  2.11 
 3-month 

LIBOR  -    (3 790)  -    -   

Total interest rate swaps  (127 932)  (253 630)  (127 932)  (249 840)

2 Forward starting swaps with dates beginning September and October 2021
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H2  DERIVATIVES continued

H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS CONTINUED
continued

GROUP COMPANY

H2.6 Valuation assumptions – Unobservable inputs June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
The key assumptions used in determining the fair value of 
Derivatives are in the following ranges:

USD revaluation rate  n/a  R17.4 - R17.5  n/a  R17.4 - R17.5 

EUR revaluation rate
R17.1  

to R19.0  R19.5 - R20.0 
R17.1  

to R19.0  R19.5 - R20.0 

Projected forward interest rate (JIBAR)  3.7% - 5.7%  3.5% - 6.7%  3.7% - 5.7%  3.5% - 6.7% 

Projected forward interest rate  (LIBOR or replacement rate)  n/a  0.3% - 0.8%  n/a  n/a 

Further disclosure on the valuation methodology is provided in note M2.1.

June 2021 June 2020 GROUP COMPANY

H2.7 Valuation sensitivity  % change  % change June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
Currency collars and forward 
exchange contracts

Increase in Delta 5% 25%  (751)  (230 154)  (751)  (230 154)

Decrease in Delta 5% 25%  3 199  359 279  3 199  359 279 

 bps  % change 
Interest rate swaps

Increase in projected 
forward interest rate 25bps 25%  23 576  81 645  23 576  81 645 

Decrease in projected 
forward interest rate 25bps 25%  (23 532)  (81 266)  (23 532)  (81 266)
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H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS CONTINUED
continued

H3  FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

H3.1 Accounting policy

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specifi ed payments to reimburse the holder of the guarantee for a 
loss that it incurs because a specifi ed debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modifi ed terms of a 
debt instrument. Liabilities under fi nancial guarantees are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the loss 
allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of 
income recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers.

For the fair value hierarchy refer to note M1.2.

Management assessed the obligations under the guarantees and concluded that these meet the defi nition of fi nancial guarantees, and 
the change in value of the guarantees represents a charge to profi t or loss.

H3.2 Key judgements and estimations

For key judgements and estimations applied to the Group’s fi nancial guarantees refer to note A2.2.

H3.3 Profi le

Th e Company has provided guarantees to banks that have provided funding to Hyprop Mauritius (a wholly owned subsidiary) and 
Hystead. Th e guarantees are secured by mortgage bonds over certain of the Company’s South African investment properties as 
disclosed in note E1.8 – Mortgaged properties. Details of the secured loans are disclosed in note H1.5. 

H3.3.1 USD guarantees

Hyprop Mauritius has provided limited guarantees to Rand Merchant Bank (Mauritius) for the interest payable under the USD 
denominated loan advanced to Gruppo Investments Nigeria Limited. Th is fi nancial guarantee liability is eliminated on consolidation as 
the underlying loan is refl ected on the statement of fi nancial position. Th e fair value of this guarantee is R2.7m.

In the prior year guarantees were provided by Hyprop to commercial banks for USD denominated loans advanced to Hyprop Mauritius. 
Th e fi nancial guarantee liabilities were eliminated on consolidation as the underlying loans were refl ected on the statement of fi nancial 
position. During the current year these loans were settled and the fi nancial guarantee liabilities derecognised.

H3.3.2 EUR guarantees

Hyprop and PDI Investment Holdings Limited (PDI) have guaranteed EUR401.5 million of loans advanced by banks to Hystead 
as follows:

  Hyprop EUR 361.5 million (June 2020: EUR 361.5 million)

  PDI  EUR 40 million (June 2020: EUR 40 million)

PDI has provided back-to-back guarantees to Hyprop for a further EUR47.2 million (2020: EUR46.8 million) (equivalent to 11.7% of the 
EUR401.5 million (2020: EUR401.5 million) guaranteed debt).

For the EUR73.5 million of debt (2020: EUR73.5 million) (18.3% of the EUR401.5 million (2020: EUR401.5 million) guaranteed 
loans) which Hyprop has guaranteed in excess of its pro rata 60% interest in Hystead, Hyprop receives 60% of the related dividends 
declared to PDI from Hystead, which equates to 11% (60% x 18.3%) of the dividends paid by Hystead, as a guarantee fee (the credit 
enhancement fee). 
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H3  FINANCIAL GUARANTEES continued

H3.3.2 EUR guarantees continued

H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS CONTINUED
continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Guarantee fee income  3 635  22 111  3 635  22 111 

H3.4 Carrying value
Guarantees in respect of USD denominated loans  -    -    -    114 861 

Guarantees in respect of EUR denominated loans  110 401  127 066  110 401  127 066 

Total financial guarantee liabilities  110 401  127 066  110 401  241 927 

H3.5 Maturity profile
Non-current liabilities  65 837  127 066  65 837  127 066 

Current liabilities  44 564  -    44 564  114 861 

Total financial guarantee liabilities  110 401  127 066  110 401  241 927 

H3.6 Movement reconciliation
Balance at the beginning of the year  127 066  110 401  241 927  296 424 

Changes in expected credit losses  (16 665)  16 665  (16 665)  (54 497)

Derecognition of guarantees cancelled/expired  -    -    (114 861)  -   

Balance at the end of the year  110 401  127 066  110 401  241 927 

The total guarantee fee earned during the year was:

The decrease in the financial guarantee liability for guarantees given on behalf of Hyprop Mauritius is due to repayment of the 
guaranteed loans during the year.

GROUP and COMPANY

H3.7 Valuation assumptions – Unobservable inputs June 2021 June 2020 

Risk-free rate EUR IOS and USD IOS EUR IOS and USD IOS

Data used for probability of default  Publicly available IMF data 
and management input 

Publicly available IMF data 
and management input 

Loss given default (%)  Between 20% and 30%  
for EUR guarantees

Between 20% and 30% 
for EUR guarantees and 

between 30% and 40% for 
USD guarantees

Credit rating  BB+ to BBB- BB+ to BBB-
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H3  FINANCIAL GUARANTEES continued

H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS CONTINUED
continued

H3.8 Valuation sensitivity

The valuation of the financial guarantee liabilities is sensitive to changes to the unobservable inputs above. Changes to one of the 
unobservable inputs, while holding the other inputs constant would have the following effects on the carrying value of the financial 
guarantees on the  statement of financial position.

The USD based guarantees at 30 June 2020 take into account the negative net asset value of the underlying entity (Hyprop Mauritius). 
Due to the negative net asset value of Hyprop Mauritius being greater than the changes in the valuation of the financial guarantee 
liabilities under the sensitivity testing, the valuation of the financial guarantee liabilities given on behalf of Hyprop Mauritius is not 
affected by the changes in the unobservable inputs. 

As a result of the aforegoing and the fact that all the USD denominated guarantees given by the Company expired during the year, all 
sensitivity fluctuations relate only to the EUR based guarantees.

GROUP and COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

Change in credit risk  R’000  R’000 
One notch better credit risk than Hyprop  (41 390)  (49 287)

One notch worse credit risk than Hyprop 1  -    32 533 
1 No value is shown for the worsening of credit risk as the highest end of the day 1 valuation has been used.

H4  COVENANTS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

H4.1 External restrictions

In terms of the agreements between the Group and the financial institutions that have granted loans to the Group, the Group is required 
to maintain certain key financial ratios (covenants). If a covenant is breached on or before the reporting date, the affected loans should 
be classified as current if the Group does not have the right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

The Group complied with all of its loan covenants during the current and preceding financial years.

Summary of the Group’s key covenants and their status

Covenant
Benchmark range  
(2021 / 2020) Reported as June 2021 Status June 2020 Status

Loan to value ratio (LTV) A maximum of 50% 1 Percentage 37.1 - 39.1 42.4 - 49.5

Secured portfolio LTV A maximum of 50% to 70%  
/ 65% to 70% Percentage 35.1 - 62.2 59.2 - 65.5

Net asset value A minimum of R7.5 billion 1 Rbn  17.8 18.5

Interest cover ratio  
(EBITDA / interest expense)

A minimum of 1.75 to 
 2 times cover 1 Times 2.6 - 3.2 2.7 - 3.0

Secured portfolio interest 
cover ratio

A minimum of 1.75 to 1.8  
times cover 1 Times 2.9 - 6.0 2.0 - 5.0

1 The ranges indicated apply to both the 2021 and the 2020 financial years.
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H4  COVENANTS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT continued

H. FUNDING AND RELATED ITEMS CONTINUED
continued

H4.2 Internal restrictions

Hyprop’s capital management objective is to maintain a strong capital base to provide sustainable returns to shareholders over the 
long term. The Company’s borrowings are not limited by its Memorandum of Incorporation however, in terms of the JSE listings 
requirements, a REIT’s total consolidated borrowings may not exceed 60% of its consolidated gross asset value, as reflected in its 
latest published financial statements or results. Should the 60% threshold be exceeded, Hyprop may lose its REIT status under the JSE 
Listings Requirements.

Hyprop’s (theoretical) unutilised borrowing capacity can be summarised as follows: 

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Total consolidated assets / gross asset value  26 878 084  28 959 704  26 498 102  26 880 655 

60% of gross asset value  16 126 850  17 375 822  15 898 861  16 128 393 

Total consolidated borrowings H1.2  (6 567 869)  (7 850 346)  (6 161 440)  (5 260 307)

Unutilised borrowing capacity  9 558 981  9 525 476  9 737 421  10 868 086 



www.hyprop.co.za     |     882021 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

I.   Other liabilities
I1  DEFERRED TAXATION

I1.1 Accounting policy

Deferred taxation is recognised for temporary diff erences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for fi nancial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred taxation is not recognised for the following temporary diff erences:

 •  Th e initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that aff ects neither 
accounting nor taxable profi t;

 •  Goodwill that arises on initial recognition in a business combination; and

 •  Diff erences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future.

A deferred taxation asset is recognised for all deductible temporary diff erences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profi t 
will be available against which the deductible temporary diff erences can be utilised. Deferred taxation assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related taxation benefi t will be realised.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the taxation rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on taxation rates and taxation laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date.

Th e eff ect of any changes in taxation rates on deferred taxation is recognised in profi t or loss for the period, except to the extent that 
they relate to items previously charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or equity.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are off set if there is a legally enforceable right to off set current taxation liabilities and assets, and 
they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

I1.2 Key judgements and estimations

For key judgements and estimations applied to taxation refer to note A2.2.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

I1.3 Carrying value R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Arising on:
Wear and tear claims on investment property and property, 
plant and equipment  194 091  173 320  194 095  173 320 

Other temporary differences  (158)  -    -    -   

Taxation loss brought forward  (6 877)  (78 122)  (6 877)  (78 122)

Total deferred taxation  187 056  95 198  187 218  95 198 

I1.4 Movement reconciliation
Balance at the beginning of the year  95 198  87 561  95 198  87 561 

Movement through profit or loss  91 858  7 637  92 020  7 637 

Property, plant and equipment and tenant installations  20 771  7 637  20 775  7 637 

Tax loss utilised 1  71 245  -    71 245  -   

Rent and other receivables  (158)  -    -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  187 056  95 198  187 218  95 198 
1  The Company’s S25BB qualifying distribution for the year ended 30 June 2020 equated to 76% of the distributable income for the year, less than estimated in the 

prior year. The undistributed income was set-off against the assessed loss brought forward from prior years. See note D7 for more disclosure.

I. OTHER LIABILITIES 
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I1  DEFERRED TAXATION continued

I. OTHER LIABILITIES 
continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

I1.5 Tax rates used % %  % % 
South Africa – temporary differences  28  28  28  28 

I2 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

I2.1 Accounting policy

Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost. Short-term payables are measured at the original invoice amount as the 
effect of discounting is immaterial.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

I2.2 Carrying value R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Trade payables and accrued expenses  100 840  132 342  100 292  122 042 

Tenant deposits  74 881  84 934  74 881  84 934 

Gift cards  32 457  34 594  32 457  34 594 

Rent received in advance  65 684  57 338  65 684  57 338 

Value added tax (VAT)  17 892  8 030  17 892  8 030 

Municipal accruals  117 931  111 876  117 931  111 876 

Employee provisions  48 696  14 243  48 696  14 243 

Interest payable  37 276  39 485  37 276  34 993 

Other payables  11 542  11 868  11 546  11 255 

Total trade and other payables  507 199  494 710  506 655  479 305 

I3 DIVIDEND PAYABLE

I3.1 Profile
Dividends declared but not paid are recorded at their settlement value. 

I3.2 Carrying value
Dividend for the 6 months ended 31 December 2019  
(declared on 27 February 2020)  -    788 347  -    790 041 

Total dividend payable  -    788 347  -    790 041 

I4 TAXATION PAYABLE

I4.1 Profile
Group companies are liable for taxation based on the taxation laws in their jurisdiction of tax residence.

I4.2 Carrying value

Current liabilities  3 746  -    -    -   
Hyprop Mauritius  3 510  -    -    -   

WAAM  236  -    -    -   

Liabilities associated with non-current assets held-for-sale  5 738  -    -    -   
Gruppo  5 738  -    -    -   

Total taxation payable  9 484  -    -    -   
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J.   Cash fl ow information 
J1  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Loss for the year 
attributable to shareholders of the Company  (811 620)  (3 401 849)  (1 327 241)  (3 107 020)

Non-controlling interests share of loss for the year  (25 072)  (121 177)  -    -   

Deferred and normal tax  101 500  7 150  92 178  7 637 

Loss before taxation  (735 192)  (3 515 876)  (1 235 063)  (3 099 383)

Adjusted for  2 442 298  5 324 326  2 806 072  4 758 047 
Interest income D5.2  (26 842)  (88 997)  (30 922)  (58 751)

Interest expense D5.2  548 813  637 392  435 442  412 133 

Change in fair value - investment property E1.5  1 587 323  4 668 419  1 587 224  4 277 145 

Straight-line rental income accrual E1.9  114 705  (118 286)  114 218  (125 927)

Derecognition of financial guarantees H3.6  -    -    (114 861)  -   

Changes in expected credit losses 
- financial guarantees H3.6  (16 665)  16 665  (16 665)  (54 497)

Change in fair value - financial asset - Hystead E6.6  235 738  (314 528)  235 738  (314 528)

Change in fair value - derivatives  (162 041)  221 200  (158 251)  218 433 

Impairment of loans receivable  -    289 974  69  44 620 

Impairment of investment in subsidiary  -    -    650 600  398 020 

Dividends received D6.2  (19 833)  (120 630)  (19 833)  (120 630)

Loss from equity accounted investments E5.5.3  4 016  -    -    -   

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss  47 434  (1 876)  8 565  (9 669)

Impairment of trade receivables  72 253  77 682  58 006  35 786 

Depreciation – property, plant and equipment E2.3  50 817  45 860  48 271  44 462 

Share-based payment expense D3.2  8 574  11 795  8 574  11 795 

Other non-cash items  (1 994)  (344)  (103)  (345)

Operating profit before working capital changes  1 707 106  1 808 450  1 571 009  1 658 664 

Decrease / (increase) in working capital  21 611  (75 011)  45 430  (46 537)
(Increase) / Decrease in receivables  (30 693)  (121 652)  (7 292)  (101 201)

Increase / (Decrease) in payables  52 304  46 641  52 722  54 664 

Cash generated from operations  1 728 717  1 733 439  1 616 439  1 612 127 

J. CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
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J. CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
continued

J2 OTHER CASH FLOW NOTES

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

J2.1 Taxation paid R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Taxation (receivable) / payable at 
 the beginning of the year  -    2 530  -    -   

Currency translation difference  -    569  -    -   

Charge for the year in statement of profit or loss  (9 643)  487  (159)  -   

Taxation (receivable) / payable at  
the end of the year I4.2  9 484  -    -    -   

Taxation (paid) / refunded  (159)  3 586  (159)  -   

J2.2 Dividends received
Dividend receivable at the beginning of the year  -    16 278  -    16 278 

Dividend income D6.2  19 833  120 630  19 833  120 630 

Dividends received in cash  19 833  136 908  19 833  136 908 

J2.3 Dividends paid
Dividends payable at the beginning of the year I3.2  (788 347)  -    (790 041)  -   

Dividends declared during the year B1.2.2  (165 140)  (1 705 815)  (169 562)  (1 709 572)

Dividends payable at the end of the year I3.2  -    788 347  -    790 041 

Dividends paid in cash  (953 487)  (917 468)  (959 603)  (919 531)
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K.  Related parties
K1  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

K1.1 Profile

Related parties are entities that are subsidiaries, joint ventures, co-investors of the group, and individuals that are directors and / or 
prescribed officers of the group. The group, in the ordinary course of business, entered into various transactions with related parties.

K1.2 Related-party transactions and balances – entities

Entities that are related parties and with whom the group transacted during the year are listed below:

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

African Land - subsidiary  -    -    (2 861)  (2 861)
Investment in subsidiary E4.3  -    -    758 264  758 264 

Borrowings H1.5  -    -    (761 125)  (761 125)

Hyprop Share Scheme - subsidiary
Loan receivable  
(net of accumulated expected credit losses) F1.4  -    -    32 287  29 108 

Interest received  -    -    4 420  3 685 

Hyprop Mauritius - subsidiary  -    -    1 293 562  -   
Investment in subsidiary E4.3  -    -    2 342 182  398 020 

Less accumulated impairments E4.3  -    -    (1 048 620)  (398 020)

Loans receivable  -    -    -    -   
Loan balances F1.4  -    -    1 486 790  1 516 198 

Cumulative ECL's F1.4  -    -    (1 486 790)  (1 516 198)

Interest received  -    -    1 329  -   

Financial guarantees given by Hyprop  
on behalf of Hyprop Mauritius

Debt guaranteed by Hyprop  
on behalf of Hyprop Mauritius 1  -    -    -    2 038 877 

Carrying value of financial guarantee liabilities H3.4  -    -    -    114 861 

Guarantee liability as percentage of debt 
guaranteed (%)  -    -    -    5.6 

West Africa Asset Management - subsidiary
Loan receivable F1.4  -    -    4 240  -   

Natalmahogany (SOKO) - subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary E4.3  -    -    16 422  -   

Loan receivable F1.4  -    -    5 900  -   

Interest received  -    -    195  -   

AttAfrica –  joint venture
Loan receivable  
(net of accumulated expected credit losses) F1.4  -    658 456  -    -   

Interest received  -    29 510  -    -   

Borrowings H1.5  12 711  -    -    -   

1 Details of investment properties mortgaged to secure guarantees on behalf of Hystead and Hyprop Mauritius are shown in not E1.8 - Morgaged properties.

K. RELATED PARTIES
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K1  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES continued

K1.2 Related party transactions and balances - entities continued

K. RELATED PARTIES
continued

GROUP COMPANY
Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Hystead – financial asset
Financial asset E6.4  297 234  532 972  297 234  532 972 

Asset management and accounting fee income  47 579  18 108  47 579  18 108 

Dividend received D6.2  19 833  120 630  19 833  120 630 

Financial guarantees given by Hyprop  
on behalf of Hystead

Loans / facilities guaranteed by Hyprop  
on behalf of Hystead 1  6 227 795  7 030 929  6 227 795  7 030 929 

Carrying value of financial guarantee liabilities H3.4  110 401  127 066  110 401  127 066 

Guarantee liability as percentage of debt 
guaranteed (%)  1.8  1.8  1.8  1.8 

PDI Investment Holdings Limited – co-investor / 
common director
Credit enhancement fee paid by PDI  
to Hyprop: income H3.3.2  3 635  22 111  3 635  22 111 

Attacq Limited – co-investor / common director
Borrowings H1.5  1 271  -    -    -   

Cost recovery  30  -    30  -   

Fees received  2 720  -    2 720  -   

AIH International Limited  – co-investor
Borrowings H1.5  332 197  356 623  -    -   
1 Details of investment properties mortgaged to secure guarantees on behalf of Hystead and Hyprop Mauritius are shown in note E1.8 – Mortgaged properties.

K1.3 Directors’ interests in Hyprop shares

June 2021 June 2020

GROUP and COMPANY
Direct  

beneficial 
Indirect  

beneficial Total
Direct  

beneficial 
Indirect  

beneficial Total
Independent  
non-executive directors  35 000  -    35 000  35 000  -    35 000 

Non-executive directors 3  -    3 000 000  3 000 000  -    378 000  378 000 

Executive directors 2  470 769  44 700  515 469  180 565  45 370  225 935 

Total  505 769  3 044 700  3 550 469  215 565  423 370  638 935 
2 Includes shares awarded under the CUP.

3 Exposure in terms of off-market derivative transactions (Long call 2 000 000 shares, Short call 500 000 shares, Short put 1 500 000 shares) at varying strike prices.

Details of directors’ remuneration are included in note L1 – Directors’ remuneration.
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L.  Remuneration 
L1   DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

L1.1 Cash Remuneration

GROUP and COMPANY Fees
Basic 

Salary 

Pension 
Fund 

Contri-
butions

Perfor-
mance 
Bonus

Vested 
Shares

Other 
Benefits Total

June 2021   R’000

Independent 
non-executive directors
Gavin Tipper (chairman)  918  -    -    -    -    -    918 

Annabel Dallamore  599  -    -    -    -    -    599 

Zuleka Jasper  515  -    -    -    -    -    515 

Nonyameko Mandindi  455  -    -    -    -    -    455 

Thabo Mokgatlha  639  -    -    -    -    -    639 

Spiros Noussis 1,2  615  -    -    -    -    -    615 

Stewart Shaw-Taylor  743  -    -    -    -    -    743 

Non-executive directors
Kevin Ellerine  446  -    -    -    -    -    446 

Louis Norval 3  180  -    -    -    -    -    180 

Executive directors
Morné Wilken (CEO) 2  183  4 352  404  -    -    36  4 975 

Brett Till (FD)  -    2 784  256  -    -    60  3 100 

Wilhelm Nauta (CIO)  -    2 711  183  -    -    60  2 954 

Total  5 293  9 847  843  -    -    156  16 139 

June 2020   R’000

Independent 
non-executive directors
Gavin Tipper (chairman)  902  -    -    -    -    -    902 

Annabel Dallamore 4  444  -    -    -    -    -    444 

Zuleka Jasper  506  -    -    -    -    -    506 

Mike Lewin 5  221  -    -    -    -    -    221 

Nonyameko Mandindi  440  -    -    -    -    -    440 

Thabo Mokgatlha  652  -    -    -    -    -    652 

Stewart Shaw-Taylor  705  -    -    -    -    -    705 

Non-executive directors
Kevin Ellerine  438  -    -    -    -    -    438 

Louis Norval  438  -    -    -    -    -    438 

Executive directors
Morné Wilken (CEO) 2  -    4 507  303  590  -    36  5 436 

Brett Till (FD)  -    2 685  247  541  -    60  3 533 

Wilhelm Nauta (CIO)  -    2 639  178  700  -    60  3 577 

Total  4 746  9 831  728  1 831  -    156  17 292 
1 Appointed with effect from 27 July 2020
2  Fees paid to Spiros Noussis and Morné Wilken include R 201 363 and R 183 245 respectively that were paid by Hystead for them serving as directors of Hystead. 

These fees are GBP denominated.
3 Resigned with effect from 24 November 2020
4 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2019
5 Retired with effect from 2 December 2019

L. REMUNERATION
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L1  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION continued

L. REMUNERATION
continued

L1.2 Share-based payments

L1.2.1 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding under the CUP for executive directors

GROUP and COMPANY

 Outstanding 
at the 

beginning  
of the year  Awarded  Forfeited  Vested 

 
Outstanding 

at the end  
of the year 

June 2021   # OF SHARES
Morné Wilken (CEO)  85 233  120 000  -    -    205 233 

Brett Till (FD)  44 110  89 749  -    -    133 859 

Wilhelm Nauta (CIO)  45 222  85 522  (5 737)  -    125 007 

Total  174 565  295 271  (5 737) -  464 099 

June 2020   # OF SHARES
Morné Wilken (CEO)  37 190  48 043  -    -    85 233 

Brett Till (FD)  18 927  25 183  -    -    44 110 

Wilhelm Nauta (CIO)  26 754  24 450  (5 982)  -    45 222 

Total  82 871  97 676  (5 982)  -    174 565 

L1.2.2 Reconciliation of value of shares outstanding under the CUP for executive directors

GROUP and COMPANY

Outstanding 
at the 

beginning  
of the year 

at market 
value 1  Awarded 2 Forfeited 1 Vested

 Change in 
Market value 

 
Outstanding 

at the end 
of the year 

at market 
value 3 

June 2021   R’000
Morné Wilken (CEO)  1 908  2 487  -    -    1 043  5 438 

Brett Till (FD)  988  1 860  -    -    700  3 548 

Wilhelm Nauta (CIO)  1 013  1 772  (128)  -    656  3 313 

Total  3 909  6 119  (128)  -    2 399  12 299 

June 2020   R’000
Morné Wilken (CEO)  2 598  3 301  -    -    (3 991)  1 908 

Brett Till (FD)  1 322  1 730  -    -    (2 064)  988 

Wilhelm Nauta (CIO)  1 869  1 680  (418)  -    (2 118)  1 013 

Total  5 789  6 711  (418)  -    (8 173)  3 909 
1  Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year and shares forfeited are valued at the closing share price of R22.39 on 30 June 2020  

(2020: R69.87 on 30 June 2019)

2 Shares awarded during the year are valued at the 30 day VWAP on grant date of R20.72 (2020: R68.71)

3 Shares outstanding at the end of the year are valued at the closing share price of R26.50 (2020: R22.39)

L1.2.3 Share-based payments expense 
The following amounts were recorded in the statement of profit and loss with respect to executive directors

GROUP and COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

 R'000  R'000 
Morné Wilken (CEO)  2 700  2 037 

Brett Till (FD)  1 571  1 101 

Wilhelm Nauta (CIO)  1 461  1 473 

Total  5 732  4 611 
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L. REMUNERATION
continued

L2  LONG-TERM INCENTIVES

L2.1 Accounting policy

Long-term incentives – share-based payments

Th e Company operates an equity-settled share-based conditional share plan (CUP) for its employees.

Th e grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted to employees is recognised as an expense, with 
a corresponding increase in equity (Share-based payments reserve), over the vesting period of the awards. Th e amount recognised 
as an expense is adjusted to refl ect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are 
expected to be met such that the amount ultimately recognised is based on the number of awards that meet the related service, market 
and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in profi t or loss, with a corresponding increase in equity over the 
vesting period. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on the best 
available estimate of the number of shares expected to vest.

L2.2 Profi le

Th e CUP consists of two components – performance shares and retention shares. Th e allocation between performance and retention 
shares is 70:30 for all participants. Awards are settled by the issue / transfer of Hyprop shares to qualifying employees. Th ese are not 
new shares issued but rather shares acquired in the market and held by Hyprop Share Scheme.  Awards under the CUP are made on an 
annual basis.

Performance shares

Th e performance conditions for shares allocated as performance shares are as follows:

  40% Growth in distribution per share relative to the peer group

  40% Share price performance relative to the peer group

  20%  A strategic component, which is determined by the remuneration committee in line with the prevailing circumstances 
and projects at the time of the award.

Each of the performance conditions is measured over a three-year performance period. Participants must be employed at the end of the 
vesting period for the award to vest.

Retention shares

Retention shares vest after fi ve years, provided the participant is still employed by the Group.

L2.3 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding under the CUP

PERFORMANCE SHARES RETENTION SHARES

GROUP and COMPANY June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
Outstanding at the beginning of the year  356 023  210 547  195 081  141 513 

New awards granted  644 061  187 420  276 036  80 330 

Vested and settled by the issue / transfer of Hyprop 
ordinary shares  -    (35 962)  (18 425)  (26 762)

Forfeited  (67 071)  (5 982)  (8 656)  -   

Outstanding at the end of the year  933 013  356 023  444 036  195 081 

Weighted average remaining vesting period (years)  1.6  1.4  3.3  2.8 
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L2  LONG-TERM INCENTIVES continued

L. REMUNERATION
continued

GROUP and COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

L2.4 Movement reconciliation - Share-based payment reserve  R’000  R’000 
Opening balance at 1 July  25 605  20 286 

Release of reserve on vesting of shares  (2 121)  (6 476)

Share-based payment expense  16 610  14 003 

Forfeitures  (8 036)  (2 208)

Balance at the end of the year  32 058  25 605 

L2.5 Valuation methodology

Th e day-one fair value of the awards granted under the CUP is determined based on the 30-day VWAP of Hyprop shares ending on the 
grant date, as specifi ed in the CUP rules. Th e change in share price relative to the peer Group is considered to be a market condition. 
Th e number of shares expected to vest is not adjusted for this condition as it is not possible to reliably predict future relative share price 
performance. Details of each outstanding tranche of share awards are refl ected below:

TRANCHE

RETENTION SHARES 4 5 6 7 8  9  10  11 
Grant date 01-Jul-16 01-Jan-17 01-Jul-17 01-Jul-18 01-Jan-19 01-Jul-19 01-Jul-20 01-Jan-21

Number of awards granted  33 499  2 564  35 114  41 281  16 835  80 330  270 506  5 530 

Share price 
at grant date (‘R) 129.89 117.31 116.76  102.34  81.50  68.87  22.39  29.52 

30-day VWAP 119.35 112.34 120.75  104.81  88.77  68.71  20.72  29.84 

Vesting period ends 30-Jun-21 31-Dec-21 30-Jun-22 30-Jun-23 31-Dec-23 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-25 31-Dec-25

% allocated to executive 
directors on grant date (%)  31.0  31.0  31.0  28.9  100.0  36.5  30.4  -   

Tranche 3 of the retention shares vested during the year at a fair value of R15.56 per share.

TRANCHE

PERFORMANCE SHARES 7 8  9  10  11 
Grant date 01-Jul-18 01-Jan-19 01-Jul-19 01-Jul-20 01-Jan-21

Number of awards granted  96 302  39 281  187 420  631 159  12 902 

Share price 
at grant date (‘R)  102.34  81.50  68.87  22.39  29.52 

30-day VWAP  104.81  88.77  68.71  20.72  29.84 

Vesting period ends 30-Jun-21 31-Dec-21 30-Jun-22 30-Jun-23 31-Dec-23

% allocated to executive 
directors on grant date (%)  28.9  100.0  36.5  30.4  -   

Tranche 6 of the performance shares was forfeited during the year.
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L. REMUNERATION
continued

L3  RETIREMENT BENEFITS

L3.1 Accounting policy

A defi ned contribution plan is a post-employment benefi t plan under which the Company pays contributions to a separate entity. Th e 
Company has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts if the fund does not hold suffi  cient assets to pay all employees 
the benefi ts relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Company contributions to defi ned contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefi t expense when the related services have 
been rendered.

L3.2 Profi le

All permanent employees must be members of the Unicover Pension Fund (an umbrella defi ned contribution fund) (the fund), except 
those who elect not to be members in terms of section 197 of the Labour Relations Act 66 of 1995 (LRA).

In addition to the post-retirement benefi ts, the fund provides comprehensive death, disability, funeral and universal education cover for 
all members.

COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020

L3.3 Retirement benefi ts – expense  R’000  R’000 
Employer contributions  10 034  9 375 

Employee contributions  4 990  4 484 

Total  15 024  13 859 
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M. Financial instruments
M1  CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

M1.1 Accounting policy

Financial instruments are monetary contracts that give rise to a fi nancial asset (a right to receive cash) of one entity and a fi nancial 
liability (an obligation to deliver cash) or own equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition

Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are recognised in the statement of fi nancial position when the Group becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. the Group classifi es fi nancial assets, or their component parts, on initial recognition in 
accordance with the Group’s business model (i.e. whether the Group’s objective is to hold the assets to collect contractual cash fl ows or 
hold to collect and sell or other).

Business model assessment

Th e Group makes an assessment of the business model objective for which a fi nancial asset is held at a portfolio level, because this best 
refl ects the way the business is managed and the way that information is provided to management. 

Th e information considered includes:

 •   Th e Group’s strategic objectives for the portfolio of assets;

 •  How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to management;

 •  Th e risks that aff ect the performance of the portfolio; and

 •  Th e historic frequency, volume and timing of sales of fi nancial assets, and the reasons for such sales.

Assessment of whether contractual cash fl ows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)

For the purposes of this assessment “principal” is defi ned as the fair value of the fi nancial asset on initial recognition. “Interest” is defi ned 
as consideration  for the time value of money, the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period 
of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profi t margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash fl ows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms 
of the instrument. In making this assessment the Group considers:

 •  contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash fl ows;

 •  terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable features;

 •  prepayment and extension features; and 

 •  terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash fl ows from specifi c assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

M. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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M1  CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

M1.1 Accounting policy continued

M. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
continued

SUBSEQUENT 
MEASUREMENT  
CLASSIFICATION INITIAL MEASUREMENT

FVTPL

Financial instruments which are categorised and designated at initial recognition as being at FVTPL are 
initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs, which are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of these financial instruments, are recognised immediately in profit or loss. These instruments are 
subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Amortised Cost and 
FVTOCI

Financial instruments which are not carried at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value plus transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instruments. These 
instruments are subsequently measured at FVTOCI or amortised cost.

Day-one gains or losses

A day-one gain or loss arises when the transaction price of a financial instrument designated as FVTPL 
differs from the fair market value on the date of acquisition. If the day-one fair value is calculated based 
on a valuation methodology which includes assumptions derived from unobservable inputs, the day-
one gain or loss is deferred. The day-one gain or loss is only recognised in profit or loss to the extent 
that there is a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into account when  
pricing the financial instrument, the unobservable inputs become observable, or on derecognition of the 
financial instrument.

PRESENTATION

Offset
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 
financial position when the Group has an enforceable right to set off the asset and liability, and intends to 
settle the asset and liability on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Measurement

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to 
receive the contractual cash flows from the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the entity is recognised 
as a separate asset or liability. The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or expire.  

Fair value hierarchy

In addition to the subsequent measurement classification, financial instruments carried at fair value are further classified into 3 levels 
based on the lowest level of significant inputs to the overall valuation.

Level 1 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
entity can access at the measurement date. The Group has no level 1 financial instruments.

Level 2 Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly. The Group has classified derivatives as level 2.

Level 3

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. These are used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant 
observable inputs are not available, to cater for situations in which there is little, or no, market activity 
for the asset or liability at the measurement date. The Group has classified its investment in Hystead as 
level 3.



www.hyprop.co.za     |     1012021 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

M1  CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

M. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
continued

M1.2  Accounting classifications, carrying amounts and fair values

The following table reflects the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information 
for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of the fair value. Long-term borrowings have carrying amounts which 
reasonably approximate their fair values because the loans are all variable interest rate loans with market related interest rates.

CARRYING AMOUNT FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

GROUP (The Group has no financial instruments classified as level 1)

June 2021  R’000
Fair value through 

profit or loss Other 4 Amortised cost Total Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair value

Derivative instruments - current  4 324  -    -    4 324  4 324  -    4 324 

Financial asset  297 234  -    -    297 234  -    297 234  297 234 

 301 558  -    -    301 558  4 324  297 234  301 558 

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Loans receivable - non-current  -    -    4 200  4 200  n/a  3 053  3 053 

Loans receivable - current  -    -    19 911  19 911  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Trade and other receivables 1  -    -    139 757  139 757  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    941 250  941 250  n/a  n/a  n/a 

 -    -    1 105 118  1 105 118  n/a  3 053  3 053 

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Derivative instruments - non-current  113 368  -    -    113 368  113 368  -    113 368 

Derivative instruments - current  14 564  -    -    14 564  14 564  -    14 564 

 127 932  -    -    127 932  127 932  -    127 932 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long-term portion of interest-bearing borrowings  -    -    5 286 276  5 286 276  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Short-term portion of interest-bearing borrowings  -    -    1 281 594  1 281 594  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Financial guarantees - non-current  -    65 837  -    65 837  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Financial guarantees - current  -    44 564  -    44 564  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Trade and other payables 2  -    -    313 133  313 133  n/a  n/a  n/a 

 -    110 401  6 881 003  6 991 404  n/a  n/a  n/a 
1  This balance excludes the following: Prepayments, municipal deposits and sundry receivables.
2  This balance excludes the following: Rent received in advance, municipal and employee provisions and sundry payables. This balance includes interest payable at a Group level of R 37.2m (2020: R 39.5m) and  at a company level of R 37.2m 

(2020: R 34.9m)
3 Balances in the table above include assets held-for-sale where applicable and they are shown as current / short-term.
4  Financial guarantees are intially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income 

recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers. The financial guarantees have been reallocated from “Fair value through profit or loss” to “Other”.
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M1  CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

M1.2 Accounting classifications, carrying amounts and fair values continued

M. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
continued

CARRYING AMOUNT FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

GROUP (The Group has no financial instruments classified as level 1)

June 2020  R’000
Fair value through 

profit or loss Other 4 Amortised cost Total Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial asset  532 972  -    -    532 972  -    532 972  532 972 

 532 972  -    -    532 972  -    532 972  532 972 

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Loans receivable - current  -    -    681 215  681 215  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Trade and other receivables 1  -    -    226 747  226 747  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    876 544  876 544  n/a  n/a  n/a 

 -    -    1 784 506  1 784 506  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Derivative instruments - non-current  233 669  -    -    233 669  233 669  -    233 669 

Derivative instruments - current  51 980  -    -    51 980  51 980  -    51 980 

 285 649  -    -    285 649  285 649  -    285 649 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long-term portion of interest-bearing borrowings  -    -    4 074 183  4 074 183  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Short-term portion of interest-bearing borrowings  -    -    3 776 163  3 776 163  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Financial guarantees - non-current  -    127 066  -    127 066  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Trade and other payables 2  -    -    346 315  346 315  n/a  n/a  n/a 

 -    127 066  8 196 661  8 323 727  n/a  n/a  n/a 
1  This balance excludes the following: Prepayments, municipal deposits and sundry receivables.
2  This balance excludes the following: Rent received in advance, municipal and employee provisions and sundry payables. This balance includes interest payable at a Group level of R 37.2m (2020: R 39.5m) and  at a company level of R 37.2m 

(2020: R 34.9m)
3  Balances in the tables above include assets held-for-sale where applicable.
4  Financial guarantees are intially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income 

recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers. The financial guarantees have been reallocated from “Fair value through profit or loss” to “Other”.



www.hyprop.co.za     |     1032021 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

M. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
continued

CARRYING AMOUNT FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

COMPANY (The Group has no financial instruments classified as level 1)

June 2021  R’000
Fair value through 

profit or loss Other 4 Amortised cost Total Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair value

Derivative instruments - current  4 324  -    -    4 324  4 324  -    4 324 

Financial asset  297 234  -    -    297 234  -    297 234  297 234 

 301 558  -    -    301 558  4 324  297 234  301 558 

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Loans receivable - non-current  -    -    36 487  36 487  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Loans receivable - current  -    -    30 051  30 051  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Trade and other receivables 1  -    -    97 257  97 257  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    760 617  760 617  n/a  n/a  n/a 

 -    -    924 412  924 412  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Derivative instruments - non-current  113 368  -    -    113 368  113 368  -    113 368 

Derivative instruments - current  14 564  -    -    14 564  14 564  -    14 564 

 127 932  -    -    127 932  127 932  -    127 932 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long-term portion of interest-bearing borrowings  -    -    4 893 829  4 893 829  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Short-term portion of interest-bearing borrowings  -    -    1 267 611  1 267 611  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Financial guarantees - non-current  -    65 837  -    65 837  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Financial guarantees - current  -    44 564  -    44 564  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Trade and other payables 2  -    -    271 393  271 393  n/a  n/a  n/a 

 -    110 401  6 432 833  6 543 233  -    -    -   
1  This balance excludes the following: Prepayments, municipal deposits and sundry receivables.
2  This balance excludes the following: Rent received in advance, municipal and employee provisions and sundry payables. This balance includes interest payable at a Group level of R 37.2m (2020: R 39.5m) and  at a Company level of R 37.2m 

(2020: R 34.9m)
3  Balances in the tables above include assets held-for-sale where applicable.
4  Financial guarantees are intially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income 

recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers. The financial guarantees have been reallocated from “Fair value through profit or loss” to “Other”.

M1  CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

M1.2 Accounting classifications, carrying amounts and fair values continued



www.hyprop.co.za     |     1042021 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

M1  CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

M1.2 Accounting classifications, carrying amounts and fair values continued

M. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
continued

CARRYING AMOUNT FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

COMPANY (The Group has no financial instruments classified as level 1)

June 2020  R’000
Fair value through 

profit or loss Other 4 Amortised cost Total Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial asset  532 972  -    -    532 972  -    532 972  532 972 

 532 972  -    -    532 972  -    532 972  532 972 

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Loans receivable - current  -    -    29 108  29 108  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Trade and other receivables 1  -    -    148 646  148 646  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    726 362  726 362  n/a  n/a  n/a 

 -    -    904 116  904 116  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Derivative instruments - non-current  233 669  -    -    233 669  233 669  -    233 669 

Derivative instruments - current  48 190  -    -    48 190  48 190  -    48 190 

 281 859  -    -    281 859  281 859  -    281 859 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Long-term portion of interest-bearing borrowings  -    -    4 074 182  4 074 182  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Short-term portion of interest-bearing borrowings  -    -    425 000  425 000  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Loans payable - non-current  -    -    761 125  761 125  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Financial guarantees - non-current  -    127 066  -    127 066  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Financial guarantees - current  -    114 861  -    114 861  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Trade and other payables 2  -    -    284 594  284 594  n/a  n/a  n/a 

 -    241 927  5 544 901  5 786 828  n/a  n/a  n/a 
1  This balance excludes the following: Prepayments, municipal deposits and sundry receivables.
2  This balance excludes the following: Rent received in advance, municipal and employee provisions and sundry payables. This balance includes interest payable at a Group level of R 37.2m (2020: R 39.5m) and  at a Company level of R 37.2m 

(2020: R 34.9m).
3  Balances in the table above include assets held-for-sale where applicable.
4  Financial guarantees are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income 

recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers. The financial guarantees have been reallocated from “Fair value through profit or loss” to “Other”. 
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M. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
continued

M2  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT METHODOLOGIES

M2.1 Fair value measurement techniques

Th e following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring level 2 and 3 fair values, as well as the signifi cant unobservable 
inputs used:

VALUATION TECHNIQUE
UNOBSERVABLE 

INPUTS
MOVEMENT IN INPUT

EFFECT ON 
ESTIMATED FAIR 

VALUE

Financial asset 
- Hystead - 

level 3 

Discounted cash fl ow: Th e valuation 
is calculated as the present value 
of the anticipated future net cash 
fl ows expected to be generated by 
the underlying shopping centres 
after deducting the head offi  ce costs 
within the Hystead Group.

Annual growth rate

Terminal growth rate

Increase

Decrease 

Increase

Decrease

Th e cash fl ow projections include 
specifi c estimates for 10 years 
(2020: 10 years), other than for 
Delta City Belgrade which is included 
for 6 months as it is held-for-sale. 
Th e expected net cash fl ows are 
discounted using a risk-adjusted 
discount rate as well as a 
risk-adjusted cap rate.

Exit cap rate Increase Decrease

Th e above calculations are done 
in Euros with the fi nal value being 
converted to Rands at the year-end 
spot rate.

Discount rate Increase Decrease 

Derivatives - 

level 2

Market comparison: Th e valuation 
of the derivative instruments 
(interest rate swaps) was determined 
by discounting the future cash fl ows 
using the JIBAR or OIS swap curves 
as applicable. Similar contracts 
are traded in active markets and 
the fair values are based on actual 
transactions in similar instruments.

Projected forward 
interest rate

Increase Decrease

Unlisted 
equity 
investment 
- Edcon -  

level 3

In April 2020 Edcon fi led for 
business rescue. Until the Company 
receives a liquidation distribution or 
other recovery of the investment, 
Management’s best estimate of the 
fair value of the Edcon equity is zero, 
resulting in an accumulated fair 
value adjustment of R58m.

Business rescue plan n/a n/a

TYPE
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M2  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT METHODOLOGIES continued

M2.1 Fair value measurement techniques continued

M. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
continued

M2.1.1 Transfers between levels 2 and 3

Th ere were no transfers in either direction between levels 2 or 3 during the current or prior years.

M2.1.2 Additional disclosures 

Additional details on the fair values of level 2 and 3 fi nancial instruments are disclosed in the following notes:

 Derivatives Financial asset
Valuation assumptions – Unobservable inputs H2.6 E6.8

Reconciliation of movements H2.4.2 and H2.5.2 E6.5

Valuation sensitivities H2.7 E6.9
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N. Financial risk management
N1  RISK MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW

Th e Group is exposed to the following risks relating to fi nancial instruments:

 • Liquidity risk See note N2 - Liquidity risk and sensitivity

 • Interest rate risk See note N3 - Interest rate risk and sensitivity

 • Currency risk See note N4 - Currency risk and sensitivity

 • Credit risk  See note N5 - Credit risk and sensitivity

Th e board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. Th e 
board, assisted by the audit and risk committee, monitors the eff ectiveness of the internal control systems and other risk 
management procedures.

Th e audit and risk committee (ARC) has an independent role, operating as an overseer and making recommendations to the board for 
its consideration and fi nal approval. Th e role of the ARC includes ensuring that an appropriate risk management policy, aligned with 
industry practice, is adopted and implemented. Th e ARC is assisted by management and an outsourced internal audit service provider, 
both of which report to the ARC. Th e ARC reports on the fi ndings of the internal auditors to the board. For further detail on the role and 
mandate of the ARC, please refer to its charter on the Group’s website and the report of the audit and risk committee attached to the 
fi nancial statements.

Th e ARC does not assume the functions of management, which remain the responsibility of the executive directors, offi  cers and other 
members of senior management. 

Executive management is responsible for maintaining a risk register and identifying and monitoring the risks (including fi nancial 
risks) which the Group faces, assessing the potential impact of such risks on the Group and their likelihood of occurring. Th e ARC, in 
conjunction with executive management, determines the Group’s risk tolerance.

N2  LIQUIDITY RISK AND SENSITIVITY

N2.1 Risk and mitigation

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter diffi  culty in meeting the obligations associated with its fi nancial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another fi nancial asset and includes liquidity risk and fi nancing / refi nancing risk.

Th e Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have suffi  cient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when they fall due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Group’s reputation.

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT



www.hyprop.co.za     |     1082021 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

MITIGATION

Liquidity the risk that the Group will not 
be able to meet its financial 
obligations as they fall due.

Liquidity risk is managed by:

•  actively monitoring cash flow requirements and debt 
maturity profiles;

•  maintaining cash balances, unused revolving credit facilities, unused 
term loan facilities and access to debt capital markets to ensure 
future obligations can be met;

•  maintaining adequate borrowing capacity relative to maximum limits 
imposed by regulators and/ or internally.

Financing/ 
Refinancing

the risk that the Group is unable 
to raise the required finance to 
meet its obligations or to refinance 
existing borrowings, including 
that the cost of borrowings 
becomes unaffordable.

Financing and refinancing risk is managed by:

•  actively monitoring cash flow requirements and debt maturity 
profiles;

•  maintaining cash balances, unused revolving credit facilities, unused 
term loan facilities and access to debt capital markets to ensure 
future obligations can be met;

•  adopting a pro-active approach to refinancing maturing borrowings 
well in advance of the maturity date;

•  maintaining strong relationships with commercial banks and other 
lenders;

• regular engagement with institutional bond investors; 

•  managing debt maturity profiles to ensure a relatively constant level 
of loan maturities in each year; and

•  raising loans with terms that are generally between three and five 
years in duration.

N2  LIQUIDITY RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N2.1 Risk and mitigation continued

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

EXPOSURE

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Unutilised revolving credit facilities  950 000  950 000  950 000  950 000 

Unutilised borrowing capacity  
under the Company's DCM programme  2 083 913  1 659 510  2 083 913  1 659 510 

Total unutilised borrowing capacity  3 033 913  2 609 510  3 033 913  2 609 510 

 Years  Years  Years  Years 
Weighted average term of borrowings  1.81  1.77  1.84  2.47 
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N2  LIQUIDITY RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

N2.2 Financial exposure

The following table summarises the maturity profiles and contractual cash flows of financial instruments at the reporting date. The 
amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments where applicable. The tables below exclude assets 
held-for-sale.

GROUP
June 2021  R’000

 CARRYING  
VALUE 

Contractual  
cash flows 

Within  
one year

One to       
five years

More than 
five years 

Non-derivative financial assets
Financial asset 3  297 234  2 578 667  123 839  929 102  1 525 725 
Loans receivable – non-current  4 200  4 200  -    4 200  -   
Loans receivable – current  19 911  19 911  19 911  -    -   
Trade and other receivables  98 514  98 514  98 514  -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents  777 691  777 691  777 691  -    -   
Total  1 197 550  3 478 983  1 019 955  933 302  1 525 725 

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long-term portion of borrowings  (4 132 704)  (5 533 826)  (277 867)  (5 255 959)  -   
Short-term portion of borrowings  (1 281 593)  (1 281 593)  (1 281 593)  -    -   
Financial guarantees – non-current 1  (65 837)  (2 917 691)  (59 907)  (2 857 784)  -   
Financial guarantees – current 1  (44 564)  (4 081 318)  (4 081 318)  -    -   
Trade and other payables  (263 345)  (263 345)  (263 345)  -    -   
Total  (5 788 043)  (14 077 774)  (5 964 030)  (8 113 743)  -   

Derivative financial assets 2

Currency collars –current  4 324  4 324  4 324  -    -   
Total  4 324  4 324  4 324  -    -   

Derivative financial liabilities 2

Interest rate swaps – non-current  (113 368)  (265 136)  (101 311)  (163 825)  -   
Interest rate swaps – current  (14 564)  (14 564)  (14 564)  -    -   
Total  (127 932)  (279 700)  (115 875)  (163 825)  -   

Net (liability) / asset exposure  (4 714 101)  (10 874 167)  (5 055 626)  (7 344 266)  1 525 725 

June 2020  R’000
Non-derivative financial assets
Financial asset 3  532 972  3 746 664  217 257  1 410 877  2 118 530 
Loans receivable – current (Eastern Europe)  22 759  23 350  23 350  -    -   
Loans receivable – current (Sub-Saharan Africa)  658 456  658 456  658 456  -    -   
Trade and other receivables  154 548  154 548  154 548  -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents  834 877  834 877  834 877  -    -   
Total  2 203 612  5 417 895  1 888 488  1 410 877  2 118 530 

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long-term portion of borrowings  (4 074 183)  (4 649 883)  (207 145)  (4 442 738)  -   
Short-term portion of borrowings  (2 463 877)  (2 842 146)  (2 842 146)  -    -   
Financial guarantees – non-current 1  (127 066)  (8 148 517)  (158 852)  (7 989 665)  -   
Trade and other payables  (494 710)  (494 710)  (494 710)  -    -   
Total  (7 159 836)  (16 135 256)  (3 702 853)  (12 432 403)  -   

Derivative financial liabilities 2

Currency collars – non-current  (3 693)  (34 389)  -    (34 389)  -   
Currency collars – current  (28 326)  (140 401)  (140 401)  -    -   
Interest rate swaps – non-current  (229 976)  (255 591)  (100 380)  (155 211)  -   
Interest rate swaps – current  (23 654)  (16 690)  (16 690)  -    -   
Total  (285 649)  (447 071)  (257 471)  (189 600)  -   

Net (liability) / asset exposure  (5 241 873)  (11 164 432)  (2 071 836)  (11 211 126)  2 118 530 
1  Financial guarantees - The outflows disclosed for the financial guarantees in the table represent the maximum potential outflow under the guarantees in the event 

of the borrowers defaulting on all their obligations under the guaranteed loans.
2  Derivatives - The inflows / (outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the undiscounted contractual cash flows relating to derivative financial liabilities held 

for risk management purposes. These derivative financial instruments are not usually closed out before contractual maturity. The disclosure shows net cash flow 
amounts for derivatives as they are settled on a net basis.

3  Financial asset cash flows are estimated not contractual
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N2  LIQUIDITY RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N2.2 Financial exposure continued

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

COMPANY
June 2021  R’000

 CARRYING  
VALUE 

Contractual  
cash flows 

Within  
one year

One to       
five years

More than 
five years 

Non-derivative financial assets
Financial asset 3  297 234  2 578 667  123 839  929 102  1 525 725 
Loans receivable – non-current  36 487  36 487  -    36 487  -   
Loans receivable – current  30 051  60 103  30 051  -    -   
Trade and other receivables  93 160  93 160  93 160  -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents  747 423  747 423  747 423  -    -   
Total  1 204 355  3 515 840  994 474  965 589  1 525 725 

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long-term portion of borrowings  (4 893 829)  (5 386 887)  (225 853)  (5 161 034)  -   
Short-term portion of borrowings  (1 267 611)  (1 267 611)  (1 267 611)  -    -   
Financial guarantees – non-current 1  (65 837)  (2 917 691)  (59 907)  (2 857 784)  -   
Financial guarantees – current 1  (44 564)  (4 081 318)  (4 081 318)  -    -   
Trade and other payables  (262 797)  (262 797)  (262 797)  -    -   
Total  (6 534 638)  (13 916 304)  (5 897 487)  (8 018 818)  -   

Derivative financial assets 2

Currency collars –current  4 324  4 324  4 324  -    -   
Total  4 324  4 324  4 324  -    -   

Derivative financial liabilities 2

Interest rate swaps – non-current  (113 368)  (265 136)  (101 311)  (163 825)  -   
Interest rate swaps – current  (14 564)  (14 564)  (14 564)  -    -   
Total  (127 932)  (279 700)  (115 875)  (163 825)  -   

Net (liability) / asset exposure  (5 453 891)  (10 675 841)  (5 014 565)  (7 217 053)  1 525 725 

June 2020  R’000
Non-derivative financial assets
Financial asset 3  532 972  3 746 664  217 257  1 410 877  2 118 530 
Loans receivable – current (Eastern Europe)  22 759  23 350  23 350  -    -   
Loans receivable – current (South Africa)  29 108  29 108  -    29 108  -   
Trade and other receivables  154 016  154 016  154 016  -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents  726 362  726 362  726 362  -    -   
Total  1 465 217  4 679 500  1 120 985  1 439 985  2 118 530 

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long-term portion of borrowings  (4 835 307)  (4 649 883)  (207 145)  (4 442 738)  -   
Short-term portion of borrowings  (425 000)  (425 730)  (425 730)  -    -   
Financial guarantees – non-current 1  (127 066)  (8 148 517)  (158 852)  (7 989 665)  -   
Financial guarantees – current 1  (114 861)  (3 059 136)  (3 059 136)  -    -   
Trade and other payables  (479 305)  (479 305)  (479 305)  -    -   
Total  (5 981 539)  (16 762 571)  (4 330 168)  (12 432 403)  -   

Derivative financial liabilities 2

Currency collars – non-current  (3 693)  (34 389)  -    (34 389)  -   
Currency collars – current  (28 326)  (140 401)  (140 401)  -    -   
Interest rate swaps – non-current  (229 976)  (255 591)  (100 380)  (155 211)  -   
Interest rate swaps – current  (19 864)  (15 047)  (15 047)  -    -   
Total  (281 859)  (445 428)  (255 828)  (189 600)  -   

Net (liability) / asset exposure  (4 798 181)  (12 528 499)  (3 465 011)  (11 182 018)  2 118 530 
1  Financial guarantees - The outflows disclosed for the financial guarantees in the table represent the maximum potential outflow under the guarantees in the event 

of the borrowers defaulting on all their obligations under the guaranteed loans.
2  Derivatives - The inflows / (outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the undiscounted contractual cash flows relating to derivative financial liabilities held 

for risk management purposes. These derivative financial instruments are not usually closed out before contractual maturity. The disclosure shows net cash flow 
amounts for derivatives as they are settled on a net basis.

3  Financial asset cash flows are estimated not contractual
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N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

N3  INTEREST RATE RISK AND SENSITIVITY

N3.1 Risk and mitigation

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of short-term investments and fi nancial performance will be impacted as a result of 
fl uctuations in interest rates.

MITIGATION

Fluctuations in interest rates impact the value of 
short-term investments, financing activities and the 
cost of borrowings, giving rise to interest rate risk.

Interest rates are monitored and appropriate steps taken to ensure that 
Hyprop’s exposure to interest rate fl uctuations is limited.

The Group has significant exposure to interest rate risk 
through its loans receivable and borrowings.

In terms of the Group’s interest rate hedging policy at least 75% of 
interest rate exposure for borrowings is fi xed over the life of interest-
bearing borrowings.

Th e board has approved the use of interest rate swaps, forward starting 
interest rate swaps, fi xed rate loans, interest rate collars and interest rate 
caps, to manage interest rate exposure.

Details of interest rate hedges are included in note H2 to the 
fi nancial statements.

EXPOSURE

N3.2 Financial exposure

Th e interest rate profi le of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings as reported is as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

N3.2.1 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Long-term portion of borrowings H1.3  4 132 704  4 074 183  4 893 829  4 835 307 

Short-term portion of borrowings H1.3  1 281 593  2 463 877  1 267 611  425 000 

Total  5 414 297  6 538 060  6 161 440  5 260 307 

Liabilities associated with 
non-current assets held-for-sale H1.3  1 153 572  1 312 286  -    -   

Total borrowings (incl. held-for-sale)  6 567 869  7 850 346  6 161 440  5 260 307 

Total borrowings (incl. held-for-sale) H1.5  6 567 869  7 850 346  6 161 440  5 260 307 

Less interest free borrowings H1.5  (13 982)  -    (761 125)  (761 124)

Less Non-controlling shareholder loans H1.5  (332 197)  (356 623)  -    -   

Less revolving credit facilities drawn H1.5  (199 924)  (199 808)  (199 924)  (199 808)

Term and other borrowings  6 021 766  7 293 915  5 200 391  4 299 375 

Loans with fixed interest rates  nil  634 387  nil  nil 

Nominal value of interest rate swaps  4 108 000  4 279 292  4 108 000  3 808 000 
1 Included in interest expense is an amount of R125m (2020:  R40m) that relates to net realised interest rate swap gains and losses.
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N3  INTEREST RATE RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N3.2 Financial exposure continued

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

Summarised quantitative data on the Group’s interest rate exposure is set out below:

GROUP

N3.2.1 Amounts recognised on the statement of fi nancial position Reported as June 2021 June 2020

Proportion of borrowings costs which are hedged 1

ZAR borrowings Percentage  79.0  84.6 

USD borrowings Percentage  -    36.9 
1 the proportion is the nominal value of interest rate swaps to the outstanding capital

Average term of interest rate hedges Years  2.0  1.7 

ZAR borrowings Years  2.0  2.1 

USD borrowings Years  -    0.2 

Weighted average term of interest bearing borrowings Years  1.8  1.8 

ZAR borrowings Years  1.8  2.5 

USD borrowings Years  1.7  0.4 

Cost of funding (including hedges) Percentage  7.7  7.3 

ZAR borrowings Percentage  7.8  9.0 

USD borrowings Percentage  6.3  4.7 

Cost of funding (excluding hedges) Percentage  5.6  5.1 

ZAR borrowings Percentage  5.5  5.6 

USD borrowings Percentage  6.3  4.4 

Debt Capital Market (DCM) % of total borrowings Percentage  24.1  22.9 

Interest cover ratio
Interest cover ratio (gross) Times  3.0  3.0 

Interest cover ratio (net) Times  3.1  3.4 

N3.2.2 Amounts relating to Hystead (not recognised on the statement of fi nancial position) Reported as
Proportion of borrowings costs which are hedged Percentage  77.8  77.6 

Average term of interest rate hedges Years  3.4  4.3 

Weighted average term of interest bearing borrowings Years  2.2  2.7 

Cost of funding (including hedges) Percentage  2.6  2.8 

Cost of funding (excluding hedges) Percentage  2.5  2.4 

N3.3 Sensitivity

Based on the interest rate profi le (fi xed or variable) of the Group’s borrowings and interest rate swaps at 30 June 2021, an interest rate 
increase / decrease of 150 basis points (2020: 150bps), while all other variables are held constant, would decrease / increase the Group’s 
equity and profi t for the year ended 30 June 2021 by R28.7 million (2020: R37.2 million). 
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N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

N4  CURRENCY RISK AND SENSITIVITY

N4.1 Risk and mitigation

Th e Group is exposed to currency risk in four areas:

a.  Transactional versus functional currency 

Th e mismatch between the currencies in which revenue, operating costs and borrowings are denominated and the respective functional 
currencies of Group companies. Th is risk must be considered in conjunction with currency liquidity risk.

b.  Currency liquidity

Th e ability to convert amounts from the transactional currency to the currency in which obligations must be settled.

c.  Functional versus reporting currency

Th e diff erence that gives rise to a currency translation reserve in the consolidated fi nancial statements (for example, a subsidiary has 
a US Dollar functional currency and the Group’s reporting currency is ZAR (Rand), or foreign exchange gains or losses on balances 
denominated in foreign currency).

d.  Settlement versus functional currency 

Th e mismatch between the currency in which transactions (for example, dividends and interest) are settled (send-side), and the 
currency in which they are received.

MITIGATION

Transactional 
versus 
functional 
currency

Hyprop is exposed to this risk at all 
levels where it transacts in currencies 
other than the functional currency, 
for example:- 

•  Euro and US Dollar denominated 
loans guaranteed by Hyprop 
(whose functional currency 
is ZAR), 

•  Nigerian Naira denominated 
expenses and bank accounts in 
Nigeria (where the functional 
currency is US Dollar) and, 

•  Euro denominated bank loans 
across the European portfolio. 

Th e Group’s policy was to match the currency in which borrowings are 
incurred to the currency in which income is earned. Th is reduced the 
impact of currency fl uctuations on debt service obligations, and thereby 
reduced the risk of guarantees being called. 

At 30 June 2021 Hyprop had provided guarantees of €366 million for 
loans / facilities advanced to Hystead and it’s subsidiaries. In addition, at 
30 June 2020 Hyprop had provided guarantees for a further $117 million 
of loans advanced to Hyprop Mauritius in relation to its 
sub-Saharan Africa investments.

Th ese guarantees are secured by mortgage bonds over Hyprop’s 
South African (Rand denominated) properties. Th is results in a 
mismatch between the currency in which the loans and the security 
are denominated. 

Consequently, Hyprop’s loan to value ratios in terms of its banking 
covenants are exposed to fl uctuations in the Rand / Euro / US Dollar 
exchange rates, which represents a signifi cant risk to the Group, 
particularly in periods of high exchange rate volatility. Th is risk is not 
easily mitigated other than by converting Euro / US Dollar denominated 
debt to Rand denominated debt to match the functional currency of the 
loans and the security.

Since 2019 the foreign currency guaranteed debt has been reduced. 

$117 million of loans advanced to Hyprop Mauritius that were 
guaranteed by Hyprop were settled during the 2021 fi nancial year. At 
30 June 2021 there were no outstanding US Dollar denominated loans 
guaranteed by Hyprop.

Hyprop has guaranteed EUR 366 million (2020: EUR 361 million) of loans 
and banking facilities granted to Hystead and its subsidiaries (See note H3).

€198 million of these loans mature in the 2022 fi nancial year. 
Consideration is being given to settling these loans and Hyprop will be 
released from the related guarantees.

EXPOSURE

2021 INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
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N4  CURRENCY RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N4.1 Risk and mitigation continued

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

MITIGATION

Currency 
liquidity

Hyprop is exposed to this risk 
through the payments it makes 
and receives (including interest 
payments on loans and dividend 
income from foreign subsidiaries and 
investments) in Euro and USD.

Notwithstanding that the functional currency of Gruppo investments is 
US Dollars, the transactional currency of Gruppo is the Nigerian Naira. 

In order for Gruppo to meet its debt service obligations on US Dollar 
denominated loans and to remit profits to shareholders, the amounts 
held by Gruppo in Naira must be converted to US Dollars.

As a result of the significant shortage of foreign exchange in Nigeria since 
January 2020, Gruppo has been unable to secure all of the US Dollars 
required to meet its debt service obligations on US Dollar bank loans, or 
to remit its profits to shareholders.

Ways to mitigate this risk have been investigated by the Group, however, 
no acceptable solutions have been found. This risk will remain until the 
US Dollar liquidity in Nigeria improves.

Functional 
currency of 
subsidiaries 
versus Group 
reporting 
currency

Hyprop is exposed to this risk 
through its subsidiaries Hyprop 
Ikeja and Gruppo, whose functional 
currency is USD.

Although the European properties in 
the Hystead Group present the same 
exposure (reporting in Euro, while 
functioning in Dinar, Kuna, Denar 
and Lev), the investment in Hystead 
is accounted for as a financial asset 
and is not consolidated by Hyprop.

This risk arises only on consolidation of subsidiaries whose functional 
currency is different to the Group’s reporting currency. 

As there are no underlying transactions that can be hedged, this risk 
cannot be mitigated other than by diversifying the Group’s activities 
across multiple jurisdictions and currencies.

Hyprop’s investment in Hystead is accounted for as a financial asset and 
is not consolidated. This risk is therefore not applicable to the investment 
in Hystead.

Settlement 
versus 
functional 
currency

Hyprop is exposed to this risk 
through the payments it makes 
and receives (including interest 
payments on loans and dividend 
income from foreign subsidiaries and 
investments) in Euro and USD.

The Group has a formal foreign currency hedging policy in terms of which 
between 50% and 75% of known, or reasonably predictable, cash flow 
items can be hedged up to 12 months in advance, using foreign exchange 
collars or forward exchange contracts.

Refer to note H2 of the financial statements for details of the foreign 
exchange collars at 30 June.

EXPOSURE

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

Average rate Spot rate

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Rand / Euro  18.38  17.32  17.02  19.45 

Rand / US Dollar  15.43  15.58  14.31  17.33 

Naira / US Dollar  397.08  368.85  411.02  387.48 

Average rates are for the 12 months to 30 June in each year and Spot rates are at 30 June.
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N4  CURRENCY RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

N4.2 Financial exposure

Foreign currency carrying values of the Group’s currency exposures (including held-for-sale balances).

GROUP
Carrying 

 value 
Carrying 

 value 
Carrying 

 value 
Carrying 

 value 
June 2021  ₦’000   $’000    €’000  R’000  
Amounts recognised on the statement of financial position
Financial asset - Hystead  -    -    17 466  297 234 
Loans receivable – current (Eastern Europe)  -    -    1 170  19 911 
Trade and other receivables (including held-for-sale)  1 927 964  *  -    67 117 
Cash and cash equivalents (including held-for-sale)  4 195 825  2 037  -    175 197 
Asset exposure  6 123 789  2 037  18 636  559 459 

Long-term portion of borrowings (including held-for-sale)  -    (80 628)  -    (1 153 572)
Financial guarantees - current 1  -    -    (2 781)  (44 564)
Financial guarantees – non-current 1  -    -    (4 109)  (65 837)
Trade and other payables (including held-for-sale)  (1 576 860)  (20)  -    (55 175)
Non-derivative liabilities exposure  (1 576 860)  (80 648)  (6 890)  (1 319 147)

Derivative financial assets  -    -    254  4 324 

Net asset / (liability) exposure  4 546 929  (78 611)  12 000  (755 364)
*   value less than $1000 Rand 

 equivalent
1  Exposure under financial guarantees  €'000  R'000 

Loans / facilities guaranteed by Hyprop  (365 956)  (6 227 795)

Back to back security from PDI  47 185  802 990 

Net exposure under guarantees  (318 771)  (5 424 805)
Net assets of underlying subsidiaries which may mitigate exposure under guarantees  260 025  4 425 078 

Net exposure  (58 746)  (999 727)

GROUP
Carrying 

 value 
Carrying 

 value 
Carrying 

 value 
Carrying 

 value 
June 2020  ₦’000   $’000    €’000  R’000  
Amounts recognised on the statement of financial position
Financial asset - Hystead  -    -    27 406  532 972 
Loans receivable – current (Eastern Europe)  -    -    1 190  22 759 
Loans receivable – current (Sub-Saharan Africa)  -    37 992  -    658 456 
Trade and other receivables (including held-for-sale)  30 262 484  30  634  90 946 
Cash and cash equivalents (including held-for-sale)  13 739 192  6 576  -    143 213 
Asset exposure  44 001 676  44 598  29 230  1 448 346 

Short-term portion of borrowings  -    (193 360)  -    (3 351 163)
Financial guarantees – non-current 1  -    -    (6 534)  (127 066)
Trade and other payables (including held-for-sale)  (18 184 205)  (402)  -    (53 890)
Non-derivative liabilities exposure  (18 184 205)  (193 762)  (6 534)  (3 532 119)

Derivative financial liabilities  -    (444)  (1 251)  (32 019)

Net asset / (liability) exposure  25 817 471  (149 608)  21 445  (2 115 792)

1  Exposure under financial guarantees  €'000  R'000 
Loans / facilities guaranteed by Hyprop  (361 538)  (7 030 929)

Back to back security held from PDI  46 816  910 453 

Net exposure under guarantees  (314 721)  (6 120 476)
Net assets of underlying subsidiaries which may mitigate exposure under guarantees  274 652  5 341 233 

Net exposure  (40 069)  (779 243)
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N4  CURRENCY RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N4.2 Financial exposure continued

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

COMPANY
Carrying 

 value 
Carrying 

 value 
Carrying 

 value 
June 2021   $’000    €’000  R’000  
Amounts recognised on the statement of financial position
Financial asset - Hystead  -    17 466  297 234 
Loans receivable – current (Eastern Europe)  -    1 170  19 911 
Asset exposure  -    18 636  317 145 

Financial guarantees – current 1  -    (2 781)  (44 564)
Financial guarantees – non-current 1  -    (4 109)  (65 837)
Non-derivative liabilities exposure  -    (6 890)  (110 401)

Derivative financial assets  -    254  4 324 

Net asset exposure  -    12 000  211 068 
1  Exposure under financial guarantees $’000  €'000  R'000 

Loans / facilities guaranteed by Hyprop  -    (365 956)  (6 227 795)

Back to back security from PDI  -    47 185  802 990 

Net exposure under guarantees  -    (318 771)  (5 424 805)
Net assets of underlying subsidiaries  
which may mitigate exposure under guarantees  -    260 025  4 425 078 

Net exposure  -    (58 746)  (999 727)

COMPANY
Carrying 

 value 
Carrying 

 value 
Carrying 

 value 
June 2020   $’000    €’000  R’000  
Amounts recognised on the statement of financial position
Financial asset - Hystead  -    27 406  532 972 
Loans receivable – current (Eastern Europe)  -    1 190  22 759 
Trade and other receivables  -    634  12 323 
Asset exposure  -    29 230  568 054 

Financial guarantees – non-current 1  -    (6 534)  (127 066)
Financial guarantees - current 1  (6 627)  -    (114 861)
Non-derivative liabilities exposure  (6 627)  (6 534)  (241 927)

Derivative financial liabilities  (444)  (1 251)  (32 019)

Net (liability) / asset exposure  (7 071)  21 445  294 108 

1  Exposure under financial guarantees $’000  €'000  R'000 
Loans / facilities guaranteed by Hyprop  (117 642)  (361 538)  (8 714 068)

Back to back security held from PDI  -    46 816  910 445 

Net exposure under guarantees  (117 642)  (314 722)  (7 803 623)
Net assets of underlying subsidiaries  
which may mitigate exposure under guarantees  86 848  274 652  6 583 800 

Net exposure  (30 794)  (40 070)  (1 219 823)
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N4  CURRENCY RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

N4.3 Sensitivity

The following sensitivity analysis is provided on the foreign currency exposure at the end of the reporting period. This analysis is 
based on the statement of financial position balances and financial guarantees at year end for which there is currency risk, before 
consideration of currency derivatives.

The effect on equity is calculated as the effect on profit or loss. The effect on the translation of results into the Group’s presentation 
currency is excluded from the information provided.

The pre-tax effect of changes to one of the exchange rates is summarised below. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in 
particular, interest rates, remain constant.

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

% change 1 % change R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Impact on profit or loss
Rand / Euro Strengthening 10.0 1.0  (20 421)  (4 170)  (20 421)  (214)

Rand / US Dollar Strengthening 10.0 1.0  n/a  n/a  n/a  1 226 

Naira / US Dollar Strengthening 10.0 1.0  n/a  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Rand / Euro Weakening 10.0 1.0  20 421  4 170  20 421  214 

Rand / US Dollar Weakening 10.0 1.0  n/a  n/a  n/a  (1 226)

Naira / US Dollar Weakening 10.0 1.0  n/a  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Impact on other comprehensive income
Rand / US Dollar Strengthening 10.0 1.0  112 471  25 929  n/a  n/a 

Naira / US Dollar Strengthening 10.0 1.0  (14 389)  (11 433)  n/a  n/a 

Rand / US Dollar Weakening 10.0 1.0  (112 471)  (25 929)  n/a  n/a 

Naira / US Dollar Weakening 10.0 1.0  14 389  11 433  n/a  n/a 

Impact on potential exposure under financial guarantees
Rand / Euro Strengthening 10.0 1.0  99 973  7 792  99 973  7 792 

Rand / US Dollar Strengthening 10.0 1.0  n/a  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Naira / US Dollar Strengthening 10.0 1.0  n/a  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Rand / Euro Weakening 10.0 1.0  (99 973)  (7 792)  (99 973)  (7 792)

Rand / US Dollar Weakening 10.0 1.0  n/a  n/a  n/a  n/a 

Naira / US Dollar Weakening 10.0 1.0  n/a  n/a  n/a  n/a 

1 Due to the volatility of the Rand exchange rate against the US Dollar and Euro, the sensitivity % was changed from 1% to 10%.

Impact on LTV ratios HYPROP LTV

Reported LTV 37.2% 41.4%
The Hyprop LTV is calculated taking into account Hyprop's attributable share of the net assets of 
Hystead, the Hystead debt guaranteed by Hyprop and the back-to-back security Hyprop holds 
from PDI in relation to the guarantees. This methodology is used by Hyprop's lender banks.

Rand / Euro Strengthening 10.0 1.0 (1.3%) (0.1%)

Rand / US Dollar Strengthening 10.0 1.0 0.0% (0.1%)

Naira / US Dollar Strengthening 10.0 1.0 (0.2%) 0.0%

Rand / Euro Weakening 10.0 1.0 1.3% 0.1%

Rand / US Dollar Weakening 10.0 1.0 0.1% 0.0%

Naira / US Dollar Weakening 10.0 1.0 0.3% (0.1%)
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N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

N5  CREDIT RISK AND SENSITIVITY

N5.1 Risk and mitigation

Credit risk is the risk of fi nancial loss due to counterparties not meeting their contractual obligations when due.

Th e Group is exposed to credit risk due to its trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans receivable and derivative instruments.

MITIGATION

Trade 
receivables

Th e maximum exposure to credit 
risk in respect of trade receivables at 
the reporting date is the fair value of 
each class of receivable.

Deposits and guarantees

Save for national tenants, a deposit in the form of cash or a bank 
guarantee is obtained from tenants in terms of Hyprop’s deposit policy. 
Furthermore, and only if required, a deed of suretyship may be obtained 
on behalf of a tenant.

Loans 
receivable

Th e maximum exposure to credit 
risk in respect of loans receivable at 
the reporting date is the fair value of 
each class of loan receivable.

Th e credit risk in respect of loans receivable is generally mitigated by 
agreements with the counterparty. Th ese agreements include terms 
which provide legal protection for Hyprop, including security over assets 
(or residual assets) of the borrower, common to such agreements.

Loans are generally only advanced to Group or related parties.

Cash and cash 
equivalents

Th e maximum exposure to credit 
risk in respect of cash and cash 
equivalents is the outstanding 
balance on deposit with the 
respective fi nancial institution.

Th e Group and Company manage their exposure to credit risk by 
placing funds with a range of leading South African banks and AA+ rated 
money market funds. Exposure levels to each fi nancial institution are 
monitored regularly.

Derivative 
instruments

Th e maximum exposure to credit risk 
in respect of derivative instruments 
at the reporting date is the fair value 
of the derivative instruments.

Th e Group and Company manage their exposure to credit risk by 
transacting only with leading South African banks.

Certain derivative instruments are governed by industry standard 
International Swap and Derivative Association (ISDA) agreements.

EXPOSURE

N5.2 Financial exposure

Th e Group considers its maximum credit risk exposure per asset class, without taking into account any collateral and fi nancial 
guarantees, to be as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Loans receivable – non-current N5.2.1  4 200  -    4 200  -   

Loans receivable – current N5.2.2  19 911  681 215  19 911  22 759 

Trade and other receivables N5.2.3  185 248  313 933  179 167  211 242 

Cash and cash equivalents (including held-for-sale) N5.2.4  941 250  876 544  760 617  726 362 

Derivative instruments – assets N5.2.5  4 324  -    4 324  -   

 1 154 933  1 871 691  968 219  960 363 
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N5  CREDIT RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N5.2 Financial exposure continued

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

N5.2.1 Loan receivable – non- current

The loan receivable from Entrepreneurship To The Point (which expires in October 2024) does not exhibit any signs of credit 
impairment. No interest is payable.

N5.2.2.1 Loans receivable – current (Vondelvlag)

The loans receivable from Vondelvlag Stichting and Vondelvlag Finance (which expire in November 2021) do not exhibit any signs of 
credit impairment. Interest payments continued to be made on these loans at each scheduled quarterly date and no expectation of 
default is indicated.

N5.2.2.2 Loans receivable – current (AttAfrica)

The loan receivable from AttAfrica was credit impaired at 30 June 2020. Interest income on the loan was only recognised to the extent 
actually received. During the year ended 30 June 2021, the outstanding balance of the loan was settled via a subscription for new 
shares in AttAfrica Limited of an equivalent value.  Refer to F1.6 for the movement in expected credit losses.

GROUP COMPANY

Note June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

N5.2.3  Trade receivables R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Maximum exposure  106 282  187 725  100 912  154 016 

Gross trade receivables F2.3  185 248  313 933  179 167  211 242 

Accumulated expected credit losses F2.3  (78 966)  (126 208)  (78 255)  (57 226)

Mitigating balances  238 308  317 339  238 308  292 198 

Bank guarantees on behalf 
of tenants in favour of the Group  163 427  223 680  163 427  207 264 

Tenant deposits held by the Group  74 881  93 659  74 881  84 934 

Excludes assets classified as held-for-sale.
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N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Movement for the year 
Balance at the beginning of the year  57 226  26 795  57 226  26 795 

Provision for expected credit losses raised during the year  72 253  77 682  58 006  35 786 

Receivables written off during the year  (36 410)  (57 255)  (36 410)  (5 355)

Currency translation adjustment  -    13 586  -    -   

Transferred to held-for-sale  (14 103)  (3 582)  (566)  -   

Balance at the end of the year  78 966  57 226  78 255  57 226 

Ageing of impaired receivables
Current  11 497  6 673  11 497  6 673 

30 days  11 945  22 293  11 945  22 293 

60 days  11 486  7 759  11 486  7 759 

90+ days  44 038  20 501  43 327  20 501 

Total  78 966  57 226  78 255  57 226 

Ageing of receivables past due but not impaired
30 days  11 401  46 453  11 401  46 453 

60 days  6 114  99  6 114  99 

90+ days  444  6 401  444  6 401 

Total  17 959  52 953  17 959  52 953 

N5.2.3.1 Impairment of trade receivables 

The Group has applied the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9 to determine the expected credit losses for trade receivables 
resulting in a calculation of lifetime expected credit losses. See F2.2 for further information on the calculation of ECLs.

CREDIT RATING GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

%  %  % % 
ABSA Bank Limited B Ba1  41.1  49.0  50.8  56.4 

Standard Bank Group Ba2 Ba1  26.8  42.4  13.6  33.8 

Nedbank Group Ba1 Ba1  8.4  3.2  10.4  3.6 

Rand Merchant Bank/
FirstRand Group Ba2 Ba1  13.7  5.3  12.8  6.1 

Investec Ba2 n/a  6.1  -    7.5  -   

Other Ba1 n/a  3.9  0.1  4.8  0.1 

Total Exposure  100.0  100.0  100.0  100.0 

N5.2.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash deposits with leading South African banks and units held in AA+ rated money market funds.

The credit ratings for the counterparty financial institutions as well as the exposure concentration of cash and cash equivalents with 
each financial institution are as follows:

Impairment losses on cash and cash equivalents are measured on a 12-month expected credit loss basis. No expected credit losses are 
anticipated in respect of cash and cash equivalents, given the credit ratings of the counterparties.

N5  CREDIT RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N5.2 Financial exposure continued
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N5  CREDIT RISK AND SENSITIVITY continued

N5.2  Financial exposure continued

N. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
continued

N5.2.5 Derivative instruments

Derivative instruments comprise interest rate swaps and foreign currency collars.

Th e credit ratings for the counterparty fi nancial institutions as well the exposure (based on nominal values) of derivative instruments 
with each fi nancial institution are as follows:

CREDIT RATING GROUP COMPANY

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

%  %  %  % 
Standard Bank Group Ba2 Ba1  45.2  44.9  45.2  40.4 

Nedbank Group Ba1 Ba1  24.3  24.2  24.3  26.2 

Rand Merchant Bank/
FirstRand Group Ba2 Ba1  18.3  2.3  18.3  2.5 

ABSA Bank Limited B Ba1  12.2  28.6  12.2  30.9 

Total Exposure  100.0  100.0  100.0  100.0 
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O.  Other information
O1  GOING CONCERN

Th e Company and Group fi nancial statements are prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. Th is basis 
assumes that funds will be available to fi nance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities will occur 
in the ordinary course of business.

In assessing the Company and Group’s ability to continue as going concerns, the board and the Audit and Risk committee have reviewed 
the Company and Group’s budgets and cashfl ow forecasts, available cash balances, existing unutilised and available new borrowing 
facilities, and the Group’s debt maturity profi le. Cognisance was also taken of the ongoing eff ect the COVID-19 pandemic is having on 
the economies in which the Group operates and on the Group’s fi nancial performance.

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company and Group recorded losses of R1 327 million and R837 million respectively, due to the 
revaluation of investment property portfolios by R1 587 million. However, the Group’s net income before value adjustments for the year 
was R909 million and cash generated by operations was R1 729 million. At 30 June 2021 the Group’s net asset value was R19.3 billion, 
the Group had cash balances of R941 million (including assets held-for-sale) and undrawn revolving credit facilities of R950 million 
resulting in a strong liquidity position.

At 30 June 2021 the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by R951 million and the Group’s current liabilities 
exceeded its current assets by R943 million (all excluding assets held-for-sale), due to borrowings which mature in less than one year 
(see note H1.3).

Th e Company and Group propose to settle the short-term borrowings from existing cash balances, existing or new bank facilities and 
the proceeds from the disposal of assets, as detailed below:

 •  At 30 June 2021 Atterbury Value Mart was classifi ed as an asset held-for-sale. Th e sale was implemented on 2 July 2021 and the 
net cash proceeds of R1.1 billion received; and

 •  Subsequent to 30 June 2021 the Company accepted R3.9 billion of new borrowing facilities from banks. Th ese facilities will be 
used to refi nance Group borrowings that mature in the ensuing 12 months.

Accordingly, the directors consider that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue operating for the ensuing 
12 months and that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Company and Group fi nancial statements. 

O2  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

O2.1 Dividend declaration

Th e Board resolved to declare a dividend for the year ended 30 June 2021 of 336.5 cents per share and to off er shareholders the 
opportunity to reinvest the net cash dividend in return for new shares in the Company through a DRIP. All amounts raised from the DRIP 
will be utilised to strengthen the Group’s balance sheet. 

O2.2 Sale of Ikeja City Mall

On 9 November 2020 Hyprop announced that Hyprop Mauritius (as one of the sellers) had concluded an agreement (the SPA) to 
dispose of its 75% interest in Ikeja City Mall to two new property funds managed by the Actis Group (the transaction). Th e transaction 
remains subject to the fulfi lment of certain conditions precedent, including certain fundraising requirements. Given the current lack of 
US Dollar liquidity in Nigeria, fulfi lling this condition is taking longer than anticipated, however, the parties remain committed to the 
transaction and are working to fulfi l the conditions precedent and / or fi nd alternative ways to implement the transaction. 

Th e long-stop date for the transaction was initially extended to 31 July 2021 and subsequently to 31 October 2021 , and may be 
extended further by written agreement between the parties if the US Dollar liquidity shortage has not markedly improved by such date. 
Th e parties have agreed that the sellers may engage other potential buyers for the property and, should the sellers wish to enter into an 
agreement with such potential buyers, they may terminate the SPA prior to the long-stop date. 

O2.3 Sale of Atterbury Value Mart

At 30 June 2021 Atterbury Value Mart was classifi ed as an asset held-for-sale. Th e sale was implemented on 2 July 2021 and the net 
cash proceeds of R1.1 billion received.

O2.4 Sale of Hystead properties

Hystead has accepted an off er to sell Delta City in Belgrade for €115 million. Th e buyers have completed their due diligence and all 
material commercial terms have been agreed. Th e transaction is subject to certain conditions precedent, including fi nalisation and 
signature of legal agreements. Proceeds from the disposal will be utilised to reduce Hystead’s Euro equity debt.

O. OTHER INFORMATION
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O. OTHER INFORMATION
continued

O3  JSE PROPERTY DISCLOSURES

O3.1 Detailed property disclosures

Listed companies that carry out property-related transactions are subject to additional disclosure requirements relating to their property portfolio and financial information in terms of the JSE listings 
requirements. The tables below exclude all properties classified as held-for-sale and disclosures for Offices refer to standalone offices only. Rental escalations relate to new leases and amendments 
made during the financial year. Rent per square metre is as at 30 June 2021.

GROUP

JUNE 2021 Lo
ca

tio
n

 Revenue 
attributable 

to Hyprop  Total GLA  Rent  Retail GLA 
 Retail 

vacancy 
 Retail 

vacancy  Office GLA 
 Office 

vacancy 
 Office 

vacancy 

 Retail 
rental 

escalation 

 Office 
rental 

escalation 

 Average 
annualised 

rental 
property 

 R'000 m2 R per m2 m2 m2  % m2 m2  %  %  %  yield % 

GEOGRAPHICAL PROFILE

SOUTH AFRICA  2 387 005  659 702  235  614 722  15 627  2.5  44 980  10 732  23.9  5.8  5.7  7.9 
Gauteng GP  1 290 639  369 487  334 060  11 285  3.4  35 428  8 115  22.9 

Western Cape WC  1 096 366  290 215  280 663  4 342  1.5  9 552  2 617  27.4 

SECTORAL PROFILE

RETAIL  2 369 254  652 845  240  614 722  15 627  2.5  38 124  8 845  23.2  5.8  5.6  7.9 

Shopping centres  652 845  240  614 722  38 124  23.2 

Super regional

Canal Walk WC  157 129  311  147 577  9 552 

Large regional

Clearwater Mall GP  87 044  252  87 044 

The Glen GP  80 118  194  80 118 

Woodlands GP  72 451  180  72 451 

CapeGate WC  64 238  213  64 238 

Somerset Mall WC  68 848  253  68 848 

Rosebank Mall GP  84 190  196  65 941  18 249 

Regional

Hyde Park Corner GP  38 828  306  28 505  10 323 

OFFICES  17 752  6 856  105  -    -    6 856  1 887  27.5  7.0  6.2  8.1 

TOTAL PORTFOLIO  2 387 005  659 702  235  614 722  15 627  2.5  44 980  10 732  23.9  5.8  5.7  7.9 
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O3  JSE PROPERTY DISCLOSURES continued

O. OTHER INFORMATION
continued

O3.2 Tenant grading

Tenants in our portfolio are categorised by grade, although this is largely subjective given the strong retail nature of our portfolio.

  A-grade:  Large national tenants, large listed tenants and major franchises (including all national retailers and tenants in large 
listed Groups).

  B-grade:  Smaller national and listed tenants, medium-sized franchises, medium to large retailers.

  C-grade: Smaller line stores.
 Revenue 

attributable 
to Hyprop 

Revenue 
contribution

 Rentable 
area (GLA) 

GLA 
contribution

 Revenue 
R'000 

 R'000 % m2 % per m2

June 2021

Tenant profile - South Africa
A grade  1 383 455  54,9  473 627  66,7  243 

B grade  706 331  28,0  139 116  19,6  423 

C grade - (819 tenants)  430 369  17,1  97 755  13,7  367 

Total  2 520 155  100,0  710 498  100,0  296 
The table above includes Atterbury Value mart which is held-for-sale.

June 2020

Tenant profile - South Africa
A grade  1 471 340  54,3  459 373  66,8  267 

B grade  739 329  27,3  141 178  20,4  436 

C grade - (813 tenants)  496 827  18,4  88 253  12,8  469 

Total  2 707 496  100,0  688 804  100,0  328 

O3.3 Lease expiry profiles

O3.3.1 Lease expiry profile by revenue (%)

 FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26+ 

June 2021  %  %  %  %  % 
Retail  26  22  16  18  18 

Offices  28  60  -    7  4 

Total portfolio  26  22  16  18  18 

June 2020
Retail  29  17  19  11  24 

Offices  33  9  45  -    13 

Total portfolio  29  17  19  11  24 

O3.3.2 Lease expiry profile by rentable area (%)

Vacancy  FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY26+ 

June 2021 %  %  %  %  %  % 
Retail  3  17  17  14  22  26 

Offices  28  23  24  -    7  18 

Total portfolio  4  18  17  14  22  25 

June 2020
Retail  2  23  13  16  12  34 

Offices  10  31  9  24  -    25 

Total portfolio  3  23  14  16  11  33 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
(EXCLUDED FROM THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)

P.  REIT disclosures
P1  SA REIT RATIOS

The second edition of the SA REIT Association’s best practice recommendations was issued in November 2019 and is effective for 
reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2020. The comparative figures have been disclosed on the same basis.

The Distribution Statement set out below includes the Calculation of SA REIT Funds from Operations (FFO) for the years ended 
30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020. FFO, Funds from operations per share (FFOPS) and other non-IFRS information set out in this section 
are collectively referred to as “Non-IFRS Financial Information”. Non-IFRS Financial Information constitutes non-IFRS measures and is 
pro forma financial information in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Basis of preparation: Non-financial information

The Non-IFRS Financial Information has been compiled by the Directors to provide investors with a performance metric that is 
commonly used in the industry and to allow for direct comparison of South African Real Estate Investment Trusts. Due to its nature the 
Non-IFRS Financial Information may not fairly present the results of operations of Hyprop Investments Limited.

The Directors are responsible for compiling the Non-IFRS Financial Information on the basis of the Applicable Criteria specified in the 
JSE Listings Requirements, including the JSE Guidance Letter: Presentation of pro forma financial information, dated 4 March 2010.

The independent reporting accountant’s assurance report on the Non-IFRS financial information is available on the Group’s website at 
http://hyprop.co.za/annual-results.php

P1.1 SA REIT FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS (SA REIT FFO) PER SHARE
GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000 

Loss  per IFRS Statement of comprehensive income (SOCI) attributable to the parent  (811 620)  (3 401 849)

Adjusted for:

Accounting / specific adjustments:  2 012 812  4 450 152 
Fair value adjustments to:

Investment property  1 587 177  4 568 690 

Equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss  235 738  (314 528)

Debt instruments held at fair value through profit or loss  (16 665)  16 665 

Asset impairments (excluding goodwill) and reversals of impairment  -    289 974 

Deferred tax movement recognised in profit or loss  91 857  7 637 

Straight-lining operating lease adjustment  114 705  (118 286)

Foreign exchange and hedging items:  (99 967)  224 599 
Fair value adjustments on derivative financial instruments employed solely for 
hedging purposes  (162 041)  221 200 

Foreign exchange gains or losses relating to capital items – realised and unrealised  62 074  3 399 

SA REIT FFO:  1 101 225  1 272 902 
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period (net of treasury shares)  307 439 291  254 245 325 

SA REIT FFO per share (cents) :  358.2  500.7 

Company-specific adjustments (cents per share)  (21.7)  (7.3)

Net interest adjustments  (0.6)  (1.6)

Gruppo non remittable income  (18.0)  (2.0)

Capital and other items  (4.4)  (2.3)

Effects of weighting of shares in issue 0.0 (1.4)

Equity accounted losses  1.3  -

Distributable income per share (cents):  336.5  493.4 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
(EXCLUDED FROM THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)P  REIT DISCLOSURES continued

P1  SA REIT RATIOS continued

P1.2 SA REIT Net Asset Value (SA REIT NAV)

GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000 

Reported NAV attributable to the parent   19 357 485   19 346 335 
Adjustments:

Dividend to be (declared) / reinvested (1 034 689)  (165 140)

Goodwill and intangible assets (20 133) -

Deferred tax  187 056  95 198 

SA REIT NAV:  18 489 719  19 276 393 

Shares outstanding
Number of shares in issue at period end (net of treasury shares)  307 439 291  254 245 325 

Effect of dilutive instruments 

(options under the share scheme)  506 637  170 846 

Diluted number of shares in issue  307 945 928  254 416 171 

SA REIT NAV per share (R):  60.04  75.77 

P1.3 SA REIT loan-to-value

GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000 
Gross debt 1 - per statement of financial position  6 678 270 7 977 411

Less:

Cash and cash equivalents (including held-for-sale)  (941 250) (876 544)

Add / Less:

Derivative financial instruments  127 932 285 649

Net debt  5 864 952 7 386 516

Total assets – per statement of financial position  26 878 084  28 959 704 

Less:

Cash and cash equivalents (including held-for-sale)  (941 250)  (876 544)

Derivative financial assets  (4 324)  -   

Intangible assets  (20 133)

Trade and other receivables  (147 634)  (202 684)

Carrying amount of property-related assets  25 764 743  27 880 476

SA REIT loan-to-value 22.8% 26.5%
1Excludes non-consolidated liabilities of Hystead Limited that have been guaranteed by Hyprop.
See note H4 for details of the Company’s loan-to-value ratio, as calculated by the Group’s major lenders, and compliance with banking covenants.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
(EXCLUDED FROM THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)P  REIT DISCLOSURES continued

P1  SA REIT RATIOS continued

P1.4 SA REIT cost-to-income ratio

GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

R’000  R’000 

Expenses
Operating expenses per IFRS income statement (includes municipal expenses)  1 250 502 1 217 403

Administrative expenses per IFRS income statement  122 718 89 130

Exclude: 

Depreciation expense in relation to property, plant and equipment of an administrative nature  (1 467) (1 419)

Company specific adjustments:

Software development costs (4 956) -

Operating costs  1 366 797 1 305 114

Rental income
Contractual rental income per IFRS income statement (excluding straight-lining) 2  2 112 847 2 184 811

Utility and operating recoveries per IFRS income statement  716 032 722 934

Gross rental income  2 828 879 2 907 745

SA REIT cost-to-income ratio 48.3% 44.9%

2 Net of COVID-19 related discounts and relief.

P1.5 SA REIT administrative cost-to-income ratio

Expenses
Administrative expenses as per IFRS income statement  122 718  89 130 

Administrative costs  122 718  89 130 

Rental income
Contractual rental income per IFRS income statement (excluding straightlining) 2  2 112 847  2 184 811 

Utility and operating recoveries per IFRS income statement  716 032  722 934 

Gross rental income  2 828 879  2 907 745 

SA REIT administrative cost-to-income ratio 4.3% 3.1%

2 Net of COVID-19 related discounts and relief.

P1.6 SA REIT GLA vacancy rate - TOTAL
Gross lettable area of vacant space  26 358  21 760 

Gross lettable area of total property portfolio  708 334  710 194 

SA REIT GLA vacancy rate 3.7% 3.1%
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
(EXCLUDED FROM THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)P  REIT DISCLOSURES continued

P1  SA REIT RATIOS continued

P1.7 SA REIT Cost of debt

P1.7.1 Cost of debt - ZAR

GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

Variable interest-rate borrowings
Floating reference rate plus weighted average margin 5.5% 5.6%

Pre-adjusted weighted average cost of debt 5.5% 5.6%

Adjustments:

Impact of interest rate derivatives 2.3% 3.4%

Amortised transaction costs imputed into the effective interest rate 0.1% 0.1%

All-in weighted average cost of debt 7.9% 9.1%

P1.7.2 Cost of debt - USD

Variable interest-rate borrowings
Floating reference rate plus weighted average margin 6.3% 4.4%

Pre-adjusted weighted average cost of debt 6.3% 4.4%

Adjustments:

Impact of interest rate derivatives 0.0% 0.3%

All-in weighted average cost of debt 6.3% 4.7%
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
(EXCLUDED FROM THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)

GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

Q1.1 Reconciliation of net income before value adjustments to distributable income  R’000  R’000 

Net income before fair value adjustments  909 163  1 411 026 

Adjustments to calculate distributable income  125 526  (152 985)
Straight-line rental income accrual  114 705  (118 286)

Non-controlling interest  24 578  21 449 

Tax adjustments  (8 268)  -   

Net interest adjustments  (1 741)  (4 036)

Other fair value adjustments – Edcon  -    (45 172)

Gruppo non-remittable cash  (55 400)  (5 039)

Equity accounted losses  4 016  -   

Capital items for distribution purposes  47 636  (1 901)

Distributable income  1 034 689  1 258 041 

Weighted average number of shares for calculating distributable income per share  307 458 894  254 985 466 

Distributable income per share (cents)  336.5  493.4 

Q1.2 Reconciliation of cash generated from operations to distributable income

Cash generated from operations  1 728 717  1 733 439 

Adjusted for:  (694 028)  (475 398)
(Decrease) / increase in receivables  30 693  121 652 

Decrease / (increase) in payables  (52 304)  (46 641)

Impairment of trade receivables  (72 253)  (77 682)

Depreciation  (50 817)  (45 860)

Share-based payment expense (net of forfeit credits)  (8 574)  (11 795)

Interest received  26 842  88 997 

Interest paid  (548 813)  (637 392)

Dividend received  19 833  120 630 

Other non-cash items  (45 440)  2 219 

Non-controlling interest  24 578  21 449 

Taxation expense  (8 268)  -   

Sub-Saharan Africa  (57 141)  (9 074)

Capital items for distribution purposes  47 636  (1 901)

Distributable income  1 034 689  1 258 041 

Q1   EARNINGS RECONCILIATIONS
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
(EXCLUDED FROM THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)

Q2 FIVE-YEAR REVIEW

GROUP June 2021 June 2020 June 2019 June 2018 June 2017

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Revenue  2 781 339  3 102 342  3 217 848  3 113 713  3 167 649 
Rental and other lease income  2 112 847  2 184 811  2 567 150  2 244 650  3 128 062 

Non-lease income  67 165  76 311  -    -    -   

Straight-line rental income accrual  (114 705)  118 286  (87 887)  (3 847)  39 587 

Recoveries  716 032  722 934  738 585  872 910  -   

Changes in expected credit losses 
- trade receivables  (72 253)  (77 682)  (47 052)  -    -   

Property expenses  (1 178 249)  (1 139 721)  (1 132 002)  (1 049 892)  (1 073 877)

Net property income  1 530 837  1 884 939  2 038 794  2 063 821  2 093 772 
Other operating income  55 341  18 783  27 715  -    -   

Other operating expenses  (122 718)  (89 130)  (72 428)  (55 778)  (78 232)

Net foreign exchange profit / (loss)  (51 778)  2 088  3 113  -    -   

Operating income  1 411 682  1 816 680  1 997 194  2 008 043  2 015 540 
Net interest  (521 971)  (548 395)  (461 155)  (282 273)  (336 502)

Interest income  26 842  88 997  156 043  312 550  294 177 

Interest expense  (548 813)  (637 392)  (617 198)  (594 823)  (630 679)

Net operating income  889 711  1 268 285  1 536 039  1 725 770  1 679 038 
Guarantee fee income  3 635  22 111  40 542  46 671  36 931 

Dividends received  19 833  120 630  221 190  182 778  146 350 

Loss from equity accounted investments  (4 016)  -    -    -    (50 380)

Net income before fair value adjustments  909 163  1 411 026  1 797 771  1 955 220  1 811 939 
Changes in fair value  (1 661 020)  (4 620 263)  (587 083)  767 052  973 270 

Investment property  (1 587 323)  (4 668 419)  (337 238)  650 206  1 142 199 

Other investments  -    (45 172)  (12 705)  -    -   

Loans receivable at FVTPL  -    -    (105 809)  -    -   

Financial asset  (235 738)  314 528  (85 229)  87 761  (163 855)

Derivative instruments  162 041  (221 200)  (46 102)  29 085  (5 074)

Profit on disposal of investment property  -    -    2 825  2 697  2 031 

Loss on disposal of subsidiary  -    -    -    -    (2 557)

Changes in expected credit losses - loans 
receivable  -    (289 974)  (1 350 727)  (166 441)  (25 377)

Changes in expected credit losses - financial 
guarantees  16 665  (16 665)  -    -    -   

Other impairments  -    -    (29 964)  (10 102)  10 102 

Impairment of goodwill  -    -    -    -    (18 134)

Derecognition of financial guarantees  -    -    185 686  11 984  -   

(Loss) / profit before taxation  (735 192)  (3 515 876)  18 508  2 560 410  2 751 274 
Taxation  (101 500)  (7 150)  93 028  (39 486)  (4 340)

(Loss) / profit for the year  (836 692)  (3 523 026)  111 536  2 520 924  2 746 934 

Total profit for the year  
attributable to shareholders of the Company  (811 620)  (3 401 849)  164 922  2 529 467  2 767 652 

Investment property at fair value 1  22 091 100  24 665 964  28 636 718  30 849 201  29 825 333 

Distributable income per share (cents)  337  493  745  757  695 
 1 Excludes investment property held-for-sale. 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
(EXCLUDED FROM THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)

Q3 FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON HYSTEAD

(Extracted from management accounts and included for information purposes only.)

Q3.1 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION HYSTEAD GROUP

June 2021 June 2020

 R’000  R’000 

Non-current assets  13 203 304  15 782 048 
Investment property  13 153 816  15 703 889 

Other non-current assets  49 488  78 159 

Current assets  775 182  662 652 
Receivables and other current assets  103 128  181 292 

Cash and cash equivalents  672 054  481 360 

Total assets  13 978 486  16 444 700 

Non-current liabilities  (9 907 117)  (15 268 581)

Borrowings – in country  (6 357 041)  (6 566 662)

Borrowings – equity  (2 789 682)  (7 808 821)

Other non-current liabilities  (760 394)  (893 098)

Current liabilities  (4 483 136)  (1 312 323)
Borrowings – in country  (177 991)  (975 982)

Borrowings – equity  (4 052 310)  -   

Other current liabilities  (252 835)  (336 341)

Total liabilities  (14 390 253)  (16 580 904)

Net assets  (411 767)  (136 204)
Converted to Rand at year-end spot rate R17.02 / EUR (2020: R19.45).

Q3.2 PROFIT AND LOSS

Revenue  1 532 068  1 339 717 
Property expenses  (655 929)  (508 562)

Net property income  876 139  831 155 
Other operating income  12 365  17 233 

Other operating expenses  (10 231)  (8 510)

Net foreign exchange profit / (loss)  23 097  (34 807)

Net interest  (401 217)  (409 549)

Net income before fair value adjustments and taxation  500 153  395 522 
Fair value movement on investment property  (805 125)  49 101 

Fair value movement on derivatives  34 417  (21 822)

Net (loss) / income before taxation  (270 555)  422 801 
Taxation  (34 207)  (148 999)

Net (loss) / income after taxation  (304 762)  273 802 

Dividends declared  31 887  202 598 

Dividend included in Hyprop’s income  19 833  120 630 

Converted to Rand at average rate R18.38 / EUR(2020: R17.32).
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R1 SHAREHOLDERS ANALYSIS

R1.1 Shareholder spread
Number of

shareholdings

% of number 
of

shareholdings
Number of

shares
% of issued 

capital
1 – 1 000  5 907  57.2  1 918 813  0.6 

1 001 – 10 000  3 245  31.4  10 142 977  3.3 

10 001 – 100 000  837  8.1  26 873 586  8.7 

100 001 – 1 000 000  291  2.8  93 581 997  30.3 

Over 1 000 000  55  0.5  176 552 684  57.1 

Total  10 335  100.0  309 070 057  100.0 

R1.2 Distribution of shareholders
Banks / Brokers  81  0.8  45 741 679  14.8 

Close Corporations  79  0.8  1 208 331  0.4 

Endowment Funds  112  1.1  1 931 005  0.6 

Individuals  7 813  75.5  15 337 475  5.0 

Insurance Companies  93  0.9  16 435 175  5.3 

Investment Companies  2  0.0  187 215  0.1 

Medical Schemes  28  0.3  2 697 647  0.9 

Mutual Funds  339  3.3  126 804 728  41.0 

Other Corporations  42  0.4  125 103  0.0 

Private Companies  295  2.9  9 528 899  3.1 

Public Companies  3  0.0  75 416  0.0 

Retirement Funds  372  3.6  79 109 452  25.6 

Share Scheme  1  0.0  1 630 766  0.5 

Trusts  1 075  10.4  8 257 166  2.7 

Total  10 335  100.0  309 070 057  100.0 

R1.3 Shareholder type
Non-public shareholders  8  0.01  56 258 930  18.2 

Directors  5  0.00  86 370  0.0 

Share scheme  1  0.01  1 630 766  0.5 

Strategic Holdings (more than 5%)  2  0.00  54 541 794  17.7 

Public shareholders  10 327  99.99  252 811 127  81.8 

Total  10 335  100.0  309 070 057  100.0 

R1.4 Benefi cial holdings greater than 5% of the issued shares
Government Employees Pension Fund 31 170 633  10.1 

Allan Gray 23 371 161  7.6 

Total 54 541 794  17.7 
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R2  SHAREHOLDERS’ DIARY

Provisional dates

Financial  year end Wednesday, 30 June 2021

Publication of fi nancial results September 2021

Annual general meeting Friday, 26 November 2021

Annual report available to shareholders Friday, 29 October 2021

Publication of interim results Friday, 25 March 2022

These dates are provisional and are subject to change.

June 2021 June 2020

R3 DISTRIBUTION DETAILS cents per share  cents per share
Six months ended:   

30 June  336.5 1  66.3 

31 December  -    308.7 

Total  336.5  375.0 
1 The 30 June distribution for 2021 represents a full year distribution.

R4  ADMINISTRATION

Hyprop 

Registered offi  ce and Business address
2nd fl oor, Cradock Heights,  
21 Cradock Avenue, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196

Postal address
PO Box  52509, Saxonwold, 2132

Registration number
1987/005284/06

Contact Details
+2711 447 0090
www.hyprop.co.za 
twitter.com/Hyprop

Investor relations
Lizelle du Toit
lizelle@hyprop.co.za

Corporate advisor and sponsor

Java Capital
6th fl oor, 1 Park Lane, Weirda Valley, Sandton, 2196

Company Secretary

Statucor Proprietary Limited
Wanderers Offi  ce Park, 
52 Corlett Drive, Illovo, Johannesburg, 2196

Private Bag X60500, Houghton, 2041

Transfer Secretary

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd
Rosebank Towers, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank , 2196

PO Box  61051, Marshalltown, 2107

Independent auditor

KPMG Inc

KPMG Crescent, 85 Empire Road, Parktown, 2193
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Glossary
African Land African Land Investments Ltd 

AFS Annual Financial Statements

ARC Audit and Risk committee

AttAfrica AttAfrica Ltd

AttAfrica SA AttAfrica SA (Pty) Ltd

Board / the board Th e board of directors of Hyprop Investments Limited

CFC Controlled Foreign Company, as defi ned in the South African  Income Tax Act, 
No. 58 of 1962

Company / The Company Hyprop Investments Ltd

COVID-19 A novel strain of coronavirus that became a global pandemic in early 2020

CUP Th e Group long-term employee incentive scheme /Th e conditional share plan

ECL(s) Expected credit loss/(es)

EE Eastern Europe

EmpiriQ EmpiriQ Technologies (Pty) Ltd, the co-investor in Natalmahogany

ETTP Entrepreneurship To Th e Point

FVLCTS Fair value less cost to sell

FVTPL Fair value though profi t or loss

FVTOCI Fair value through other comprehensive income

GLA Gross lettable area

Group / The Group Hyprop Investments Ltd and its subsidiaries

Gruppo Gruppo Investments Nigeria Ltd (owner of Ikeja City Mall)

Hyprop Foundation Hyprop Foundation NPC

Hyprop Ikeja Hyprop Ikeja Mall Ltd 

Hyprop Mauritius Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Ltd

Hyprop Share Scheme Hyprop Investments Employee Incentive Scheme (Pty) Ltd 

Hystead Hystead Ltd (a UK registered company)

Hystead Group Hystead Ltd and its subsidiaries

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

Ikeja or Ikeja City Mall Ikeja City Mall, the property owned by Gruppo Investments Nigeria Ltd

JIBAR Th e Johannesburg Interbank Average Rate, the money market rate that is used in South 
Africa as a reference for setting the interest rate on loans

LIBOR
Th e basic rate of interest used in lending between banks on the London interbank market 
and also used as a reference for setting the interest rate on other loans. LIBOR linked loans 
ceased being off ered after Q3 2020 and the LIBOR rate is scheduled to cease in June 2023

LTV Loan to value ratio

Natalmahogany Natalmahogany (Pty) Ltd owner and operator of SOKO District

NAV Net asset value

OCI Other comprehensive income

PDI PDI Investment Holdings Ltd, the co-investor in Hystead

REIT Real Estate Investment Trust

SA South Africa

SAICA South African Institute of Chartered Accountants

SA REIT Th e SA REIT Association, a representative umbrella body for South African REITs

SA REIT FFO Funds from Operations as defi ned by the SA REIT Association's best practice 
recommendations

SA REIT NAV Net asset value as defi ned by the SA REIT Association's best practice recommendations

SOKO / SOKO district A digital and physical marketplace / platform operated by Natalmahogany which forms 
part of the Group’s non-tangible asset strategy .

SCE Statements of changes in equity

SCF Statements of cash fl ows

SFP Statements of fi nancial position

SOCI Statements of profi t or loss and other comprehensive income

SSA Sub-Saharan Africa (other than SA)

TNAV Tangible net asset value

WAAM West Africa Asset Management (Pty) Ltd

WALE Weighted average lease expiry period in years
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